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Mecklenburg County
Dena R. Diorio
Director of Financial Services

October 29, 2012

The Board of County Commissioners
and County Manager

Mecklenburg County

Charlotte, North Carolina

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Report)
of Mecklenburg County for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2012 is submitted herewith. The report meets the
State requirement to issue audited financial state-
ments within four months of the close of the fiscal year.

County management assumes full responsibility for
the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this Report, based upon a comprehensive
framework of internal control that it has established
for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control
should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is
to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
that the financial statements are free of any material
misstatements.

The financial statements have been prepared in com-
pliance with applicable General Statutes of North
Carolina and accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America for governmental enti-
ties. Cherry, Bekaert and Holland L.L.P., an indepen-
dent public accounting firm, has issued an unqualified
(“clean”) opinion on the financial statements. Their
opinion is located at the beginning of the Financial
Section of the Report. The audit was also designed to
meet the requirements of the Federal Single Audit Act
Amendment of 1996, as well as the State Single Audit
Act, N.C.G.S.159-34. The reports required by these
Acts are issued separately.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) im-
mediately follows the independent auditors’ report and
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and anal-
ysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A comple-
ments this Letter of Transmittal and the two should
be read together.
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Profile of the Government

Mecklenburg County was created from a portion
of Anson County through a petition that was
granted on December 11, 1762 by the Provincial
Assembly, effective February 1, 1763. During the
colonial period, a governor appointed by the King
of England administered the County. Settlers chose
the name Mecklenburg for their county in the hopes
of gaining favor with King George III. His wife,
Queen Charlotte, was born in the German province
of Mecklenburg. When Mecklenburg was estab-
lished, it was considerably larger than it is today.
Portions of what are now Cabarrus, Union, Lincoln,
Rutherford, Cleveland and Gaston Counties in North
Carolina and part of South Carolina were all once in
Mecklenburg County. The City of Charlotte was in-
corporated on November 7, 1768 and was chosen the
county seat in 1774.

The current boundaries of the County were estab-
lished in 1842. County officials continued to be ap-
pointed by the governor until 1868. The Constitution
of North Carolina was rewritten in that year to allow
citizens, for the first time, to elect officials to govern
them at the county level. This form of government is
still in practice today with the governing body known
as the Board of County Commissioners (the Board).
In 1963, the Board adopted the County Manager form
of government and appointed a County Manager to
perform the administrative duties of the County.

The Board has six district and three at-large
members. Elections for Board members are held in
November of even-numbered years, and candidates
run for office as members of a political party. Any
registered voter is eligible to run for Commissioner.
Following the election, Commissioners take office
at the first meeting in December. It is also at the
first meeting in December each year that the Board
elects a chairman and vice-chairman from among its
members.

The Board appoints several officials to help carry
out the County’s business: a County Manager, who
serves as chief executive officer; a County Attorney,
who serves as legal advisor to the Board; a Director of
Financial Services, who provides required financial
information and guidance for planning and conduct-
ing fiscal management in operating the County; and
a Clerk to the Board, who is responsible for keeping
official Board records and preparing official minutes
of all Board meetings.

The County provides the following services: land
use, including listing and appraising all real and
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personal property and regulating the development
of land and construction of residential, commercial
and industrial facilities; recreation and cultural ac-
tivities; human services, including social services,
public health, mental health and environmental
health; detention and court support; and general ad-
ministration. The County also provides support for
education, public libraries, and emergency medical
service.

The County represents a primary government as
defined by Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement 14, as amended by Statement 39.
In addition to the primary government, the basic
financial statements include the discrete presen-
tation of three legally separate entities, the Public
Library of Charlotte and Mecklenburg County, the
Mecklenburg County Alcoholic Beverage Control
Board and the Mecklenburg Emergency Medical
Services Agency. These entities are component
units of the County as defined by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.
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State Statutes require the adoption of an annual
balanced budget for all funds, except the agency fi-
duciary funds and those authorized by project ordi-
nance. The final budget, which the Board of County
Commissioners must approve by July 1 each year,
serves as the foundation for the County’s financial
planning and control. The budget is prepared in ac-
cordance with the County’s Strategic Business Plan
that identifies the priority of County programs based
on relevance, performance and efficiency and is or-
ganized by fund, function and department. During
the fiscal year, the County Manager or his designee
is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within
any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total
budget of any fund must be approved by the Board of
County Commissioners.

Local Economy

The County continues to be the second largest finan-
cial center in the United States, the center of the
nation’s sixth largest urban region, with Charlotte, a
mid-sized city, as the largest city. The financial sector
includes the headquarters for Bank of America, a
branch of the Federal Reserve, and Wells Fargo, as
well as mortgage banks, commercial finance and fac-
toring institutions, leasing companies, credit unions
and 31 other banks.

Although the County has been affected by the eco-
nomic downturn that has touched all of the United
States, the number of jobs in the County is higher
than in 2011. The County experienced a .7% increase
in jobs in 2012 compared to 2011. Even though job
growth began to resume in early 2010, it will take
time for the unemployment rate to fall noticeably.
Losses have occurred in construction, allied manu-
facturing and trades, the services sector, transporta-
tion and distribution, and the financial area.

Mecklenburg County’s unemployment rate in
June 2012 was 9.9%. The unemployment rate for
Mecklenburg County in June 2011 was 11.1%. The
rate at June, 2012 was the same as the rate for
North Carolina of 9.9% and higher than the national
rate of 8.4%.

The County has experienced a rebound in home
sales. Home sales increased 18.8% in 2012 compared
to 2011; and the average closing price of homes
increased 1.1% in 2012. The number of building
permits increased an average of 15.46% in year 2012
from 12,968 in 2011.

General governmental revenues have increased

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA



39.8% over the last ten years. Taxes and assess-
ment revenues have increased 55.4% for the same
period, and the contribution to total revenue has in-
creased from 68.7% in fiscal year 2003 to 76.3% in
fiscal year 2012 reflecting the growth in population,
demand for services and decreases in other revenue.
Additionally, governmental expenditures covered
by tax revenues increased from 56.0% in fiscal year
2003 to 81.4% in fiscal year 2012. The contribution of
fee based revenues, licenses and permits as well as
charges for services, to total revenues has declined
over the ten years from 9.1% in fiscal year 2003 to
6.2% in fiscal year 2012 as non-fee based programs
of the County have increased. Intergovernmental
revenues contributed 16.3% to total revenues in
fiscal year 2003, however has dropped to 12.9% in
fiscal year 2012 as state revenues have declined and
the pool of available grant funds has not increased
as fast as the County’s budget.

General governmental expenditures have increased
only 6.9% in the last ten years as the County’s budget
was reduced in recent years to address the economic
downturn. Capital outlay decreased by 70.5% over
the ten year period due to planned reductions in
capital projects. Costs of services continue to in-
crease along with the growth in populations served.
This is particularly true for Detention and Court
Support Services where costs have increased 57.4%
and Land Use and Environmental Services where
costs have increased 17.0%. Business Partners costs
have increased 17.9% over the ten year period re-
flecting the increased contributions for public educa-
tion. Debt service has increased 73.5% over the last
ten years due to the issuance of debt to fund school
and community college construction, renovations or
expansions of existing facilities, the completion of
new courthouse, the purchase of land for future use,
the addition of several branch libraries, as well as
the development of new parks and park facilities.

A more in-depth analysis of revenue and expenditure
trends over the last five years appears on page xx.

Long-term Financial Planning

Providing the additional services that accompany
continued growth, as well as financing the new
schools, community college facilities, parks, librar-
ies and other facilities needed to meet this growth, is
a recurring challenge faced by the County. Financing
capital needs in light of the continuing economic en-
vironment is particularly challenging. The County
is in the process of re-examining its capital program
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to reflect the new economic realities. For fiscal year
2012, the County added new projects as well as
focused on the completion of projects under construc-
tion. The Board of County Commissioners did not
consider a bond referendum during fiscal year 2012.

To aid in annual budgeting, the County utilizes a
three-year strategic plan to achieve short-term ob-
jectives in pursuit of long-term goals identified in
the Board’s Community & Corporate Scorecard.
The current plan, which covers fiscal years 2011 to
2013, has four focus areas: 1) Community Health
and Safety, with the goal of making the community
healthier and safer, reducing violence in the commu-
nity, increasing efficiency of criminal justice services
and reducing disease and mental illness. 2) Effective
and Efficient Government, focuses on providing
services in a highly effective and efficient manner,
concentrating on improving employee efficiency,
reducing costs, improving customer awareness of
County services, and enhancing citizen involvement.
3) Sustainable Community focuses on maintain-
ing/creating a vibrant and diverse economy within
the county while protecting its natural resources
and enhancing the quality of life by concentrating
on air and water quality, preservation of historic
sites, access to public facilities, economic develop-
ment and job opportunities. 4) Social, Education
and Economic Opportunity, focuses on creating an
environment where all County residents can become
self-sufficient and have equal access to services, con-
centrating on literacy and workforce preparedness,
increasing respect/appreciation of ethnic and cul-
tural diversity, and increasing the ability of citizens
to maintain food, clothing and housing needs. The
priority for funding programs and new initiatives
in the budget is based on these focus areas and the
impact of programs on achieving the County’s long
term goals.

Major County Initiatives

Strategic planning and performance measurement
continues to be a major initiative of the County as
it strives to meet the goals of Mecklenburg Vision
2020: “In 2020, Mecklenburg County will be a place
of pride and choice for people to live, work and rec-
reate.” The County has adopted the balanced score-
card methodology to structure and articulate the
Board’s desired results, the corporate strategies
used to achieve these results, and the performance
measures that gauge the level of achievements.

The following accomplishments during fiscal year
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2012 highlight some of the activities County depart-
ments have pursued toward Mecklenburg Vision
2020:

Financial:

The Department of Financial Services issued
new debt to provide funding for capital proj-
ects and restructured debt issues to reduce the
County’s future borrowing costs.

The Department of Financial Services selected
a new custodian for investment securities

that provides the highest level of security for
County investments as required by North
Carolina state statutes.

The Human Services Finance Division was
created to insure payments to providers and
clients are properly processed and state and
federal reimbursements are timely submitted
and received.

Land Use and Environmental Services:

The Office of the Tax Assessor implemented a
new web-enabled listing service for Business
Personal Property customers to list business
property and request extensions online.

The Water and Land Resources Division imple-
mented the 2011 QuickBuy program which re-
sulted in the acquisition of 19 properties in the
floodplain where the structures were severely
damaged as a result of the August 2011 flood.

The Water and Land Resources Division imple-
mented the 2012 Orphan Property Floodplain
Acquisition Plan which identified five neigh-
borhoods with 17 orphan properties to be ac-
quired which would allow large areas of flood
plain to be restored.

The Environmental Health Division imple-
mented a web based application allowing
customers to access applications, invoices and
permits on-line. Customers have indicated a
preference for this level of self-service.

The Water and Land Resources Division imple-
mented the Electronic Plans Management
system for Land Development services which
allows engineers to submit land development
plans electronically instead of couriering large
rolls of plan sets and supporting calculations.

The Code Enforcement Division implemented
the Electronic Plan Submittal and Plan
Review system which replaces the submission
of paper construction documents for commer-
cial projects with fully electronic medium.

A new automated optical sorter was installed
at the County’s Metrolina Recycling Center
that automates the removal of milk and juice
cartons from commingled recyclables thus im-
proving the efficiency of operations.

Health and Human Services:

The Department of Social Services opened a
job resource site to assist participants with
access to employment opportunities, resume
and interview preparation as well as learn-
ing about job readiness and skill development
programs.

The Department of Social Services imple-
mented a Consumer Directed Services/Home
Care Independence pilot program as part

of a State initiative. One of the goals of the
program which assists participants age 60 and
older who are unable to perform activities of
daily living, is to provide maximum choice and
control over the services they need to remain
at home at the highest level of self sufficiency
while maintaining safety.

The Department of Social Services was
awarded three 2012 Achievement Awards and
one Best of Category award presented by the
National Association of Counties. The awards
are conferred on counties that promote quality,
efficient and responsive management and
administration.

The Health Department launched the
Blueprint for a Healthier Generation 2020
which is a community strategic plan for pre-
venting childhood obesity. The plan focuses on
active living and healthy eating.

The Health Department in coordination with
the FDA completed a large scale food sampling
activity which tested for bacteriological, radio-
logical and chemical contaminations in food.

The Heath Department implemented the
Electronic Health Record system which im-
proves continuity of care for patients and
reduces the expense of repeating diagnostic
studies.

The Health Department implemented digital
x-ray technology which has been a major ad-

vancement and efficiency in the Tuberculosis
Control program. This technology eliminates

the need for a daily courier to transport x-ray
films to and from radiology centers.

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA



Detention and Court Support Services:

The Sheriff’s Office received a Justice
Assistance Grant (in the amount of $178,531)
which was used to purchase vehicles, equip-
ment and supplies for programs and commu-
nity services.

The Sheriff’s Office added a culinary voca-
tional program to the already existing car-
pentry and horticulture programs to empower
participants with a skill set that will make
them employable.

Community Support Services:

The Public Library of Charlotte partnered
with Central Piedmont Community College to
offer free workforce development classes to the
public. The class topics included resume build-
ing, computer skills as well as individual job
coaching.

The Public Library of Charlotte offered early
literacy workshops to parents and caregivers
in an effort to get children ready to read by
kindergarten.

The Public Library of Charlotte expanded its
Operation College Launch program by hosting
25 workshops attended by 300 attendees at

11 locations. The programs are designed to
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provide high school students with the informa-
tion they need to prepare for futures beyond
high school.

The Park and Recreation Department in
partnership with the Special Olympics of
North Carolina and Charlotte Mecklenburg
Schools, expanded services offered through
the Therapeutic Recreation’s Young Athletes
program. The expansion increased service
delivery on a weekly basis to 280 preschool
students who have disabilities, increased ser-
vices to 6 schools in 20 pre-k classrooms, and
provided an opportunity for 250 preschool aged
children who have disabilities to attend a day
long field day of events.

The Park and Recreation Department initiated
a Recreation Employment Program for teens
ages 14-17 in 20 recreation centers during a 40
week period. The teens were provided training,
mentoring and work experience to assist them
in preparing for education and/or career paths.

The Park and Recreation Department in part-
nership with the Carolina Panthers and the
Thomas Davis Defending Dreams Foundation
provided free school back packs filled with es-
sential school supplies to over 350 kids.

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
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Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officer’s Association
(GFOA) awarded its Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of
Mecklenburg County for the year ended June 30,
2011. This was the 36th consecutive year that the
County has received this prestigious award. In order
to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the gov-
ernment had to publish an easily readable and effi-
ciently organized CAFR that satisfies both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements. The award is valid for a period of one
year only. We believe the Report for fiscal year 2012
continues to substantially conform to those stan-
dards and this Report is being submitted to GFOA
for the certificate program.

In addition, the County also received GFOA’s
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for
its Fiscal Year 2012 budget document. In order to
qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation
Award, the government’s budget document had to be
judged proficient as a policy document, a financial

plan, an operations guide, and a communications
device.

I appreciate the cooperation of each County depart-
ment as we work together to provide quality services
to the residents and in conducting financial activities
of the County, including preparation of this Report.
I especially commend the members of the Financial
Services Department, particularly, for their compe-
tence and diligence in the continuation of the pro-
gressive financial activities of the County and timely
preparation of this Report.

I thank the Board of County Commissioners and
County Manager Harry L. Jones, Sr. for their lead-
ership in making Mecklenburg County a fiscally
sound, well-governed community.

Respectfully submitted,

g R Doap

Dena R. Diorio
Director of Financial Services

vi
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County Administration and Operations

The nine-member Board of County Commissioners
(the Board) holds regular business sessions on the
first and third Tuesdays of each month and conducts
a Public Policy Workshop on the second Tuesday of
each month. All meetings of the Board are open to
the public. Major duties of the Board include:

= Assessing and assigning priorities to the needs
of the County, and establishing programs and
services to meet those needs.

= Adopting an annual balanced budget to fund
County programs and services.

= Establishing the annual County property tax
rate.

= Appointing officials, including members of
County boards and commissions, and certain
County employees.

= Regulating land use and zoning outside the
jurisdiction of municipalities.

= Enacting policies concerning the operation of
the County.

= Enacting local ordinances.

= Authorizing certificates of participation to fund
capital projects.

= (Calling bond referendums, entering into con-
tracts and establishing new programs and
departments.

Day to day operations of the County are the respon-
sibility of the County Manager. In this capacity he
is assisted by the Executive Team that includes
three General Managers. Reporting directly to the
Executive Team are 16 Department Directors. Major
duties of the County Manager include:
= Supervising and coordinating activities of
County Departments.
= Implementing all orders and policies of the
Board.
= Attending all Board meetings and making
recommendations on appropriate matters of
business.
= Recommending an annual budget and advis-
ing the Board of the financial condition of the
County.
= Presenting, with recommendations, the
Capital Improvements Program.
= Appointing various employees.
= Representing the County in business with
other agencies and performing other duties as-
signed by the Board.

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Facts and Information

The County had 4,520 full-time equivalent employ-
ees at June 30, 2012 to provide the services mandated
by State statutes and to meet the needs identified by
the Board. Table 19 in the Statistical Section pres-
ents the distribution of employees between the core
service areas for the current year and the prior nine
years for comparison.

Fiscal Control

Once the annual budget is adopted each June by the
Board, including setting the property tax rate at a
level necessary to produce sufficient revenue to ac-
commodate the budget, the Director of Financial
Services is responsible for monitoring expenditures
of the various County departments to prevent ex-
penditures from exceeding budget appropriations.
Purchase orders and contracts are not considered
valid until the Director of Financial Services has
certified that funds are available to make payment
upon satisfactory completion of the contract or deliv-
ery of the items ordered.

Tax Rate

The tax rate is set each year by the Board when the
budget ordinance is adopted. Exhibit 1 presents the
County’s tax rates since fiscal year 2008. The N.C.
General Statutes require a real property revalu-
ation at least once every eight years. The County
completed a reappraisal of all real property effective
January 1, 2011. This is the first revaluation since
2003, in compliance with North Carolina statute. For
fiscal year 2008, a tax rate increase of 1.98 cents to
83.87 cents per $100 of assessed value was needed to
meet funding increases to schools, provide necessary
funds for debt service and continue to provide the
many services to the County’s expanding population.

Exhibit 1:
$0.8387 $0.8387  $0.8387  $0.8387 ¢, ¢6e
‘08 ‘09 10 ‘11 12

County Tax Rate
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Facts and Information

Due to the economic changes impacting residents
in the County, the Board of County Commissioners
chose not to adjust the tax rate for fiscal years 2009
through 2011 and in fiscal year 2012 decreased the

tax rate by $0.0221.

Property Taxes
Real property and automobiles, boats, trailers and
income-producing personal property are subject to
property tax unless specifically exempted by North

Carolina statutes. Major property tax exemptions
granted by the statutes include governmental

Exhibit 2:

PROPERTY TAXES IN NORTH CARLOLINA
With Assessed Valuations over $8 Billion

County Valuation Levy Revaluation Tax Rate
Alamance $  $12,120,020,018 $ $67,413,033 2009 $  0.5200
Brunswick 24,256,236,105 109,974,890 2011 0.4425
Buncombe 29,279,593,942 177,110,092 2006 0.5250
Cabarrus 21,112,015,147 136,861,091 2008 0.6300
Carteret 15,083,270,325 50,161,752 2011 0.3000
Catawba 15,091,814,627 84,616,615 2011 0.5300
Chatham 8,801,110,249 60,588,059 2009 0.6219
Craven 9,618,403,349 47,358,561 2010 0.4728
Cumberland 21,444,456,623 170,906,603 2009 0.7400
Currituck 8,312,977,229 27,719,052 2005 0.3200
Dare 17,592,449,146 56,522,692 2005 0.2800
Davidson 12,936,818,496 79,062,267 2007 0.5400
Durham 29,921,778,080 229,918,306 2008 0.7459
Forsyth 33,819,158,196 234,667,962 2009 0.6740
Gaston 14,711,372,065 126,252,343 2007 0.8350
Guilford 45,294,102,631 364,445,299 2004 0.7824
Henderson 12,072,111,562 68,275,605 2011 0.5136
Iredell 20,312,664,452 105,105,662 2011 0.4850
Jackson 11,277,481,548 31,597,333 2008 0.2800
Johnston 13,098,157,024 109,532,288 2011 0.7800
Lincoln 8,243,131,068 32,703,298 2011 0.5980
Macon 9,307,223,580 28,564,442 2007 0.2790
Mecklenburg 117,089,446,050 977,017,580 2011 0.8166
Moore 11,889,705,671 61,060,363 2007 0.4650
New Hanover 34,125,736,669 167,846,019 2007 0.4655
Onslow 12,753,744,212 75,003,275 2010 0.5850
Orange 15,895,422,715 159,622,153 2009 0.8580
Pitt 12,258,124,770 82,765,924 2008 0.6650
Randolph 10,159,738,917 71,220,686 2007 0.5860
Rowan 11,556,118,675 75,837,378 2011 0.6225
Union 23,239,422,895 159,025,183 2008 0.6650
Wake 120,345,849,537 664,285,099 2008 0.5340
Watauga 8,898,459,430 30,605,671 2006 0.3130

Note: Includes valuations of classified registered motor vehicles for which tax notices were issued in accordance
with G.S. 105-330.5(a) on or before December 31, 2011, net releases made by that date.
Source: N.C. Department of Revenue, Tax Research Division
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organizations, charities, religious institutions, edu-
cational and cultural organizations, veterans’ or-
ganizations and fraternal lodges. North Carolina
statutes also exempt certain properties from listing
for property taxes, including burial properties, solid
waste disposal equipment, business inventory, cotton
in storage (under certain conditions), and air and
water pollution equipment. Reduced assessments
are granted to owners of farms, historical properties,
single residences of the elderly, and certain disabled
veterans. For fiscal year 2012, the County’s total ex-
empted or reduced assessments were approximately
$16.5 billion in real and personal property valuation.
Exhibit 2 shows the counties in the State with an as-
sessed valuation exceeding $8 billion as of January
1, 2011, their tax levies and rates.

County Services

The services the County provides for its residents
are categorized into the four major areas described
below.

Health and Human Services

This area includes Social Services, Health, Mental
Health and Community Support Services. The
Board serves as the Board of Social Services, Board
of Health and Area Mental Health Authority.

The Department of Social Services (DSS) provides
the services necessary to prevent or relieve economic
and emotional hardship, and to rally the community
to improve the quality of life for its residents. State
and Federal agencies regulate the County’s social
services programs, and over half the DSS funding
comes from these sources. DSS is charged with the
countywide administration of all social services
programs.

The major divisions of DSS are Economic Services,
Services for Adults and Youth and Family Services.
Economic and temporary assistance programs are
handled through Economic Services and include
Work First, Food Stamps and Medicaid. Youth and
Family Services addresses the special needs of
families and children, providing protective services,
foster care, adoption, and emergency assistance. The
Services for Adults Division provides assistance for
adults and individuals with disabilities, including
Medicaid, adult protective services, senior congre-
gate nutrition, home delivered meals, transporta-
tion, community social work and monitoring of adult
group care homes. All services promote independence
and the highest quality of life in the least restrictive
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environment to delay or eliminate placement in an
institutional setting at a far greater cost.

The Health Department is responsible for assessing
health services in the community, mobilizing com-
munity action to address them and protecting the
health of the public by assuring that essential ser-
vices are provided. Services include health promo-
tion and education, communicable disease control,
clinical preventive services, dental health, public
health laboratory services, epidemiology and vital
statistics.

The Area Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities
and Substance Abuse Authority (Area Mental
Health) administers, coordinates and monitors the
delivery of substance abuse, mental health and de-
velopmental disabilities services and programs for
County residents. A wide range of prevention, treat-
ment and rehabilitation services are available in all
three areas. Services for the severe and persistently
mentally ill, including medication management
and day programs are directly provided through
Area Mental Health’s Case Management Services.
Case management is also provided for severely and
emotionally disturbed youth whose behavior brings
them into conflict with their families, schools and
the courts, as well as for individuals whose develop-
mental disabilities include mental retardation and
autism. Detoxification and residential rehabilitation
services are provided to those residents experienc-
ing the physical and psychological problems associ-
ated with alcohol and drug abuse, while education
services aid in the prevention of substance abuse.
Children’s Developmental Services provides assess-
ment, evaluation and treatment for developmentally
delayed infants and toddlers through age five.

Area Mental Health oversees a wide range of services
and interventions for children and adults that are
contracted for by the County with numerous private
agencies and practitioners through the Behavioral
Health Center Randolph. Inpatient and outpatient
treatment and education services are available at
the Behavioral Health Center Randolph. This over-
sight ensures that treatment services offered deliver
positive clinical outcomes cost-effectively.

Community Support Services provides guidance,
counseling, education and vocational assistance to
promote the well-being and productivity of women,
and provides services to military veterans in the
County.
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Detention and Court Support Services

The Sheriff, Jails, Medical Examiner, Child Support
Enforcement and coordination with the courts fall
within this core service. The Sheriff is responsible
for supervising all activities relating to the jails, pro-
viding bailiffs in courtrooms, serving court orders
and papers and issuing handgun permits. The Jail
North facility, a sentenced jail facility that also
houses youthful offenders with a capacity of 721
inmates, is located in the northern part of the county
and Jail Central, located in downtown Charlotte,
is a pre-trial facility with 1,904 beds. The Work
Release Restitution Center, also located in down-
town Charlotte, has 90 beds. The Medical Examiner
provides autopsy and investigative services to the
County and surrounding counties. Child Support
Enforcement provides child support services to
ensure both parents support their children to extent
of their ability. Court coordination includes admin-
istrative and case management services supporting
the Public Defender’s office.

Land Use and Environmental Services

The services provided by the Land Use and
Environmental Services Agency include listing and
appraising all real and personal property in the
County and regulating the development of land and
construction of residential, commercial and indus-
trial facilities. Other services offered are regulating
solid waste disposal, regulating sanitation of food
and lodging establishments, enforcing groundwater
ordinances, monitoring air pollution and control of
hazardous substances. Some staff members serve,
by law, as agents of the Federal EPA in the enforce-
ment of air quality programs. Also included in this
area are Geospacial Information Services and the
Register of Deeds office that handles deed filings,
land transfers and vital records.

Community Services

Included in this service area are the Public Library
of Charlotte and Mecklenburg County (the Library),
Park and Recreation and the Board of Elections. The
Library, reported as a component unit in the basic
financial statements, provides research services,
access to reading and audio-visual materials as well
as special programs for children and senior citizens
at the Main Library, ImaginOn: The Joe & Joan
Martin Center, and 20 branch libraries. Park and
Recreation offers a variety of educational, cultural
and recreational activities. This is accomplished
through the programs offered to the residents of
the County at the numerous parks, greenways, rec-
reation centers and golf courses located on 18,825
acres of park land throughout the County. The Board
of Elections supervises and manages all activities re-
lating to elections, including voter registration and
the operation of voting sites and services. There are
637,219 registered voters in the County as of August
2012.

Other Service Areas

The four major service areas are supported by
general operating departments organized into the
three areas: Customer Satisfaction and Management
Services, Administrative Services and Financial
Services. Additionally, Business Partners contains
expenditures to the various agencies the County
funds under statutory regulations or contractual
agreement: Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools, Central
Piedmont Community College and Mecklenburg
Emergency Medical Services Agency.
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The County’s Economic Landscape

General Description

Mecklenburg County is located in south central
North Carolina on the South Carolina border.
Situated in the gently rolling Piedmont Region of
the Appalachian Highlands, the County is approxi-
mately 180 miles from the Atlantic coast, 390 miles
southwest of Washington, and 250 miles northeast
of Atlanta. Mecklenburg’s topography varies from
a mean sea level measurement of 840 feet at the
northern end to 532 feet at the southern boundary.
The County has a landmass of 541 square miles
which excludes approximately 26.5 square miles of
water resources provided by Lake Wylie, Mountain
Island Lake, Lake Norman, and the Catawba River.
Mountain Island Lake is the primary source of
usable water for the County. The lakes, all part of
the Catawba River Basin, are utilized in the produc-
tion of electricity and provide recreational areas for
the County.

Exhibit 3:
Mecklenburg County
Population
2012 966,160
2011 938,020
2010 919,628
2009 893,892
2008 869,954

Source: Charlotte
Chamber of Commerce

The County has experienced population growth of
11.1% over the last five years, as presented in the
chart at Exhibit 3 and continues to be the most
populous county in the State. The County enjoys
a relatively comfortable year-round climate that
makes it appealing to residents and industry alike.
The weather includes sunny or partly sunny skies
about eight months out of the year. Extreme tem-
peratures and severe weather are rare. Winters are
mild with a January average low temperature of 32
degrees. The average high temperature in July is 90
degrees. Average rainfall is 43 inches. The combina-
tion of moderate and reasonable humidity makes the
County well suited for commerce and industry.

General Economic Indicators
The Charlotte Chamber of Commerce provided

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Facts and Information

the most recent information on Effective Buying
Income (EBI). EBI is an accepted economic indica-
tor of income after subtracting mandatory taxes.
For calendar year 2011, the County’s EBI decreased
1.7% from calendar year 2010. However, the County
remained above the national average for EBI per
capita for calendar years 2007 through 2011. Exhibit
4 shows that there has not been a significant change
in the EBI per capita for the County or the United
States for the last few years. Both have been ad-
justed to account for inflation.

Exhibit 4:
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Effective Buying Income Per Capita

Mecklenburg U.S.

Gross Retail Sales, generally accepted as a reliable
indicator as to how well an economy is progressing,
is shown in Exhibit 5 for the County. The data is pro-
vided by the North Carolina Department of Revenue.
In fiscal year 2008, the County experienced rela-
tively strong consumer spending and then declined
by 12.0% in 2009. From fiscal year 2010 through
fiscal year 2012 gross taxable sales increased by
22.4% exceeding 2008 gross sales.

Exhibit 5:
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Growth of Tax Base

Exhibit 6 shows the increase in the tax base over
the last five years. Assessments for fiscal year 2008
were $95 billion increasing to $116 billion in 2012,
a 22.1% increase. Fiscal year 2012 was a revalua-
tion year which accounted for the majority of the
increase. Between fiscal years 2008 and 2012, the
general tax levy increased 18.6% from $798 million
in 2008 to $947 million in 2012. The Tax Levy Per
Capita for this period is presented in Exhibit 7.
This measure is achieved using the Implicit Price
Deflator Index (Base year 2000) to adjust the tax
levy for inflation and then applying the annual
county population. The tax levy per capita amount
has remained relatively flat from fiscal years 2009
through 2011. From fiscal year 2008 through 2011,
the tax rate remained unchanged and in 2012 the

Exhibit 7:
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tax rate declined. In fiscal year 2012, the tax levy per
capita increased as a result of an increase in the tax
base due to revaluations.

The County’s ten principal taxpayers, as presented
in Table 9 of the Statistical Section, contribute 6.7%
of total assessed valuation and represent a wide
range of industrial categories. Six of the 10 principal
taxpayers in fiscal year 2012 have consistently been
in this group for the past ten years.

Transportation

Availability of transportation alternatives is a major
draw for attracting businesses to the County. The
County is served by Interstate Highways 77(I-277)
and 85 (I-485), which intersect in Charlotte; by
U.S. Highways 21, 29, 52, 74, 521 and 601; and by
N.C. Highways 16, 24, 27, 49, 51, 73, 115 and 160.
The final segment of the 67-mile 1-485 outer belt
freeway being built around the inside perimeter of
the County is underway. Major expansion, mainte-
nance and improvements of primary and secondary
highways within the County are primarily the re-
sponsibility of the State. Each municipality within
the County bears the primary responsibility for its
local street system; therefore the County has no fi-
nancial obligation with respect to the construction
and maintenance of roads.

To help reduce automobile commuting into Charlotte,
the Blue Line light rail service between downtown
Charlotte and I-485 at the south end of the County
began service in November 2007 with an initial
average daily ridership of 9,100. By June 30, 2012,
the average daily ridership increased to 13,359, an
increase of 46.8%. CATS Lynx blue line operates 20
light rail vehicles and in FY2012 travelled 860,170
miles.

Rail and air service provide strong support for local
commercial operations. The County established an
Inland Port in 1984, a worldwide gateway linking
importers and exporters globally. Charlotte also
offers a Foreign Trade Zone and full U.S. Customs
facilities. The County is served by Norfolk Southern
Railway and CSX Transportation, the country’s
two major rail systems which link the County to 23
states, DC and Canada. Both main line railroads
have junctions within the County and offer recipro-
cal switching among the lines as well as piggyback
facilities that interface with trucking companies in
the area. Amtrak in Charlotte provides north and
south passenger lines that can connect to access
most of the United States.
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Charlotte-Douglas International Airport, the coun-
try’s 6th largest nationwide in operations, is served
by six domestic passenger carriers including AirTran
Airways, American Airlines, Delta Air Lines,
JetBlue Airways, United Airlines and US Airways.
The airport, the largest hub of US Airways, averages
over 725 daily departures and direct /nonstop flights
to 138 destinations nationwide and around the
world. An estimated total of 18.6 million passengers
boarded flights at the airport and over 137,943 tons
of domestic and international cargo were handled
in calendar year 2011. Financial responsibility for
airport operations rests with the City of Charlotte.

Exhibit 8:

Corporations Listed in Million Dollar Directory

Number of
Corporations

Classifications of
Corporations

Services 1,639
Wholesale Trade 629
Construction 592
Manufacturing 455
Finance, Insurance, Real Estate 345
Retail Trade 345
Transportation, Communication, Utilities 205
Other 17
TOTAL 4,227

Employment and the Economy

Exhibit 8 highlights the economic and employment
diversity in the County, and presents corporations
in the County, as compiled by Dun and Bradstreet’s
Million Dollar Directory for 2012.

Exhibit 10:

NUMBER AND VALUE OF BUILDING PERMITS
Mecklenburg County, North Carolina

Value (Millions)

Number of
Calendar Building Non-
Year Permits Residential Residential Total
2011 13,321 $ 7626 $ 1,173.8 $ 1,936.4
2010 12,968 529.3 719.3 1,248.6
2009 11,549 669.8 715.7 1,385.5
2008 16,243 1,473.1 2,240.2 3,713.3
2007 21,462 2,223.7 1,823.4 4,047.1

Source: Land Use and Environmental Services.
Compiled by Charlotte Chamber of Commerce
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Exhibit 9:
11.2%)
10.4%)
8.9%
‘08 ‘09 ‘10 “11 “12

Unemployment Rates
Average For Each Fiscal Year

u.s. [ | Mecklenburg

Eight Fortune 500 companies are headquartered in
the County — Duke Energy, Ruddick, Domtar, Nucor,
Sonic Automotive, Family Dollar, SPX, and Bank of
America. Additionally, Lowe’s, another fortune 500
company is located in nearby Iredell County.

The County has had job losses in the areas of con-
struction, manufacturing, professional services and
transportation as the County experienced the down-
turn in the economy. The job losses contributed to
the County’s unemployment rate of 9.9% by June
30, 2012, which was the same as the State rate and
more than national rate of 8.4%. Exhibit 9 presents
the averaged monthly unemployment rates for each
of the past five fiscal years, per the U. S. Department
of Labor Benchmarked data. Exhibit 9 shows that
the average unemployment for Mecklenburg County
has slightly decreased from 10.4% for fiscal year
2011 to 10.1% for fiscal year 2012.

Exhibit 11:

NEW RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION BY TYPE
Mecklenburg County, North Carolina

(Number of Units)

Calendar Single Multi-
Year Family Family Total
2011 3,050 2,539 5,589
2010 2,958 1,565 4,523
2009 2,224 2,302 4,526
2008 3,758 6,747 10,505
2007 7,494 6,306 13,800

Source: Land Use and Environmental Services.
Compiled by Charlotte Chamber of Commerce
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Overall, the construction industry in the County
has been impacted by the economy consistent with
other parts of the nation. Exhibit 10 shows that the
number of total building permits increased in calen-
dar year 2011 by 2.7% from the prior calendar year,
but are still significantly lower than 2007. Exhibit 11
presents new residential construction by type, which
shows that new construction starts had a 23.6% in-
crease from calendar year 2010 to 2011. With regard
to existing residential home sales, Charlotte has re-
tained home values better than other parts of the
Country. Exhibit 12 shows the average home prices
as of June over the last five years. Home prices have
seen an increase from 2011, with the average home
price at $227,924 at June 30, 2012.

The largest employers by employees have remained
relatively consistent over the last couple of years and
showcase Mecklenburg County’s economic profile.
Some of the largest employers are in the healthcare,
banking, financial services and retail trade industry.
Exhibit 13 presents the firms employing over 2,000
persons in the County, as of April 31, 2012, the most
recent available information.

Exhibit 12:
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Exhibit 13:
Employers of 2,000 or More Persons

20,000 to 29,999
Employees

Carolinas Healthcare System*
Wells Fargo/Wachovia Corporation

10,000 to 19,999
Employees

Bank of America*
Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools*
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

Adecco

City of Charlotte*

Duke Energy Corporation*

Food Lion, Inc.

Lowe’s

Presbyterian Regional Healthcare*
State of North Carolina

US Airways

U.S. Postal Service

5,000 to 9,999
Employees

2,000 to 4,999 AT&T

Employees Belk, Inc.*
Bi-Lo LLC

Bojangles Restaurants, Inc.
Carowinds

Central Piedmont
Community College

Compass Group*

Corestaff Services

CVS Corp

Family Dollar Stores, Inc.*
Fedex Freight Corp

Hilton

Home Depot, Inc.

IBM Corp

Labor Ready, Inc.
Mecklenburg County
Ruddick/Harris Teeter, Inc.*
Target Stores

TIAA-CREF

Time Warner Cable

UNC Charlotte

United Parcel Service

U.S. Government
Windstream Communications
YMCA of Greater Charlotte

*Headquartered in the County. Source: Charlotte Chamber of Commerce
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Public education in the County is provided by the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools, the 18th largest school system
in the nation, based on student enrollment as cited by the National Center for Education Statistics. Exhibit 14
details the enrollment in the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools for the last five years.

Exhibit 14:

CHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURG SCHOOL ENROLLMENT

Average Daily Memberships (ADM) Percent Number
Number ADM of

Year K-5 6-8 9-12 Special Total Enrolled  Enrolled Schools
2011-2012 69,324 30,076 35,596 1,751 136,747 138,012 99.1% 159
2010-2011 67,435 29,737 35,194 1,808 134,174 135,638 98.9% 178
2009-2010 65,832 28,817 35,954 1,858 132,461 133,664 99.1% 176
2008-2009 65,609 29,243 33,968 2,049 130,869 134,060 97.6% 172
2007-2008 64,740 29,222 33,305 2,112 129,379 132,281 97.8% 165

Source: Charlotte-Mecklenburg Board of Education

A nine-member Board of Education is the policy-
making authority. Board of Education members are
elected to four-year staggered terms on a non-par-
tisan basis. Administrative responsibility is vested
in an appointed superintendent who serves as chief
executive officer.

The Board of Education relies upon the County for
local funds needed to support public school current
expense and capital outlay needs. The total fiscal
year 2012 school budget was approximately $1.17
billion: 56.6% provided by the State, 28.1% by the
County (mostly through property taxes), 13.7% by
the federal government and 1.6% other revenue.
Most local funds are used to supplement regular
State salaries, to hire extra teachers not provided
for by the State and for operation and maintenance
of school buildings.

The fiscal year 2012 adopted budget included a
$328.3 million allocation from the County for opera-
tional expenses of the public school system. In ac-
cordance with the N.C. General Statutes, the Board
of Education must present its current expense
and capital outlay budget requests to the County
by May 30 each year. Appropriations to the Board
of Education are discussed in the County’s budget
hearings and the approved amount for the schools
is appropriated in the County’s operating budget
adopted by July 1.

For the 2011-2012 school year, the Board of Education
operated 88 elementary schools, 39 middle schools
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and 28 high schools. There is also a center for stu-
dents who are mentally disabled, a school for teenage
parents, a school for artistically talented students, a
program for the emotionally handicapped, an alter-
native discipline program, five pre-school programs
for four-year-olds with a total enrollment 2,734, and
an alternative school for students benefiting from
additional attention received in a smaller classroom
environment.

The County’s support per student, exclusive of debt
service and based on total enrollment, is shown in
Exhibit 15. The exhibit shows a decrease from fiscal
year 2008 to 2011 because of budget reductions.
From fiscal year 2011 to fiscal year 2012 there was
a slight increase in the support per pupil reflecting
restoration of funding as the economy improved. The
operational costs are adjusted for inflation to 2011
current dollars using the Implicit Price Deflator
Index.

Exhibit 15:
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Charter schools in North Carolina were created
through legislation passed in 1997 by the North
Carolina General Assembly. Charter schools are
separate entities and are not a component of the
local public school system. As part of the funding for
charter schools, the legislation requires a portion of
the local County funds designated for education to
be redirected by the Board of Education to charter
schools. For the 2011-2012 school year, the portion
of local education funds budgeted to be redirected to
the eleven charter schools operating in the County
was $17 million.

Colleges and universities located in the County offer
a range of opportunities for higher education. The
area offers the opportunity to attend exceptional,
small private colleges, church affiliated institutions,
a community college or a large state university.
Exhibit 16 presents the most recent enrollment data
available for colleges and universities within the
County.

The University of North Carolina at Charlotte

system of colleges, is one of the State’s most progres-
sive institutions of teaching, research and public
service. UNC-Charlotte’s doctoral programs include
biology, information technology, electrical engineer-
ing, mechanical engineering and applied mathemat-
ics. It also is one of only three universities in North
Carolina that offer degrees in business administra-
tion at the bachelor’s, master’s and doctoral levels.

Central Piedmont Community College (CPCC) has
been recognized nationally as one of the top three
community colleges in America for teaching experi-
ence. Class instruction occurs at all six campus loca-
tions, the Corporate Training Center and at various
other sites across the County. CPCC received $26.1
million from the County in fiscal year 2012. County
funding is used for operating expenses, salary sup-
plements for professional and clerical employees and
those items that are not funded by the State. The
County also issues bonds and certificates of partici-
pation for CPCC projects that are included in the
Capital Improvements Program and pays the debt

(UNC-Charlotte), part of the State university service on those financings.

Exhibit 16:

Fall 2012 Enroliment Fall 2011 Enroliment
Students Faculty’ Students Faculty’
University of North Carolina at Charlotte 26,322 n/a 25,277 n/a
Central Piedmont Community College 19,470 914 20,110 872
Johnson & Wales University 2,401 119 2,536 115
Queens University of Charlotte 2,272 129 n/a n/a
Pfeiffer University - Charlotte Campus 1,307 79 1,026 77
Davidson College 1,790 177 1,756 176
Johnson C. Smith University 1,646 148 1,543 148
Wingate University - Metro College 449 30 430 35
Charlotte School of Law 1,398 73 1,159 82
Kings College 504 25 548 24
Carolina College of Health Sciences 328 71 426 54
Montreat College 134 58 208 54
Gardner-Webb University - Charlotte Center 297 29 276 26
Brookstone College of Business 108 9 402 12
Wake Forest University - School of Business 164 42 161 42
Lee University 103 10 150 13
Union-PSCE at Charlotte 71 4 67 8

"Includes part-time instructors. UNCC could not provide faculty count. Source: Individual Institutions
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Medical

The medical facilities located in the County and
their respective licensed bed capacities are shown in
Exhibit 17.

Exhibit 17:

Number of
Hospital Licensed Beds
Carolinas Medical Center? 629
Presbyterian Hospital? 607
Carolinas Medical - Pineville! 206
Levine Children’s Hospital 198
Carolinas Medical - Mercy! 162
Presbyterian Orthopedic Hospital? 156
Carolinas Rehabilitation? 129
Presbyterian - Matthews? 117
Carolinas Medical - University? 94
Carolinas Medical Center - Randolph! 66
Presbyterian - Huntersville2 75
Carolinas Speciality Hospital 40
Carolinas Medical Center - Mercy Horizons 11

"Part of Carolinas Healthcare System
2Part of Novant Health Inc.

Cultural and Recreational Activities

Theater, art and music offerings abound throughout
the County. Spirit Square and Discovery Place offer
unique ways to discover and participate in the arts
and sciences. The Mint Museum of Art, the Knight
Theater, the Bechtler Museum of Modern Art and the
Harvey Gantt Center form the new Arts Campus in
uptown Charlotte offering an array of visual arts and
bringing special exhibitions to the County. The North
Carolina Blumenthal Center for the Performing
Arts showcases the best in opera, chorus, symphony,
dance and theater in its 2,100 seat performance hall
and 440 seat theater. ImaginOn, the Joe & Joan
Martin Center, includes a state of the art theater for
children. The County also has its share of historical
sites and museums. The MclIntyre Historic Site was
the scene of a Revolutionary War skirmish and later
a gold mining site. Latta Plantation was built around
1800 and the restored river plantation house is now
included in the park on the plantation site. The old
County Courthouse on East Trade Street is the site
of a monument to the signers of the Mecklenburg
Declaration of Independence. Collections and exhib-
its emphasizing the history of Mecklenburg County
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are housed at the Charlotte Museum of History and
Hezekiah Alexander Homesite. The Museum of the
New South traces the history of the area since the
Civil War.

Concerts by nationally prominent groups and solo
artists at the Time Warner Arena, Ovens Auditorium,
Bojangles Coliseum, Verizon Wireless Amphitheater,
Memorial Stadium, Grady Cole Center, Carowinds
Palladium and North Carolina Music Factory draw
thousands for musical entertainment. The Festival
in the Park is an annual event featuring arts, crafts,
food and music for the entire family. The Carowinds
theme park is also a popular destination for tour-
ists seeking family entertainment. The diverse as-
sortment of recreational and cultural activities helps
make the County the most popular tourist destina-
tion in the State.

The County offers practically any sport or rec-
reational endeavor one would like to pursue.
Recreational pleasures can be enjoyed at any of the
County’s parks or one of its five public golf courses.
County park facilities include tennis courts, swim-
ming pools, spray grounds, community centers,
picnic areas, ball fields, fitness trails, dog parks,
mountain biking, fishing, canoeing, soccer fields, disc
golf courses, playground equipment, an equestrian
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center, a skate park, a dirt bike track and an indoor
water park, Ray’s Splash Planet. The County also
operates a fully-equipped Aquatics Center. Located
10 minutes from downtown Charlotte, the U.S.
National Whitewater Center offers water activities
and is the official home of the U.S. Kayak Team.

The area also offers many opportunities for spec-
tator sports. The Carolina Panthers, an NFL fran-
chise, play at Bank of America Stadium, which seats
73,250. The Charlotte Bobcats, an NBA team, plays
at the 19,026 seat Time-Warner Cable Arena. Lowe’s
Motor Speedway, one of the few super speedways in
the country, is host to three top NASCAR Nextel Cup
events: The Nextel All-star Challenge, the Coca-Cola
600 and the Bank of America 500. The annual Race
Week preceding the Coca-Cola 600 draws thousands
of tourists to the County, while the race is one of the
largest single-day sporting events in the country.
The Nascar Hall of Fame is fueled with more than
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50 interactive experiences like tire-changing sta-
tions, realistic race simulators, a broadcast booth
and even a kids zone. The County and surrounding
areas are also home to the Charlotte Knights, a class
AAA professional baseball team whose parent club is
the Chicago White Sox, and the Charlotte Checkers,
an American Hockey League team affiliated with the
National Hockey League’s New York Rangers. The
Wells Fargo Championship golf tournament is held
at the Quail Hollow Club each May.

Summary

Mecklenburg County is a vibrant growing area that
continues to draw new people and businesses via
relocation. The climate, diversity of industries, cul-
tural opportunities and recreational activities create
a desirable environment for the residents of the
County.
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Five-year trend analysis is provided for the County’s
governmental activities, excluding capital project
revenues and expenditures. Exhibits 1 and 2 present
revenues and expenditures, respectively for the five
fiscal years 2008 through 2012. Revenues are pre-
sented as whole dollars, while the expenditures
are shown on a per capita basis. To eliminate the
effect of inflation and provide a better comparison
of changes between years, both exhibits have been
adjusted using the Implicit Price Deflator Index
(base year = 2000), a nationally recognized indica-
tor of annual economic growth, so that each dollar
in any given year has the buying power of a 2012
dollar.

Revenues

Property taxes are the most significant source of
revenue during the five-year period presented by
Exhibit 1. Approximately 65.7% of total revenue in
fiscal year 2012 came from property taxes, which is
greater than the five year average contribution to
total revenue of 62.3%. Property tax revenues in-
creased 17.3% over the five year period from fiscal
year 2008 to fiscal year 2012. In fiscal year 2012 a
debt service fund was created and is included in the
totals to provide an accurate comparison. Fiscal year
2008 required raising the tax rate to 83.87 cents per
$100 of assessed valuation. The increase was needed
to meet funding increases to schools, to provide the
necessary funds for debt service, and to continue
providing the many services to the County’s expand-
ing population. The $34.6 million increase in prop-
erty tax revenues between fiscal year 2009 and fiscal
year 2011 is due to increases in assessed valuation
as the tax rate remained constant. In fiscal year
2012 the tax rate was reduced to 81.66 cents per
$100 of assessed valuation. The decrease was due to
the $78.3 million increase in property tax revenues
due to increases in assessed valuation.

Intergovernmental revenues fluctuate with the level
of grant awards, and state and federal revenue to the
County. For the five years presented, intergovern-
mental revenues have contributed between 14.4%
in fiscal year 2008 to the 15.2% of revenue in fiscal
year 2011, reflecting the changes in grant awards
and state and federal revenue to the County during
the period and the impact of other revenue changes.
In fiscal year 2012 intergovernmental revenues con-
tributed 12.8%.

Sales tax revenues are collected by the State of North
Carolina and distributed to counties based on a
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combination of point of delivery of the goods sold and
a per capita basis. The County experienced a $68.8
million drop in sales tax revenues from fiscal year
2008 through fiscal year 2011. This is due in part
to the State of North Carolina retaining a one half
cent sales tax to offset the cost of Medicaid and the
balance due to retail sales declining as the economy
slowed. The contribution to total governmental rev-
enues was 14.2% for fiscal year 2012 as compared to
13.2% for fiscal year 2011 and 13.9% for fiscal year
2010.

The percentage of charges for services to total revenue
has seen a gradual decline from 6.6% in fiscal year
2008 to 5.0% in fiscal year 2012. For fiscal years 2008
through 2011, the reductions resulted from reduced
revenues for Land Use and Environmental Services,
the Register of Deeds, and other fee based services
tied to the construction and real estate industries
that have suffered extreme downturns in those four
years. In fiscal year 2012 revenue increased 2.0%
over fiscal year 2011 reflecting a slight increase in
fee-based activities.

Similarly licenses, permit and other revenues con-
tributed average 2.4% to total revenues for fiscal
years 2008 through 2009. For fiscal year 2010, the
contribution to total revenue dropped to 1.7% and
then, grew slightly to 1.9% in fiscal year 2011. In
2012 the contribution to total revenue grew to 2.1%.
This category includes all construction and inspec-
tion permit revenues that continue to be affected by
the downturn in the building trades.

Interest on investments for fiscal year 2012 declined
88.3% from 2008 reflecting the current interest rate
environment. Over the five year period investment
earnings contributed 1.7% for fiscal year 2008, and
then declined to 1.3% in fiscal year 2009, .3% in fiscal
year 2010, and .2% in fiscal years 2011 and 2012.

Expenditures

Customer Satisfaction and Management Services

Thisserviceareaincludesthe County Commissioners,
Manager’s Office, and Public Service and
Information. It represents .7% of total expenditures
for governmental activities for fiscal years 2008 and
2009, increasing to .8% in 2010, and 1.2% in 2011
and decreasing to 1.0% in 2012. Inflation adjusted
expenditures on a per capita basis for this service
area were $10.73 in fiscal year 2008 and remaining
at that level through fiscal year 2010 reflecting a
consistent level of spending in this area from year
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to year and minimal impact from changes in infla-
tion and population growth. In fiscal year 2011, the
County experienced an increase in expenditures on
a per capita basis to $15.77. In fiscal year 2012, ex-
penditures per capita basis decreased to $13.84 due
to reorganization of County departments and popu-
lation growth.

Land Use and Environmental Services

Land Use and Environmental Services represents
4.4% of expenditures for governmental activities for
fiscal year 2008, increasing to 4.5% of total expendi-
tures in fiscal year 2009, declining to 4.0% in fiscal
year 2010, and remained steady at 4.1% in 2011 and
2012. Code Enforcement, Storm Water, Property
Assessment and Land Records, Environmental
Protection and Environmental Health, plus the
Register of Deeds comprise this service area which
has been affected significantly by the downturn in
the economy. During the last five years inflation ad-
justed cost per capita increased from $68.73 for fiscal
year 2008 to $69.59 for fiscal year 2009 then de-
creased to $58.16 in fiscal year 2010, with a slight de-
crease in 2011 to $55.53 and again in 2012 to $54.43.
These expenditures reflected a strong construction
industry that flourished in the County through fiscal
year 2009. In fiscal year 2010, code enforcement and
building inspection activity declined and these areas
reduced spending.

Community Services

Community Services includes Park and Recreation,
Board of Elections and the Public Library of
Charlotte and Mecklenburg County. For fiscal years
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2008 through 2012 cost per capita for this service
area has ranged from a high of $92.39 in fiscal year
2009 to $58.19 in the current year, with an average
of $78.53 for the five year period. The decrease in per
capita expenditures reflects the overall economic at-
mosphere that caused County departments to reduce
spending in fiscal year 2010 and continuing in 2011
and 2012. There are fewer park and recreation pro-
grams; libraries plus other community service costs
cut to meet the County’s reduced spending budgets.

Health and Human Services

County operations for Social Services, Public
Health, Mental Health and Community Support
Services are the primary departments in this service
area. The cost for these services has decreased from
$315.3 million in fiscal year 2008 to $304.1 million in
fiscal year 2010. Fiscal year 2011 spending dropped
to $287.6 million due to changes in mental health
spending. Fiscal year 2012 saw an additional drop
in spending to $259.7 reflecting a decrease in the
County’s’ Behavior Health Center funding. As a
percent of total expenditures, this functional area
has dropped from 23.1% in fiscal year 2008 to 20.3%
of total expenditures for governmental activities in
fiscal year 2012, as other functional areas have grown
more. Inflation-adjusted expenditures in Health and
Human Services on a per capita basis have declined
from $362.48 in fiscal year 2008 to $268.83 in fiscal
year 2012, reflecting reduce spending as well as
the 11.1% growth in population during the period.
Exhibit 2 excludes federal and state benefit pay-
ments made directly by the State to County social
services clients.

Detention and Court Support Services

Detention and Court Support Services includes the
Medical Examiner, Criminal Justice Services, Child
Support Enforcement, and Sheriff’s Office, which is
responsible for jail operations and coordination with
the courts. This service area has increased from
7.9% of expenditures for fiscal year 2008 to 9.8%
of expenditures for fiscal year 2012. Expenditures
have increased 16.0% from fiscal year 2008 to 2012,
resulting primarily from growth of jail operations.
Detention and Court Support Services inflation-
adjusted expenditures on a per capita basis have
increased from $124.60 in fiscal 2008 to $130.12 in
fiscal year 2012 as the costs of service in this area in-
creased more than the increase in population of the
County over the five year period.

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA



Administrative Services

This service area consists of County
internal and administrative ac-
tivities that provide management
support to other County depart-
ments and operations. Included
here are Internal Audit, Human
Resources, Information Services
and Technology, and Real Estate
Services. Administrative Services
represent 5.3% of expenditures for
governmental activities. The cost
per capita slightly increased from
$69.73 in fiscal year 2008 to $70.57
in fiscal year 2012. The increase in
earlier years was partially due to
funding for the retiree medical bene-
fits to comply with GASB Statement
45.

Financial Services

Resource management is the focus
of this service area that consists
of Central Finance, Human Services Finance and
Tax Collection. Expenditures for this service area
represent .7% of expenditures for governmental
activities in fiscal year 2008 and remained steady
through 2010, increasing to .8% in 2011 and to 1.4%
in 2012. Expenditures increased from $9.3 million in
fiscal year 2008 to $17.7 million in fiscal year 2012.
Expenditures per capita increased from $10.67 in
fiscal year 2008 to $18.35 in fiscal year 2012 reflect-
ing the effect of inflation and the creation of the
Human Services Finance Division.

Business Partners

Allocations and appropriations to other governmen-
tal entities and joint governmental activities are in-
cluded in this service area that represents 33.4% of
expenditures for governmental activities. Primary
recipients of County funding are the Charlotte-
Mecklenburg Schools, Central Piedmont Community
College, and the Mecklenburg Emergency Medical
Services Agency, a component unit of the County.
Funding to the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools
is the primary Business Partner expenditure.
Allocations to the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools
for current operations and capital outlay increased
from $346.6 million in fiscal year 2008 to $351.6
million in fiscal year 2009 due to providing addi-
tional support to the schools for increased student
enrollment. In the interim, school expenditures were
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reduced from $316.3 in fiscal year 2010 and again
in 2011 to $307.2 in accordance with the decreases
in county revenues. In fiscal year 2012 allocations
were increased to $333.3 for current operations and
capital outlay. Business Partners expenditures have
decreased from $473.1 million in 2008 to $427.8
million in fiscal year 2012. The per capita expendi-
tures for the five year period have decreased from
$543.88 in fiscal year 2008 to $442.74 in fiscal year
2012, as the expenditures are spread over an in-
crease in population.

Debt Service

Debt Service, which consists of principal and inter-
est payments for debt issued for County projects
and debt issued for the Charlotte-Mecklenburg
Schools, Central Piedmont Community College, and
the Public Library, increased from $234.8 million
in fiscal year 2008 to $256.5 million in fiscal year
2012, primarily to meet the construction needs of the
school system and CPCC. Debt service as a percent
of total governmental expenditures has increased
from 17.2% in fiscal year 2008 to 20.0% in fiscal year
2012, reflecting debt issuance from fiscal years 2007
through 2009, no debt issuance in fiscal years 2010
and 2011 and a decrease in 2012 due to the refund-
ing of existing debt at a lower interest rate. These
are also reflected in the debt service expenditures
per capita of $269.97 in fiscal year 2008 and $265.52
in fiscal year 2012.
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The Financial Section constitutes the core of the report. The independent

auditors’ report covers the basic financial statements and the notes to the

statements. Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides a narrative
introduction, overview and analysis of the statements that follow.

uonoag [e1oueuly



CHERRY
RT&.

BEKAE|
HOLLAND

CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable Members of the Board
of County Commissioners
Mecklenburg County, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina (the
“County”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the County’s
basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the
Mecklenburg County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (the “ABC Board”). Those financial
statements were audited by another auditor whose report has been furnished to us, and our
opinion on the financial statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the ABC
Board, is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the
Mecklenburg Emergency Medical Services Agency and the ABC Board were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit and the report of the other auditor provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditor, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County,
as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 29, 2012, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Required Supplementary Information as listed
in the Table of Contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s financial statements as a whole. The Introduction section,
Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules, and Statistical section are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial
statements. The Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. The
Introduction and Statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide assurance on them.

UM\\Ql.\ & 'kl‘t..s.._u_h?‘_

Raleigh, North Carolina
October 29, 2012



Introduction

Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides a
narrative discussion of the County’s financial activi-
ties as a whole for the year ended June 30, 2012 with
comparisons to the prior year, where appropriate.
The information complements the data presented
in the basic financial statements. Its purpose, along
with the material in the Transmittal Letter in the
Introduction, is to enhance the reader’s understand-
ing of the County’s financial performance.

Highlights Of The Year

= On the Statement of Net Assets (Deficit), li-
abilities exceed assets reflecting the County’s
legal responsibility to issue and pay for debt,
primarily general obligation bonds, for the
Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools, Central
Piedmont Community College, the Public
Library of Charlotte and Mecklenburg County,
and WTVI, the local public television station
as well as for Mecklenburg County. The assets
acquired with the debt are owned by each
of these governmental units, and therefore,
the assets are not included in the County’s
Statement of Net Assets (Deficit).

= For the year ended June 30, 2012, the
Statement of Activities reflects an increase in
net assets of $267.3 million as compared to
an increase in net assets in the prior year of
$193.2 million, resulting from a 1.3% increase
in operating expenses as well as an increase of
6.6% in revenues, both program and general.

= The governmental funds total fund balances
increased by $212.3 million from the prior year
total ending fund balance of $464.2 million.
The increase is the result of higher than ex-
pected revenues in property tax, sales tax,
construction permits, charges for services and
a decrease in investment income. Of the $676.5
million of governmental fund balances, total
fund balance of $314.6 million is available for
future years’ spending as unassigned fund
balance.

= The unassigned fund balance of the General
Fund at June 30, 2012 is $324.2 million, which
represents 30.6% of fiscal year 2013 budgeted
General Fund expenditures or 110 days of op-
erating balances.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Overview

The basic financial statements consist of three com-
ponents: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the fi-
nancial statements. Several schedules of required
supplementary information, as well as combin-
ing and other individual fund schedules required
by State statute, follow the notes to the financial
statements.

Reporting The County As A Whole

Government-wide financial statements consist of the
Statement of Net Assets (Deficit) and the Statement
of Activities. Both of these statements provide data
about the County’s financial activities as a whole
and present a longer-term view of the County’s fi-
nances. These statements use the accrual basis of
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used
by most private-sector businesses. All of the current
year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account
regardless of when cash is received or paid. The
Statement of Net Assets (Deficit) presents assets
less liabilities equal net assets, thus presenting the
County’s financial position at the end of the fiscal
year, while the Statement of Activities presents
information showing how the County’s net assets
changed during the fiscal year.

The Statement of Net Assets (Deficit) and the
Statement of Activities divide the County’s opera-
tions into three types of activities:

*» Governmental activities — those activities
supported primarily by taxes and intergov-
ernmental revenues. The following eight core
service areas comprise the County’s gov-
ernmental activities: Customer Satisfaction
and Management Services, Administrative
Services, Financial Services, Land Use and
Environmental Services, Community Services,
Detention and Court Support Services, Health
and Human Services, and Business Partners.

= Business-type activities — those activi-
ties that recover a significant portion of their
costs through user fees and charges. The Solid
Waste Enterprise Fund and the MeckLink
Fund are the County’s business-type activities.

= Component Units — these are separate or-
ganizations for which the County provides
financial support and/or appoints their gov-
erning board. The Public Library of Charlotte
and Mecklenburg County, the Mecklenburg
County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board and
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the Mecklenburg Emergency Medical Services
Agency are each component units of the
County.

The government-wide statements follow
Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

Reporting The County’s Significant Funds

Funds are sets of self-balancing accounts that reflect
the assets, liabilities, fund balance/retained earn-
ings, revenues and expenditures/expenses of re-
sources that are segregated for specific activities or
for compliance with legal provisions. The funds used
by the County can be divided into three categories:

= Governmental funds: Most of the County’s
services are reported in governmental funds,
which focus on the flows of money into and out
of those funds and the balances left at year-
end that are available for spending. These
funds are reported using the modified accrual
method of accounting, which measures cash
and all other financial assets that can readily
be converted to cash. Such information may
be useful in evaluating the resources avail-
able to finance County programs in the near
future. The Reconciliation of the Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities
allows the reader to compare the information
presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for the governmental
activities.

The County’s governmental funds are: the
General Fund; the Debt Service Fund; seven
Special Revenue Funds established under
the provisions of the North Carolina General
Statutes which account for revenues that are
restricted for special purpose expenditures;
and fourteen Capital Projects Funds, includ-
ing the Certificates of Participation Fund,
which account for the proceeds of bond issues
and all other resources used for the purpose
of constructing or purchasing all aspects of
capital assets. The General Fund and the
Debt Service Fund are presented individually
on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances, because they
meet the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) definition of a major fund for
reporting purposes. The remaining govern-
mental funds are combined into a single,

aggregated presentation titled Nonmajor
Funds. Individual fund data for each of the
Nonmajor governmental funds is provided in
the section, Combining and Individual Fund
Financial Statements and Schedules.

The County adopts an annual appropriated
budget for the General Fund. The Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance — Budget and Actual for the General
Fund provides a budgetary comparison of

the adopted budget, final budget and actual
expenditures.

= Proprietary funds: The Solid Waste Enterprise
Fund and the MeckLink Fund are the County’s
proprietary funds and are presented in the
business-type activities column of the gov-
ernment-wide financial statements, because
those funds operate similar to private business
enterprises.

* Fiduciary funds: The County established the
Post-employment Healthcare Benefit Fund to
account for contributions and expenditures
related to providing healthcare benefits to
qualified retired County employees in ac-
cordance with the guidelines of Government
Accounting Standards Board Statement 43.
Also, the County holds certain resources for
the benefit of employees and parties outside
the government, which are accounted for as
agency funds. Since the resources of these
funds are not available to finance County
programs, the funds are not included in the
government-wide financial statements.

Notes To The Financial Statements

The information reported in the notes to the fi-
nancial statements provides additional disclosures
necessary to a complete understanding of the data
presented in the government-wide and fund finan-
cial statements.

Other Financial Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and ac-
companying notes, the report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the
Law Enforcement Special Separation Allowance and
the Post Employment Health Benefits. Required
supplementary information follows the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Following the required supplementary information are the combining schedules for the Nonmajor governmen-
tal funds and the fiduciary funds. These include budget/actual schedules for the Special Revenue Funds, the
Enterprise Funds, the Grants Capital Project Fund, as well as the Landfill Construction, Final Development

and Postclosure Reserve Fund.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The following summarizes Net Assets (Deficit) at June 30, 2012 and 2011:

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) (in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Assets
Current and other assets $ 863,461 $ 623,942 $ 46,288 $ 32,152 $ 909,749 $ 656,094
Capital assets, net 984,569 979,834 55,455 50,822 1,040,024 1,030,656
Total Assets 1,848,030 1,603,776 101,743 82,974 1,949,773 1,686,750
Liabilities
Current and other liabilities 108,762 79,902 2,504 662 111,266 80,564
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year 182,033 187,338 1,147 1,004 183,180 188,342
Due after one year 1,861,400 1,903,728 21,870 9,381 1,883,270 1,913,109
Total Liabilities 2,152,195 2,170,968 25,521 11,047 2,177,716 2,182,015
Net Assets (Deficit)
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 554,597 499,386 50,534 49,670 605,131 549,056
Restricted 231,259 139,415 16,602 8,425 247,861 147,840
Unrestricted (Deficit) (1,090,021) (1,205,993) 9,087 13,832 (1,080,934) (1,192,161)
Total Net Assets (Deficit) $  (304,165) (567,192) 76,223 $ 71,927 $ (227,942) $ (495,265)

While total net assets are often considered a useful
indicator of a government’s financial position, it
does not adequately reflect the County’s position.
In accordance with the North Carolina General
Statutes, the County is the issuer and payer of debt
for capital purposes for the Charlotte-Mecklenburg
Schools, Central Piedmont Community College, and
the Public Library of Charlotte and Mecklenburg
County. This debt, which totals $1.385 billion at June
30, 2012, is recorded in long-term liabilities with no
offsetting capital assets recorded, as the assets are
owned by the agencies. The agencies use the debt
proceeds to acquire or construct capital assets. The
effect of this accounting is to distort Net Assets of
the County, creating a deficit in Net Assets. The
deficit in Net Assets decreased from $495.3 million
to $227.9 million, a change of 54% resulting from a
total assets increase of 15.6 % while total liabilities
decreased .2%. The contribution to net assets from
revenues and expenditures increased from a gain
of $193.2 million at June 30, 2011 to $267.3 million
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at June 30, 2012. These changes relate to a reduc-
tion in spending as well as an increase of expected
revenues such as property taxes. Invested in capital
assets, net of any related outstanding debt of those
assets, relates to County only activities. This amount
increased from $549.1 million at June 30, 2011 to
$604.4 million at June 30, 2012 as new assets were
acquired and the associated debt declined. In 2012,
the County issued new debt and retired some exist-
ing debt. Capital assets include land, buildings, ve-
hicles, equipment, computer equipment and other
machinery used in providing services to residents.
Also, net assets of $147.8 million at June 30, 2011
and $247.9 million at June 30, 2012 represent re-
sources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. The decrease in the deficit
unrestricted net assets is the result of the increase
in assets and the increase contribution to net assets
of operations. Net assets do not present the County’s
position regarding spending, which is presented in
the governmental funds statements.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The County experienced an addition to net assets this year, as indicated in the following table of changes in net
assets for the year ended June 30, 2012, with comparison to the prior year, for both governmental and business-
type activities.

Note 5 to the Basic Financial Statements explains in detail the capital asset activities for year ended June 30,
2012.

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) (in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities | Total Primary Government
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
REVENUES
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 97,268 $ 90,131 $12,394 $ 12,350 $ 109,662 $ 102,481
Operating grants
and contributions 182,135 204,812 109 64 182,244 204,812
Capital grants and
contributions 2,364 2,576 - - 2,364 2,640
General Revenues: - -
Property taxes 941,943 862,727 - - 941,943 862,727
Sales taxes 204,862 178,706 - - 204,862 178,706
Other taxes 11,222 10,383 - - 11,222 10,383
Investment income 2,878 3,052 243 238 3,121 3,290
Other 323 4,403 4,752 4,403 5,075
TOTAL REVENUES 1,442,672 1,352,710 17,149 17,404 1,459,821 1,370,114
EXPENSES
Program Expenses:
Customer Satisfaction and
Management Services 13,385 14,829 - - 13,385 14,829
Administrative Services 68,640 66,878 - - 68,640 66,878
Financial Services 13,481 14,865 - - 13,481 14,865
Land Use and
Environmental Services 50,383 50,518 - - 50,383 50,518
Community Services 62,444 74,659 - - 62,444 74,659
Detention and Court
Support Services 139,861 127,614 - - 139,861 127,614
Health and Human Services 261,719 290,065 - - 261,719 290,065
Business Partners 473,884 441,256 - - 473,884 441,256
Interest Expense 94,148 82,964 - - 94,148 82,964
Solid Waste Operations - - 14,553 13,273 14,553 13,273
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,777,945 1,163,648 14,553 13,273 1,192,498 1,176,921
EXCESS IN NET ASSETS 264,727 189,062 2,596 4,131 267,323 193,193
before transfers
Transfers (1,700) - 1,700 - (688,458) -
EXCESS IN NET ASSETS $ 263,027 (189,062) $ 429 $ 4,131 $ 267,323 $ 193,193
Beginning of year (567,192) (756,254) 71,927 67,796 (495,265) (688,458)
End of year $ (304,165) (567,192) $ 76,223 $ 71,927 $ (227,942) $ (495,265)
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Governmental-Type Activities

Program revenues covered 25.4% of County expenses
at June 30, 2011 and 23.7% at June 30, 2012, with
general revenues covering the balance of expenses.
The change in net assets for the year ended June
30, 2012 results from reductions in spending and
an increase in revenue — primarily property taxes,
sales taxes and charges for services. Property tax
revenues increased $79.2 million (9.2%) from the
prior year, primarily due to increases in the tax base.
Sales tax revenue increased $26.1 million (14.6%)
from fiscal year 2011 reflecting the economic recov-
ery. Investment income decreased $.02 million (5.7%)
from the year ended June 30, 2011 due to the decline
in rates in the investment market. Charges to users
of County services generated revenues that sup-
ported 8.3% of County governmental operations for
fiscal 2012 and 7.8% for fiscal year 2011. The County
continued its strategy to secure a maximum amount
of grant funds provided by state and federal agen-
cies. However, grant funds available were reduced
as federal stimulus funding ended. Revenues from
grants decreased $22.7 million (11.1%) in fiscal year
2012. The County covered 15.5% of expenses with
grant revenues in fiscal year 2012 and 17.8% in
fiscal year 2011.

Business-Type Activities

The Solid Waste Enterprise Fund accounts for re-
cycling programs and operation of the landfill.
Revenues are generated from several sources: an
annual residential solid waste disposal fee of $15 per
residential unit, landfill tipping fees for residential
waste are $27.50 per ton for fiscal year 2012, reflect-
ing a 3.8% increase over fiscal year 2011 and a fee of
$39 per ton charge for commercial waste, disposal
fees and recycling sales. The business-type activity
contributed 1.3% to the primary government’s total
revenue for fiscal year 2012 and 1.3% for the fiscal
year 2011. Change in net assets, also considered
income, increased $.2 million from the prior year’s
$4.1 million primarily due to operating income being
higher as a direct result of single stream recycling
which began July 1, 2010. The $4.3 million was re-
tained by the activity for its future operations.

The MeckLink Enterprise Fund was established in
fiscal year 2012. This fund accounts for activities
related to the delivery of services to individuals with
mental illness, intellectual and developmental dis-
abilities and substance abuse disorders. In fiscal
year 2012, startup costs of $309,000 were incurred.
Full implementation for this business-type activity
is scheduled for February 2013.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Financial Analysis Of The County’s Funds

The County uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental funds focus on the inflows and out-
flows of current financial resources and measure the
change in net spendable resources during the year.
Such information is useful in assessing the County’s
financing requirements. In particular, committed,
assigned, and unassigned fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of net resources available for
spending at the end of the year. The County’s govern-
mental fund types include the General Fund, Debt
Service Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Capital
Projects Funds.

General Fund

The General Fund, which is a major fund and the
County’s primary operating fund, had a fund balance
of $458.8 million of which $95.1 million is restricted
for Stabilization by State Statute and $484,173 is re-
stricted for Land Use & Environmental Services and
Health and Human Services; $7.6 million is commit-
ted for Detention and Court Support Services, $11
million is committed for Health and Human Services,
$7.5 million is committed for Capital Reserve and
$6.5 million is committed for Technology Reserve and
$350,000 is committed for Administrative Services.
In addition, of the $458.8 million of fund balance in
the General Fund, $4.4 million is assigned to Land
Use & Environmental Services, $1.3 million is as-
signed to Detention & Court Services, and $300,000
is assigned to Community Services. $324.2 million
of the $458.2 million in the General Fund is unas-
signed. The General Fund total revenues were more
than budget by $32.5 million, and revenues exceeded
expenditures by $134.3 million, as explained more
fully below.

Revenues for the General Fund decreased $185.6
million, or 14.5% from fiscal 2011:

» In fiscal year 2012, a separate Debt Service
Fund was established to account for the
payment of the County’s debt service and the
accumulation of resources for the County’s
debt service. In fiscal year 2011, revenues col-
lected in the General Fund were used to pay
debt service. In fiscal year 2012, revenues
to pay debt service are budgeted in the Debt
Service fund where the payment of debt
service is made. Revenues posted to the Debt
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Service Fund in 2012 were:

$224.2 million in property taxes

$38.2 million in sales taxes

$12.3 million in intergovernmental revenue
$1.8 million in other revenue

Property tax revenues reported in the General
Fund decreased $144.9 million (17.2%) from
fiscal year 2011. As noted above, $224.2 million
of collected property taxes for fiscal year 2012
were reported in the Debt Service Fund not

in the General Fund as in fiscal year 2011. In
fiscal year 2012, total collection rates were
more than the prior year. Current year collec-
tions represented 98% of the current year levy,
while total tax collections represented 98% of
the current year’s tax levy an increase from
prior year’s percentage (97.8%).

Sales tax revenues reported in the General
Fund were $131.2 million, a decrease of $16.4
million from fiscal year 2011. However $38.2
million of sales tax revenue received in fiscal
year 2012 is reported in the Debt Service
Fund. The County experienced an increase in
total sales tax revenue from fiscal year 2011 of
$21.8 million.

Intergovernmental revenues totaled $169.4
million as compared to $196.4 million for fiscal
year 2011. The change in revenue levels in the
General Fund results from reporting $12.3
million of intergovernmental revenue in the
Debt Service Fund as well as a decrease in
grant funding. State and federal grant funds
supported 175 service programs of varying size
and complexity to help accommodate service
needs of County residents while minimizing
local costs. Grant programs are summarized in
Exhibit 1.

|
Exhibit 1:
GRANT PROGRAMS
All Funds
Revenue
Program Category Number (millions)
Social Services 62 $116.1
Mental Health 19 29.1
Health 40 34.8
Other 54 6.2
Total 175 $186.2

» Charges for services revenue increased 3.5%
($1.9 million) from the prior year. Licenses
and permit fees increased 22.8% ($3.2 million)
from the prior year due to improvements in the
construction industry. Charges for services in-
creased due to some recovery in the economy.

» Interest earned on investments declined 15%
from the amount received in fiscal year 2011,
to $2.5 million. The decline results from a
decline in interest rates and reduced cash
available for investment. The County follows
sound investment practices and strives to max-
imize invested balances and interest earnings
within the parameters of allowable investment
vehicles.

The composition of the General Fund revenue dollar
(including Debt Service revenue) for fiscal years
2012 and 2011 are illustrated in Exhibit 2.

General Fund expenditures decreased $241.3 million
(20.1%) over those of last year. In fiscal year 2012,
$254.1 million of debt service expenses are now re-
ported in the Debt Service Fund which was previ-
ously reported in the General Fund.

Exhibit 2:

Revenue Sources -

64.2% | M Property Taxes, penalties and Interest| 66.3%
15.5% Intergovernmental Revenue 15.3%
12% Sales Tax 11.5%
5.2% Charges for Services 4.3%
1.6% | M Other 1.3%
1.3% Licenses and Permits 1.1%
0.2% | M Interest earned on investments 0.2%

Fiscal Year
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Exhibit 3 graphically illustrates the County’s expenditure dollar for the two years including debt service.

Exhibit 3:

Expenditures by Core Service - Fiscal Year

31.1% | M Business Partners 30.7%

21.2% Health and Human Services 23.9%

20.8% Debt Service 20.9%

10.3% | M Detention and Court Support Services 9.4% A
4.6% Community Services 5.3%
5.4% | M Administrative Services 4.3%
4.3% Land Use and Environmental Services 3.1%

1.1% | M Customer Satisfaction and Management| 1.2%

1.2% Financial Services

The fiscal year 2012 General Fund adopted budget
reflected an 18.4% ($234.2 million) decrease from the
fiscal year 2011 budget. As stated earlier, in fiscal
year 2012, a Debt Service Fund was established to
account for payment of the County’s debt service and
the accumulation of resources for the County’s debt
service. The adopted budget for fiscal year 2012 for
the Debt Service Fund was $269 million.

Fiscal year 2012 results represent a refocus on the
County’s core services. Some variances, such as Health
and Human Services (9.7% decrease) result from grants
where program spending did not reach expected levels.
Required service areas such as Detention and Court
Support Services, increased by 10.8%. Other functional
areas, particularly Land Use and Environmental
Services, experienced an increase in spending of 5.8%
due to the improvement in the economy.

Current expenditures for education, both the
Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools and Central Piedmont
Community College, as well as the County’s contribu-
tion to the Mecklenburg Emergency Medical Services
Agency and other outside agencies are included in
Business Partners. Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools and
Central Piedmont Community College expenditures
comprise 94.4% of Business Partners expenditures.
Funds for the current operations of the Charlotte-
Mecklenburg Schools were $333.3 million, $26.1 million
more than the amount allocated for fiscal year 2011.
Funding to Central Piedmont Community College was
$26.2 million, an increase of 9.4%. These changes, plus
adjustments to other outside agencies resulted in an
overall increase in expenditures to Business Partners
of $11.2 million from fiscal year 2011.
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1.2%

Debt Service Fund

In fiscal year 2012, a Debt Service Fund was estab-
lished to account for payment of and the accumula-
tion of resources for the County’s debt service. The
adopted budget of the fund was $269 million fiscal
in year 2012. In fiscal year 2011, the County’s debt
service was accounted for in the General Fund. Debt
service, which has two components, decreased by
$2 million (.8%) over fiscal year 2011. General debt
service, which covers the capital needs of the County,
primarily libraries, courts and parks and recreation,
decreased $2.8 million from the prior year. The
second component, debt service related to education,
both for the Charlotte-Mecklenburg schools and
Central Piedmont Community College, increased
only slightly by 1% due to debt restructuring.

Special Revenue Funds

Total revenues for the seven Special Revenue Funds
decreased $2.7 million (4.0%) from the prior year.
The change in revenue is primarily attributable to
the following: $.6 million decrease in law enforce-
ment service district taxes and intergovernmental
revenues related to storm water grants decreased
$6.5 million. The decreases were offset by increases
including an increase in the Transit One-Half Cent
Sales Tax of $4.4 million and an increase in other
revenues of $.5 million.

Capital Projects Funds

More than half of each year’s expenditures are for
construction, renovations and improvements to
school facilities. The increase in expenditures of
55.3% between years results from the County’s focus



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

on completing projects as well as adding new capital
projects. Funding for capital projects is supplied by
proceeds from new bonds, unexpended bond pro-
ceeds and pay-as-you-go annual funding appropri-
ated in the adopted budget.

Based on the above discussion of the government-
wide and fund financial statements, and considering
the County’s Triple A bond rating and debt capacity,
which are discussed below and in the Notes to the
Basic Financial Statements, the overall financial po-
sition of the County continues to be strong.

GENERAL FUND BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS

The County’s annual balanced budget is prepared
on the modified accrual basis of accounting in ac-
cordance with the Budget and Fiscal Control Act of
the North Carolina General Statutes, and includes
all appropriations required for debt service. The
General Fund is the most significant fund budgeted.

Statutory provisions allow the budget to be amended
during the year. The County Manager or his desig-
nee is authorized to transfer budget amounts within
funds. All budget amendments that alter the total
budget of a fund must be approved by the Board.
The General Fund, as the primary fund support-
ing all major activities of the County, is monitored
closely by the Director of Financial Services for pos-
sible revenue shortfalls or potential overspending.
Purchase orders and contracts are not considered
valid until the Director of Financial Services has cer-
tified the funds are available to make payment upon
satisfactory completion of the contract or delivery of
the items ordered.

The County revised the General Fund budget on
several occasions throughout the year. Generally,

budget amendments fall into one of three categories:
1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that
are used to prepare the original budget ordinance
once exact information is available; 2) amendments
made to recognize new funding amounts from ex-
ternal sources, primarily Federal and State grants;
and 3) increases in appropriations that become nec-
essary to maintain services. Amendments adopted
during the year increased the overall general fund
budget $19.1 million primarily for increases to grant
funded activities.

General Fund revenues were more than final budget
by $32.5 million (3.0%) reflecting increased property
tax collections ($28.3 million), an increase in sales tax
distributions ($12.2 million) and increase in license
and permits ($2.7 million). Intergovernmental rev-
enues were less than budget ($10.3 million) due to a
decrease in grant funding and state programs.

General Fund expenditures were under budget
$99.6 million, a variance of 10.4% from the final
budget. This results from departments and busi-
ness partners reduced spending as well as encum-
brances remaining outstanding at June 30, 2012, as
these amounts are not included in the GAAP actual
numbers. Some variances, such as Health and
Human Services ($69 million), include varied grant
and state program spending which did not reach ex-
pected levels as well as a decrease in spending of $22
million for behavioral health services. Land Use and
Environmental Services expenditures varied $6.2
million from budget due to state program spending
not reaching expected levels.

CAPITAL ASSETS
The County’s investment in capital assets, net of

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

(in thousands)

Description Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Land $ 436,841 $ 427,419 $ 28,688 $ 28,688 $ 465,529 $ 456,107
Construction in progress 62,754 56,100 4,306 1,160 67,060 57,260
Land Improvements 34,272 35,821 7,395 7,713 41,667 43,534
Buildings and Improvements 429,815 440,144 7,045 6,788 436,860 446,932
Vehicles and Heavy Equipment 6,774 7,539 1,293 1,828 8,067 9,367
Furniture, Machinery and
Equipment 4,661 5,106 6,728 4,645 11,389 9,751
Computer Software 9,452 7,705 - - 9,452 7,705
Total $ 984,569 $ 979,834 $ 55,455 $ 50,822 $ 1,040,024 $ 1,030,656
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accumulated depreciation, for governmental and business-type activities at June 30, 2012 totals $1.0 billion.
Capital assets include land, land improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles and heavy equipment,
furniture, machinery, and other equipment, antiques and artifacts, computer equipment and construction in
progress. Capital assets are reported in the government-wide financial statements and in the enterprise funds
financial statements. Governmental funds treat capital acquisitions as expenditures in the period in which they
are purchased. The investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, decreased .5% from last year
for governmental activities and the business-type activities investment in capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, increased 9.1%. The change in governmental activities assets results from: 1) the acquisition of
land for future use totaling $9.4 million; 2) a decrease to buildings and improvements of $10.3 million due to an
increase in depreciation for buildings and improvements added; and 3) a decrease to land improvements of $1.5
million. The change in vehicles and heavy equipment results from the disposal of assets, while the decrease in
furniture, machinery and equipment results from the net change of adding and disposing of items. The increase
of $1.7 million in software and licenses result from the net change in adding and depreciation of items.

The $4.6 million increase in business-type activities (enterprise fund) is the result of an increase in buildings
and improvements ($.8 million), an increase in furniture, machinery and equipment ($3.5) and an increase in
construction in progress ($3.1 million) plus the effect of depreciation for activities at the landfill.

Note 5 to the Basic Financial Statements explains in detail the capital asset activities for the year ended June
30, 2012.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The County issues general obligation bonds to fund the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities for
the County, schools, community college and library. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge
the full faith and credit of the County. The County also issues certificates of participation and limited obligation
bonds to provide funding for school, library, community college, and County capital needs. In fiscal year 2012,
the County issued special obligation bonds to acquire and construct additions and improvements at the County’s
existing solid waste management facility. At June 30, 2012 and 2011, general obligation bonds, special obligation
bonds and installment financing consisted of:

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND INSTALLMENT FINANCINGS

(in thousands)

Description Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Public Improvement Bonds | $ 1,385,017 $ 1,427,884 $ 28 $ 606 $ 1,385,045 $ 1,428,490
Installment Financings 462,605 488,670 - - 462,605 488,670
Special Obligation Bonds - - 12,220 - 12,220 -

The County debt policy provides guidelines, param-
eters, and procedural requirements for the issuance
and management of debt. Some of the guidelines
used in managing debt issuance include debt per
capita, debt as a percentage of assessed valuation
and debt service as a percentage of the operational
budget.

Exhibit 4 shows the County’s net per capita out-
standing bonded debt to be $1,434, a decrease of
6.2% from the prior year which results from a reduc-
tion in bonds payable and spreading the outstanding
debt over a 2.9% increase in County population.
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The County’s net bonded debt is 1.2% of assessed
valuation, well below the 8% of assessed valuation
legal debt limit of $9.3 billion, authorized by N.C.
General Statute Chapter 159. See Exhibit 5.

The County’s financial management continues to
insure a strong financial position and enabled the
County to maintain its Triple A bond rating for its
general obligation debt. This is the highest rating
given by Standard & Poor’s Corporation, Moody’s
Investors Service and Fitch Ratings. The City of
Charlotte has also maintained Triple A ratings
from these agencies. This is a distinction for only a

11



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Exhibit 4:

$2,021

$1,807 $1.704

‘08 ‘09 “10 ‘11 “12
Bonded Debt Outstanding
Per Capita

few communities in the nation. As a result of this
rating, the County has obtained some of the lowest
interest rates available to governmental agencies
when issuing bonds, certificates of participation and
limited obligation bonds.

Note 8 to the Basic Financial Statements explains
in detail the debt activities for the year ended June
30, 2012.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The County reports the annual cost and future
obligations and commitments for other post em-
ployment benefits (OPEB) in accordance with the re-
quirements of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits
Other than Pensions (OPEB). This standard requires
governments to account for and report any OPEB
liability (asset) in the entity-wide financial state-
ments. The County has had an actuarial study to de-
termine the OPEB liability and determine required
plan contributions to meet this obligation for both
fiscal year 2012 and 2011. The County funded $15.7
million of the annual required contribution of $39.2
million at June 30, 2012, resulting in an increase in
the OPEB liability in the entity-wide statements.

OUTLOOK FOR THE NEXT YEAR

The Board approved a $1.4 billion annual budget for
fiscal year 2013. The adopted budget reflects a 3.4%
increase ($47.7 million) over the fiscal year 2012 as
revenues have stabilized. The 2013 tax rate is 79.22
cents per $100 of assessed valuation, a decrease
from the year 2012 countywide property tax rate of
81.66 cents. This is the lowest County tax rate in
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Exhibit 5:

1.85%

1.65% 1 579,

1.42%
1.19%

‘08 ‘09 “10 ‘11 “12
Percent of Net Bonded Debt
to Assessed Value

eight years and reflects the increased assessed value
resulting from revaluation.

The County has identified Critical Success Factors for
achieving goals and as well as establishing funding
priorities for the fiscal year 2020. These Critical
Success Factors are education funding, operational
excellence; reinvestment in County employees; fiscal
discipline; and sustainability and affordability.

Major funding decisions by Critical Success Factors
as compared to the fiscal year 2012 are:
= Debt Service, funded at a 107.2% of the fiscal
year 2012 budget
= Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools, funded at
97.2% of the fiscal year 2012 budget
» Central Piedmont Community College funded
at 104.6% of the fiscal year 2012 budget

* $6.7 million for the implementation of
MeckLink.

Request For Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of
the County’s finances for those with an interest in
this area. Questions concern-
ing any of the information
found in this report or re-
quests for additional in-
formation should contact
the Director of Financial
Services, = Mecklenburg
County, P.O. Box 34486,
Charlotte, North Carolina
28234.

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
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ASSETS

Cash and investments
Interest receivable
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable - clinics

Less allowance for uncollectible claims
Taxes receivable

Less allowance for uncollectible taxes
Advances to other governmental agencies
Deferred charges
Inventory

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances (Deficits)
Nonspendable:
Inventory
Restricted:
Stabilization by State Statute
Land Use & Environmental Services
Capital Projects
Health & Human Services
Committed:
Land Use & Environmental Services
Capital Projects
Public Safety
Detention & Court Support Services
Health & Human Services
Capital Reserve
Technology Reserve
Administrative Services
Debt Service
Assigned:
Land Use & Environmental Services
Detention & Court Support Services
Community Services
Unassigned:
Total Fund Balances (Deficits)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

A-3

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

General Fund

Debt
Service
Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

$ 478,888,580
1,257,411
65,520,260
969,550
(838,251)
58,939,652
(22,000,000)
858,249

42,486

4,960

$ 18,823,041
39,615
12,517,033

$ 193,267,909
199,216
13,661,367

1,044,881
(441,000)
60,809

$ 690,979,530
1,496,242
91,698,660
969,550

(838,251)
59,984,533
(22,441,000)
919,058

42,486

4,960

$ 583,642,897

$ 31,379,689

$ 207,793,182

$ 822,815,768

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of

net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Other long term assets are not available for current year
expenditures and, therefore, deferred in the funds.
Certain debt related assets are not available for current year

expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.
Certain bond expenditures are capitalized for future

amortization over the life of the bonds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and

$ 84,409,048 $ - $ 20,781,441 $ 105,190,489
40,476,391 - 638,295 41,114,686
124,885,439 - 21,419,736 146,305,175
4,960 - - 4,960
95,149,592 12,556,648 45,756,173 153,462,413
133,221 - 1,956,405 2,089,626

- - 75,355,810 75,355,810

350,952 - - 350,952

- - 20,294,846 20,294,846

- - 51,288,127 51,288,127

- - 1,310,858 1,310,858
7,622,171 - - 7,622,171
11,000,000 - - 11,000,000
7,500,000 - - 7,500,000
6,500,000 - - 6,500,000
350,000 - - 350,000

- 18,823,041 - 18,823,041
4,405,270 - - 4,405,270
1,250,125 - - 1,250,125
300,000 - - 300,000
324,191,167 - (9,588,773) 314,602,394
458,757,458 31,379,689 186,373,446 676,510,593

$ 583,642,897 $ 31,379,689 $ 207,793,182

984,568,982

37,543,533

27,691,227

12,954,366
(2,043,433,749)

payable in the current period and therefore are not reported

in the funds.

Net (deficit) of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

$  (304,165,048)
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A-4

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES
Taxes
Law Enforcement Service District Taxes
Transit One-Half Cent Sales Tax
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest earned on investments
Administrative charges
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Customer Satisfaction and Management
Administrative Services
Financial Services
Land Use and Environmental Services
Community Services
Detention and Court Support Services
Health and Human Services
Business Partners
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Refunding Bond Proceeds
Premium on Financing
Payment to Refunding Escrow Agent
Sale of Bonds
Installment Financing / Capital Lease
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Debt Nonmajor Total
Service Governmental Governmental

General Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 840,054,805 $ 262,359,234 $ - $ 1,102,414,039
- - 12,188,234 12,188,234
- - 35,529,884 35,529,884
17,473,904 - - 17,473,904
169,412,044 12,329,692 5,219,428 186,961,164
56,844,995 - 15,061,115 71,906,110
2,462,302 153,129 262,937 2,878,368
2,525,641 - - 2,525,641
7,183,476 1,801,111 3,071,029 12,055,616
1,095,957,167 276,643,166 71,332,627 1,443,932,960
13,373,798 - - 13,373,798
68,179,870 - - 68,179,870
17,725,841 - - 17,725,841
39,913,376 - 12,676,625 52,590,001
56,220,129 - - 56,220,129
125,715,537 - - 125,715,537
259,728,965 - - 259,728,965
380,764,253 - 46,997,867 427,762,120
- 162,974,130 2,307,584 165,281,714
- 91,136,165 116,438 91,252,603
- - 76,770,706 76,770,706
961,621,769 254,110,295 138,869,220 1,354,601,284
134,335,398 22,532,871 (67,536,593) 89,331,676
- 164,015,000 - 164,015,000
- 24,644,861 6,349,420 30,994,281
- (179,813,043) - (179,813,043)
- - 100,000,000 100,000,000
- - 9,434,906 9,434,906
116,234 - 46,624,873 46,741,107
(48,324,873) - (116,234) (48,441,107)
(48,208,639) 8,846,818 162,292,965 122,931,144
86,126,759 31,379,689 94,756,372 212,262,820
372,630,699 - 91,617,074 464,247,773
$ 458,757,458 $ 31,379,689 $ 186,373,446 $ 676,510,593

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA



A-5
MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of those assets is not included as the assets have been capitalized.

Depreciation expense is reported in the Statement of Activities, but not in the fund statements.

Loss on disposal of assets and adjustment to accumulated depreciation is reported in the
Statement of Activities, but not in the fund statements.

Bond, Certificate of Participation and capital lease proceeds provide current financial resources
to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net
Assets, therefore, these proceeds do not appear in the Statement of Activities.

Bond premiums and deferred charges, respectively, for the governmental funds are deferred
and amortized in the Statement of Activities.

Repayments of bond and capital lease principal are expenditures in the governmental funds,
but the repayments reduce long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets, so the expenses
do not appear in the Statement of Activities.

Some revenues reported in the Statement of Activities do not represent current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as revenue in the governmental funds.

Other long term liabilities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets, but not in the fund

statements.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

212,262,820

31,687,925

(26,819,668)

(133,230)

(86,395,049)

(11,093,776)

165,317,717

1,363,915

(23,163,456)

263,027,198
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A-6
MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Variance from

18

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget-
Original Final Amounts Positive/(Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes
General property - current 656,202,487 $ 657,002,487 $ 687,683,843 $ 30,681,356
General property - prior 14,840,000 14,840,000 12,462,261 (2,377,739)
Interest on delinquent taxes 3,000,000 3,000,000 4,050,249 1,050,249
Sales 119,000,000 119,000,000 131,167,901 12,167,901
Room occupancy 750,000 750,000 1,122,799 372,799
Vehicle rental 2,200,000 2,200,000 2,846,035 646,035
Other 295,001 295,001 721,717 426,716
Total Taxes 796,287,488 797,087,488 840,054,805 42,967,317
Licenses and permits
Business licenses 225,000 225,000 246,246 21,246
Inspection permits 13,264,873 14,430,154 17,091,153 2,660,999
Marriage licenses 121,000 121,000 136,505 15,505
Total Licenses and permits 13,610,873 14,776,154 17,473,904 2,697,750
Intergovernmental
Federal 97,290,457 117,090,208 109,622,226 (7,467,982)
State 56,440,188 55,001,480 54,027,423 (974,057)
Local 7,618,866 7,618,866 5,762,395 (1,856,471)
Total Intergovernmental 161,349,511 179,710,554 169,412,044 (10,298,510)
Charges for services
Customer Satisfaction and Management 5,000 5,000 5,149 149
Administrative Services - 74,572 321,732 247,160
Financial Services 1,140,000 1,140,000 1,564,021 424,021
Land Use and Environmental Services 12,186,515 12,186,515 14,840,753 2,654,238
Community Services 2,708,861 2,854,516 2,984,336 129,820
Detention and Court Support Services 25,206,359 25,816,206 25,056,240 (759,966)
Health and Human Services 13,904,476 13,959,439 10,219,888 (3,739,551)
Business Partners 2,300,000 2,300,000 1,852,876 (447,124)
Total Charges for services 57,451,211 58,336,248 56,844,995 (1,491,253)
Interest earned on investments 2,790,000 2,790,000 2,462,302 (327,698)
Administrative charges 2,525,637 2,525,637 2,525,641 4
Other
Rental 1,967,732 2,053,232 2,343,301 290,069
Sale of properties 980,965 980,965 1,137,165 156,200
Miscellaneous 4,210,516 5,216,104 3,703,010 (1,513,094)
Total Other 7,159,213 8,250,301 7,183,476 (1,066,825)
Total Revenues 1,041,173,933 1,063,476,382 1,095,957,167 32,480,785

(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

EXPENDITURES
Current
Customer Satisfaction and Management
County Commissioners
Economic Development Office
Manager's Office
Public Service and Information
Total Customer Satisfaction and Management
Administrative Services
Internal Audit
Human Resources
Information Services and Technology
Real Estate Services
Nondepartmental
Total Administrative Services
Financial Services
Finance
Installment Financing (Principal & Interest)
Fiscal charges
Pay-As-You-Go Funding
Payment to City of Charlotte
Tax Collection
Total Financial Services
Land Use and Environmental Services
Geospatial Information
Code Administration
Property Assessment and Land Records
Air Quality
Environmental Health
Water and Land Resource
Register of Deeds
Total Land Use and Environmental Services
Community Services
Public Libraries
Park and Recreation
Elections
Total Community Services
Detention and Court Support Services
Medical Examiner
Criminal Justice Services
Child Support Enforcement
Sheriff and Jail
Total Detention and Court Support Services

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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(CONTINUED)

Variance from

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget-
Original Final Amounts (Positive)/Negative
$ 374,915 $ 367,035 $ 327,745 (39,290)
8,032,986 8,042,688 6,627,271 (1,415,417)
9,122,932 9,490,638 4,824,763 (4,665,875)
1,730,465 1,679,569 1,594,019 (85,550)
19,261,298 19,579,930 13,373,798 (6,206,132)
1,000,599 1,022,272 987,857 (34,415)
4,157,844 4,728,158 4,294,166 (433,992)
18,049,597 19,406,776 18,563,463 (843,313)
16,826,385 16,768,637 15,160,801 (1,607,836)
49,909,350 29,641,536 29,173,583 (467,953)
89,943,775 71,567,379 68,179,870 (3,387,509)
3,626,191 8,747,108 7,881,270 (865,838)
443,863 443,863 443,863 -
3,420,459 3,420,459 2,198,532 (1,221,927)
32,343,773 - - -
689,006 689,006 689,006 -
7,711,715 7,763,470 6,513,170 (1,250,300)
48,235,007 21,063,906 17,725,841 (3,338,065)
3,483,047 3,674,292 3,640,889 (33,403)
17,925,518 19,788,065 18,481,677 (1,306,388)
6,971,892 7,216,480 6,921,528 (294,952)
5,314,609 6,536,792 2,837,870 (3,698,922)
5,669,493 5,777,482 5,327,136 (450,346)
360,086 360,086 - (360,086)
2,756,988 2,782,551 2,704,276 (78,275)
42,481,633 46,135,748 39,913,376 (6,222,372)
24,257,052 23,284,294 22,374,049 (910,245)
30,265,620 30,908,056 30,131,681 (776,375)
4,114,183 4,141,838 3,714,399 (427,439)
58,636,855 58,334,188 56,220,129 (2,114,059)
1,500,618 1,535,861 1,535,036 (825)
10,710,205 13,187,086 9,454,213 (3,732,873)
6,819,298 7,292,063 7,147,400 (144,663)
109,580,421 112,978,639 107,578,888 (5,399,751)
128,610,542 134,993,649 125,715,537 (9,278,112)
(Continued)
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Health and Human Services
Public Health
Public Health Services
Public Health-CHS Contract
Community Health
Mental Health
Infant and Toddler Preschool Services
Child and Adolescent Services
Adult Services
Centralized Services
Developmental Disabilities Services
Administrative Services
Grants and other
Social Services
Administration and Support Services
Grants
Childcare Operations
Services for Adults
Economic Services
Youth and Family Services
Community Support Services
Total Health and Human Services
Business Partners
Emergency Medical Services
City-County Departments
Board of Education:
Current
Capital Outlay
Central Piedmont Community College
Current
Hospitals
Historic Landmarks Commission
Outside Agencies - Other
Total Business Partners
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over (under) Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers out
Appropriated fund balance
Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(CONCLUDED)

Variance from

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget-
Original Final Amounts (Positive)/Negative
$ 3,729,597 § 3,639,509 § 3,036,775  $ (602,734)
36,622,705 36,859,479 33,099,178 (3,760,301)
2,504,781 11,907,242 7,413,113 (4,494,129)
7,607,338 7,722,435 6,836,149 (886,286)
15,792,011 15,340,127 10,120,263 (5,219,864)
22,397,534 22,506,932 18,951,939 (3,554,993)
3,353,799 3,377,073 2,804,581 (572,492)
12,034,051 10,608,512 8,590,726 (2,017,786)
30,786,519 29,006,043 2,355,026 (26,651,017)
3,689,743 4,050,870 1,961,761 (2,089,109)
15,149,066 13,825,588 12,448,320 (1,377,268)
2,867,175 6,814,520 6,621,063 (193,457)
47,385,302 47,080,732 45,442,144 (1,638,588)
37,531,423 39,814,050 34,010,553 (5,803,497)
27,149,920 28,455,438 26,906,279 (1,549,159)
40,141,109 38,542,327 32,611,903 (5,930,424)
6,700,656 9,171,068 6,519,192 (2,651,876)
315,442,729 328,721,945 259,728,965 (68,992,980)

15,080,000 15,080,000 15,080,000 -

2,765,323 2,765,323 2,765,323 -

328,339,101 328,339,101 328,339,101 -

4,960,000 4,960,000 4,960,000 -

25,900,000 26,150,000 26,150,000 -
225,000 225,000 202,567 (22,433)
186,684 190,608 185,439 (5,169)
3,102,500 3,102,500 3,081,823 (20,677)
380,558,608 380,812,532 380,764,253 (48,279)
1,083,170,447 1,061,209,277 961,621,769 (99,587,508)
(41,996,514) 2,267,105 134,335,398 132,068,293

116,234 116,234 116,234 -
(383,338) (48,393,211) (48,324,873) 68,338
42,263,618 46,009,872 - (46,009,872)
41,996,514 (2,267,105) (48,208,639) (45,941,534)
$ - $ - 86,126,759 $ 86,126,759

372,630,699
8458757458

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and investments
Interest receivable
Accounts receivable
Deferred charges
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash and investments
Capital assets
Land
Construction in progress
Land improvements
Buildings
Vehicles and heavy equipment
Furniture, machinery and equipment
Total Capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation

Total Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total Noncurrent assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Compensated absences
Capital Leases
Special Obligation Bonds
Bonds Payable
Unamortized premium - bonds payable
Total Current Liabilities

Long-term Liabilities
Compensated absences
Landfill development and
postclosure care costs

Capital Leases

Bonds Payable

Unamortized premium - bonds payable
Total Long-term Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted net assets:

Restricted for landfill development and postclosure care

Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Business
Type Activities
Solid Waste MeckLink
Enterprise Fund Fund Total

$ 43,873,854 $ 1,428,321 45,302,175
80,818 - 80,818
405,929 - 405,929
215,216 - 215,216
44,575,817 1,428,321 45,788,922
284,263 - 284,263
28,687,608 - 28,687,608
4,305,927 - 4,305,927
10,514,616 - 10,514,616
14,380,072 - 14,380,072
5,197,473 - 5,197,473
9,622,707 - 9,622,707
72,708,403 - 72,708,403
(17,253,919) - (17,253,919)
55,454,484 - 55,454,484
55,738,747 - 55,738,747
100,314,564 1,428,321 101,742,885
2,479,162 24,897 2,504,059
67,972 - 67,972
317,301 - 317,301
665,000 - 665,000
28,016 - 28,016

68,302 - 68,302
3,625,753 24,897 3,650,650
434,840 12,688 447,528
8,793,720 - 8,793,720
163,019 - 163,019
11,555,000 - 11,555,000
910,464 - 910,464
21,857,043 12,688 21,869,731
25,482,796 37,585 25,520,381
50,534,165 - 50,534,165
8,793,720 - 8,793,720
7,808,017 - 7,808,017
7,695,866 1,390,736 9,086,602

$ 74,831,768 $ 1,390,736 76,222,504

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Business
Type Activities
Solid Waste MeckLink
Enterprise Fund Fund Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:
Residential Solid Waste Fees $ 6,013,797 $ - $ 6,013,797
Recycling sales 6,380,203 - 6,380,203
Other 4,461,711 - 4,461,711
Total Operating Revenues 16,855,711 - 16,855,711
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services and employee benefits 4,403,728 75,393 4,479,121
Utilities 205,353 - 205,353
Supplies 1,204,275 129,953 1,334,228
Depreciation 2,777,862 - 2,777,862
Maintenance and repairs 569,613 - 569,613
Rental and occupancy charges 543,976 - 543,976
Contractual services 3,871,592 103,918 3,975,510
Final development and postclosure costs 369,088 - 369,088
Total Operating Expenses 13,945,487 309,264 14,254,751
OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) 2,910,224 (309,264) 2,600,960
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Grant revenue 108,818 - 108,818
Interest income 242,917 - 242,917
Interest expense (188,275) - (188,275)
Loss on disposal of capital assets (58,662) - (58,662)
Amortization of refunding (100,313) - (100,313)
Amortization of premium against interest (10,062) - (10,062)
Transfers from other funds - 1,700,000 1,700,000
Total Non-operating Revenues (5,577) 1,700,000 1,694,423
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2,904,647 1,390,736 4,295,383
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 71,927,121 - 71,927,121
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 74,831,768 $ 1,390,736 $ 76,222,504

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from users
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Grant revenue
Transfers from other funds

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments - bonds
Principal payments - capital leases
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Premium on bonds
Fees and discounts
Interest paid
Acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of assets
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Net cash provided by investing activities

INCREASE IN CASH AND INVESTMENTS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND INVESTMENTS - END OF YEAR

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities
Operating Income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in accounts receivable
Change in payroll accrual
Change in accounts payable
Change in compensated absences
Change in landfill reserve
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities
Amortization of refunding amount
Amortization of premium
Amortization of issuance costs
Capital asset trade-in

Business
Type Activities
Solid Waste MeckLink
Enterprise Fund Fund Total
$ 16,875,809 $ - $ 16,875,809
(4,358,408) (217,286) (4,575,694)
(4,644,513) (54,393) (4,698,906)
7,872,888 (271,679) 7,601,209
108,818 - 108,818
- 1,700,000 1,700,000
108,818 1,700,000 1,808,818
(577,556) - (577,556)
(450,223) - (450,223)
12,220,000 - 12,220,000
1,024,527 - 1,024,527
(225,278) - (225,278)
(234,036) - (234,036)
(7,649,061) - (7,649,061)
179,602 - 179,602
4,287,975 - 4,287,975
281,342 - 281,342
281,342 - 281,342
12,551,023 1,428,321 13,979,344
31,607,094 - 31,607,094
$ 44,158,117 $ 1,428,321 $ 45,586,438
$ 2,910,224 $ (309,264) $ 2,600,960
2,777,862 - 2,777,862
20,098 - 20,098
(218,660) 8,312 (210,348)
2,036,401 16,585 2,052,986
(22,125) 12,688 (9,437)
369,088 - 369,088
4,962,664 37,585 5,000,249
$ 7,872,888 $ (271,679) $ 7,601,209
$ 100,313 $ - $ 100,313
(45,762) - (45,762)
10,062 - 10,062
30,000 - 30,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

23



A-10
MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Post-Employment

Healthcare
Benefit
Trust Fund Agency Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ - $ 40,994,019
Restricted for:
State Other Postemployment Benefit Trust:
Cash and Equivalents 276 -
Short-Term OPEB Fund 10,547,385 -
Long-Term OPEB Fund 4,292,435 -
OPEB Equity Funds 28,370,327 -
Interest receivable 4,888 -
Accounts receivable - 260,303
Due from other governmental agencies - 1,940,644
TOTAL ASSETS $ 43,215,311 $ 43,194,966
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ - $ 37,407,800
Due to other governmental agencies - 5,708,970
Due to NC Department of Motor Vehicles - 78,196
TOTAL LIABILITIES - $ 43,194,966
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for retiree healthcare benefits
and related purposes $ 43,215,311

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Post-Employment

Healthcare
Benefit
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
Employer Contributions $ 15,663,056
Interest 840,793
Total Additions 16,503,849
DEDUCTIONS
Management Fee 95,551
Claims paid 7,663,056
Total Deductions 7,758,607
ADDITIONS OVER DEDUCTIONS 8,745,242
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Unrealized Gain 582,117
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 9,327,359
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 33,887,952
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 43,215,311

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Reporting Entity

Mecklenburg County, North Carolina (the County) was created from a portion of Anson County on
December 11, 1762. The County has a county manager form of government with a nine-member, elected
Board of Commissioners comprising the governing body. The County provides the following services which
are segregated into core services in the financial statements: Customer Satisfaction and Management,
Administrative Services, Financial Services, Land Use and Environmental Services, Community Services,
Detention and Court Support Services, Health and Human Services, and Business Partners. Individual
departments included in these core services are shown on the Organization Chart in the Introduction
Section. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP),
these financial statements present all the fund types and component units. Discretely presented component
units are reported in separate columns in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are
legally separate from the County.

The Public Library of Charlotte and Mecklenburg County (Library) is a public library formed in 1902 by an act
of the General Assembly of North Carolina. Six of the seven members of the Library Board of Trustees are
appointed by the County and one is appointed by the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Board of Education. The
County has budgetary approval over its annual allocation to the Library for current operating purposes. The
Library is not empowered to issue long-term debt; therefore, capital assets of the Library are financed
principally by general obligation bonds and certificates of participation issued at the option of the County.
There is no obligation on the County to issue debt for the Library. The Library is presented as a
governmental activity.

The Mecklenburg County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (ABC Board) operates retail liquor stores and
investigates violations of North Carolina Alcoholic Beverage Control laws. The ABC Board also provides
financial support for various educational programs on the excessive use of alcoholic beverages and for
rehabilitation of alcoholics. The ABC Board consists of five members appointed by the Board of County
Commissioners and is required by State statute to distribute a portion of its surpluses to the General Fund of
the County. The ABC Board is presented as a business-type activity.

The Mecklenburg Emergency Medical Services Agency (Medic Agency) was created by a joint agreement
dated September 11, 1996, between Mecklenburg County and the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Hospital Authority
pursuant to North Carolina General Statute 160A-462 as a separate unit of government for the purpose of
providing emergency medical services in the County. The Medic Agency began operations on October 8,
1996. The Medic Agency is governed by a seven-member Board of Commissioners appointed by the County
Board of Commissioners, three of whom are recommended by Carolinas Healthcare System, three by
Presbyterian/Novant Health, and one by the County. The County has budgetary approval over the annual
allocation to the Medic Agency for current operating purposes. The Medic Agency is presented as a
governmental activity.

Complete financial statements for the individual component units may be obtained at the following
addresses:

Public Library of Charlotte and Mecklenburg County
310 N. Tryon Street
Charlotte, North Carolina 28202

Mecklenburg County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board
P. O. Box 33894
Charlotte, North Carolina 28233-3894

Mecklenburg Emergency Medical Services Agency

4525 Statesville Road
Charlotte, North Carolina 28269

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(b) Government-wide Financial Statements

(c)

The Statement of Net Assets (Deficit) and the Statement of Activities comprise the government-wide
financial statements. These statements present information on all the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government and its discretely presented component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity
has been eliminated from the statements. The primary government consists of governmental activities,
which are generally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues and business-type activities which
charge for the services provided. Component units, which are legally separate entities for which the primary
government is financially accountable, are also categorized as governmental or business-type activities and
are reported separately on the government-wide financial statements.

The Statement of Net Assets (Deficit) presents the difference between assets and liabilities at the end of the
fiscal year, June 30, 2012. The difference, net assets (deficit), is subdivided into three categories: amounts
invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets (deficit). Net
assets are reported as restricted when constraints on the use of the assets are imposed either externally by
grantors, contributors, creditors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

The Statement of Activities, which shows the change in net assets, presents direct expenses offset by
program revenues for each core service area. Program revenues include fees and charges to customers for
specific services provided and grants and contributions restricted for use in specific operations of a core
service area. Tax revenues, interest and other revenue items that benefit the entire primary government are
considered general revenues.

Financial Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, the proprietary fund and the fiduciary
funds. The fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements because the funds
are held by the County in a trust capacity only. The General Fund and the Debt Service Fund are the
County’s major governmental funds.

The government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the period
earned; expenses are recognized when a liability is incurred. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year in which they are levied. Grants and intergovernmental revenues are recognized as revenue when
the eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or other government agency have been met. Fees and
charges of the proprietary funds are recognized as revenue when the services are provided.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as the amounts become
susceptible to accrual by becoming measurable and available to finance the County’s operations. Available
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, revenues are considered to be available if they are collected within 60 days, except for
sales tax revenue which is considered to be available if collected within 90 days, of the end of the current
fiscal year. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s practice
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. Expenditures are
recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for
unmatured interest on long-term debt and expenditures for compensated absences, which are recognized
when payment is due.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual
requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are typically two types of
revenues. One type requires funds to be disbursed for a specific purpose or project before any amount will
be reimbursed to the County; therefore, revenues are recognized as receivables based upon the
expenditures recorded. The other type provides moneys that are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of
expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to meet prescribed compliance requirements. These
resources are reflected at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. Other
governmental revenues which are susceptible to accrual are sales taxes collected and held by the State at
year-end on behalf of the County, and investment earnings. Licenses and permits, charges for services, and
other revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash, because they are generally not
measurable until actually received.

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA



MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the County and accounts for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The Sheriff's Special
Revenue fund is a legally budgeted fund under North Carolina General Statutes; however, for
statement presentation in accordance with GASB Statement Number 54 it is consolidated in the
General Fund.

Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

The County reports the following major proprietary funds:

Solid Waste Enterprise Fund — This fund accounts for activities related to recycling and landfill
facilities and is self-supporting through the residential solid waste fee and recycling sales.

MeckLink Enterprise Fund — This fund accounts for activities related to the delivery of services to
individuals with mental illness, intellectual and developmental disabilities and substance abuse
disorders and is primarily self supporting through federal and state funds.

Additionally, the County reports the following funds:
a. Nonmajor governmental funds are:

Special Revenue Funds — Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than special assessments or capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Funds — Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by the Proprietary
Fund). The Capital Reserve fund is a legally budgeted fund under North Carolina General Statutes;
however, for statement presentation in accordance with GASB Statement Number 54 it is included
with the Capital Projects Funds.

b. Fiduciary Funds:

Post-Employment Healthcare Benefit Trust Fund - This fund accounts for the contributions, claims
and administrative costs of providing healthcare benefits to County retirees who have met the
requirements to receive the benefit upon retirement.

Agency fiduciary funds — These funds account for assets held by the County as agent for:

¢ individuals — employee flex spending, social service and jail clients

e private organizations — medical and dental claim funds

e other governmental units — collections due to municipalities, food and beverage tax and
other collections due to the State of North Carolina, such as the three percent interest on
the first month of delinquent motor vehicle taxes that the County is required to remit to the
North Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles. The funds are custodial in nature and do
not involve measurement or operating results.

The County has elected to apply only applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and
Interpretations issued before November 30, 1989 in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements.

The County has eliminated the effect of interfund activity from the government-wide financial statements.

Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions involved.

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

c. Enterprise Funds

The Solid Waste Enterprise Fund, a proprietary type fund, distinguishes between operating
revenues and expenses and non-operating revenues and expenses. The principal operating
revenues of the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund are the residential solid waste fee, landfill tipping
fees, charges for recycling services and proceeds from the sale of recycled items. Operating
expenses consist of cost for services provided, administrative costs and depreciation of assets. All
other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating.

The Meck Link Enterprise Fund is also a proprietary type fund. The principal operating revenues of
the Meck Link Enterprise Fund will be primarily Medicaid funds. Operating expenses consists of
payments to providers delivering services to individuals with mental illness, intellectual and
developmental disabilities and substance abuse disorders.

(d) Budgetary Control

As required by the North Carolina Budget and Fiscal Control Act (North Carolina General Statute 159), the
County adopts, on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, an annual balanced budget ordinance for all funds except those authorized by project ordinance
and the agency fiduciary funds. The budget ordinance is balanced when the sum of estimated net revenues
and appropriated fund balance is equal to appropriations. The appropriations in the various funds are
budgeted at the line item level and most are controlled at the category level. The annual budget is prepared
on the modified accrual basis of accounting as required by the statutes. Budget preparations begin with the
Board of County Commissioners’ annual strategic planning conference in January. Department budgets are
prepared and combined into a county-wide budget between February and April. Public hearings are held in
May and the budget is adopted by vote of the County Commissioners prior to July 1, to comply with the
North Carolina General Statutes. The County Manager or designee is authorized to transfer budgeted
amounts within any fund. However, any revisions that alter the total budget of any fund must be approved
by the Board of County Commissioners. Except for certain continuing grants, any remaining annual
appropriations lapse at each fiscal year-end.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual presents the
adopted and final budget and actual amounts for the General Fund. Capital lease amounts are approved by
the Board of County Commissioners as needed and the amount budgeted for capital leases annually is the
related debt service for the year.

Additionally, the Board of County Commissioners approves annual budgets for all the Special Revenue
Funds. During the year, the Board of County Commissioners also approved amendments for these funds as
follows:

Original Final Budget

Budget Amendments June 30, 2012

Special Revenue Funds $ 59,960,664 § 18,621,795 $ 78,582,459

Amendments result from appropriating revenues received and new grants awarded after the original budgets
were adopted.

The Capital Projects Funds are budgeted by project ordinance and the appropriations do not lapse at year-
end. Appropriated budgets are adopted for all Library funds as required by the State.

The Library’s Board of Trustees approves their budget, and the Board of Trustees must also approve any
changes in the budget. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations unless approved by the Board
of Trustees.

The Medic Agency Board of Commissioners adopts an annual budget on the modified accrual basis of

accounting as required by the State. Appropriations are budgeted at the category level and controlled at the
category level. All budget amendments must be approved by the Medic Agency Board of Commissioners.
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(e) Cash and Investments

A cash and investments pool is maintained and used for all available funds except cash on hand of $25,449
and funds held by others. A portion of the County’s self-insurance funds in the amount of $10,417,885 is
held in one or more trusts administered by the City of Charlotte’s Risk Management Division. Additionally,
$60,809 is held by the building management company for operating needs, $263,934 is held by the bank for
solid waste debt service on special obligation bonds, $1,924,946 is held by a trustee for energy savings
projects, $9,140,006 is held by a trustee for solid waste capital projects, $650,000 is held by a trustee for
Park and Recreation ball field lighting projects, and interest and proceeds of $89,212 and $14,425,614,
respectively, from certificates of participation are held by a trustee. Cash of $43,215,311 is held by the
North Carolina State Treasurer in the Other Post Employment Benefits Investment Trust, an irrevocable trust
fund.

Deposits

All County deposits are made in designated official depositories and are secured as required by North
Carolina General Statute 159-31. The County may designate as an official depository, any bank, trust
company, or savings and loan institution in North Carolina. A national bank located in another state may be
designated as an official depository with written permission of the Local Government Commission, a Division
of the State Treasurer’s Office. The County may also establish time deposits in the form of NOW accounts,
SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit. Primary banking services for the
County are provided through a contract, currently with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. At year-end, the cash
balance of County deposits was $55,647,881 and the bank balance was $62,669,900. Included in these
balances are two money market accounts in the amount of $3,145,892 and $45,356,805 and one certificate
of deposit totaling $93,476 with Branch Banking & Trust; one certificate of deposit totaling $10,000,000 with
Mechanics and Farmers Bancorp; and two certificates of deposit totaling $105,679 with Bank of Granite.

All of the County’s deposits are either insured or collateralized using the Pooling Method. Under the Pooling
Method, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with a pool of securities held by the State Treasurer’s agent
in the name of the State Treasurer as permitted under North Carolina Administrative Code, Title 20, Chapter
7. Depositories holding public funds must establish an escrow account in the name of the State Treasurer to
hold this pledged collateral and they must report to the State Treasurer on the adequacy of their collateral
pools. The amount of pledged collateral required is based on an approved averaging method for non-
interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest bearing deposits. The Pooling Method
shifts responsibility for the monitoring of collateral from the County to the State Treasurer. The State
Treasurer does not confirm this information with the County or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to
measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the County, the potential exists for under-
collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer
enforces strict standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions. The County
analyzes the financial soundness of any other financial institution used by the County. The County complies
with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are
properly secured. The total bank balance of $62,669,900 was covered by collateral or insured at June 30,
2012.

North Carolina General Statute 159 also governs the deposits of the Library, ABC Board and the Medic
Agency. The Medic Agency collateralizes excess deposits by the pooling of collateral method. Deposits of
the Library and ABC Board are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the
dedicated method, all deposits over the federal depository insurance coverage are collateralized with
securities held by the Library’s or ABC Board’s agent in their name or the pooling method. At June 30, 2012,
the Medic Agency’s deposits had a carrying value of $3,672,023 and a bank balance of $4,053,366 of which
$321,492 was covered by federal depository insurance and $3,731,874 was covered by collateral under the
pooling method. At June 30, 2012, the carrying amount of the Library’s bank deposits was $10,878,068 and
the bank balance was $12,030,912 of which $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance,
$11,385,695 was covered by collateral held under the pooling method and the remaining $395,217 was
covered under the dedicated method. At June 30, 2012, the carrying amount of the ABC Board’s bank
deposits was $9,633,790 and the bank balance was $10,167,400. Of the bank balance at June 30, 2012,
$500,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remaining $9,667,400 was covered by
collateral under the pooling method.
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Investments

North Carolina General Statute 159-30(c) authorizes the County to invest in obligations of the United States
or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State
of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of
certain non-guaranteed Federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper, bankers’
acceptances, and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust.

At June 30, 2012, the County had the following investments and maturities:

Maturities
Less than

Investment Type Fair Value 6 Months 6 - 12 Months 1-5 Years
U.S. Government Agencies $ 492936518 § - $ 14314340 § 478,622,178

Commercial Paper 27,989,800 27,989,800 - -
NC Capital Management Trust - Cash Portfolio 144,010,284 144,010,284 N/A N/A

NC Capital Management Trust - Term Portfolio* 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 -
Total § 684936602 § 172,000,084 § 34314340 § 478,622,178

* Because the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio had a duration of .17 years, it was
presented as an investment with a maturity of 6-12 months.

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the County’s
investment policy limits investments to those with a maturity of no more than 60 months. Staggered maturity
dates are also used as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses.

Credit Risk

The County has no formal policy regarding credit risk, but maintains internal management procedures that
limit the County’s investments to the provisions of North Carolina General Statute 159-30 that restricts the
purchase of securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are rated. The
County invests in commercial paper bearing the highest credit rating, as determined by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs) and bankers acceptances where the accepting bank or
its holding company are incorporated in North Carolina. As of June 30, 2012, the County’s investments in
commercial paper were rated at least A-1 by Standard & Poor’s, F-1 by Fitch Ratings, and P-1 by Moody’s
Investors Service. The County’s investments in the N.C. Capital Management Trust Cash Portfolio carried a
credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor’s as of June 30, 2012. The County’s investment in the NC Capital
Management Trust Term Portfolio is unrated. The Term portfolio is authorized to invest in obligations of the
US government and agencies, and in high grade money market instruments as permitted under North
Carolina General Statutes 159-30 as amended. The County’s investments in U.S. Government Agencies
(Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, and Federal National Mortgage
Association) were rated AA+ by Standard & Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service at year-end.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the County will not be able
to recover the value of its investments. To minimize this risk, the County’s investments are held in the
County’s name in a segregated safekeeping account in Fifth Third Bank.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The County’s investment policy does not restrict the level of investment in federal agencies, but it restricts
the combined total investment in commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances to no more than twenty-five
percent of the total portfolio. Investments in commercial paper or bankers’ acceptances of a single issuer
are limited to no more than ten million dollars or ten percent of the total portfolio at the time of investment.
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At June 30, 2012, investments in commercial paper comprised 3.8% of the total portfolio. No single issuer
exceeded ten million dollars or ten percent of the total portfolio. There were no bankers’ acceptances at
year end.

The County’s investments are stated at fair value on the financial statements, as determined by quoted
market prices. The securities of the NCCMT Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual
fund, are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT’s share price. The securities of the NCCMT Term
Portfolio had a duration of .17 years at June 30, 2012, and are valued at fair value, which is the share price.
In accordance with State law, the County invests in callable securities, some of which provide for periodic
interest rate increases in specific increments until maturity. These investments are reported at fair value.

As of June 30, 2012, the County had $43,215,311 invested in the State Treasurer’s Local Government Other
Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Trust pursuant to G.S. 159-30.1. The State Treasurer's OPEB Trust
may invest in public equities and both long-term and short-term fixed income obligations as determined by
the State Treasurer pursuant to the General Statutes. At year-end, the State Treasurer's OPEB Trust was
invested as follows: State Treasurer's Short Term Investment Fund (STIF) 24.4%, State Treasurer’s Long-
Term Investment Fund (LTIF) 9.9%; and BlackRock’s Global Ex-US Alpha Tilts Fund B and BlackRock’s
Russell 3000 Alpha Tilts Fund B 65.7% (the equities were split with 74.6% in domestic securities and 25.4%
in international securities).

Interest Rate Risk

The County does not have a formal investment interest rate policy that manages its exposure to fair value
losses arising from increasing interest rates. The State Treasurer's Short Term Investment Fund (STIF) is
unrated and had a weighted average maturity of 1.5 years at June 30, 2012. The State Treasurer's Long
Term Investment Fund (LTIF) is unrated and had a weighted average maturity of 16.3 years at June 30,
2012.

The Library’s investments consist of $645,217 in money market accounts held at the Bank of Commerce
which is unrated. The Library has no policy for managing interest rate risk or credit risk.

All Medic Agency investments, $8,991,710, were invested in the N. C. Capital Management Trust Cash
Portfolio at June 30, 2012.

Medic Agency policies regarding risk are:

Interest Rate Risk: As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising
interest rates, Medic Agency limits the investment portfolio to a maximum of three years.

Credit Risk: The investment in the N. C. Capital Management Trust Cash Portfolio carried a
credit rating of AAA by Standard & Poor's.

Custodial Credit Risk: Medic Agency maintains a diversified investment portfolio to reduce
custodial credit risk.

During 2012, no gains from the sale of investments by the County were recognized. The calculation of
realized gains is independent of the calculation of the net increase/decrease in the fair value of investments.
The net change in the fair value of investments during 2012 was a decrease of $870,850. This amount
takes into account all changes in fair value (including purchases and sales) that occurred during the year.
The unrealized loss on investments held at year-end for the County was $357,813.

Interest on investments is recorded when earned and is distributed to each fund based on the fund’s
proportionate equity in pooled cash and investments, except that interest on investments of the Capital
Projects Funds is distributed to the Debt Service Fund for debt service.
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Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market and consists of expendable supplies held
for consumption. The cost of individual inventory items is expensed at the time of purchase. At the end of
each fiscal year, inventory and applicable expense accounts are adjusted to reflect actual inventory on hand.

The ABC Board merchandise inventory is valued at cost which approximates the lower of first-in, first-out
cost or market. Maintenance, office and operating supplies, except paper bags, are expensed when
purchased.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, buildings and improvements, intangible assets,
vehicles and heavy equipment, and furniture, machinery and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements and in the
proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial individual purchase
price of $5,000 or more except for internally generated computer software with an initial cost of $1 million or
more, all other intangible assets with an initial cost of $250,000 or more and an estimated useful life of two
years or more. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if the asset is
purchased or constructed. Contributed capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the
time received. The County owns only limited infrastructure assets, which are considered to be park
improvements, a part of land improvements. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the asset or materially extend the asset’s life are not capitalized.

Depreciation, which is recorded as an expense against the operations of the governmental and business-
type activities of the government-wide financial statements and for the proprietary fund financial statements,
is calculated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Land Improvements 20 - 40 years
Building and improvements 10 - 40 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Vehicles 3- 7 years
Furniture 3-10 years
Computer Software 2-10 years
Other Intangible Assets 2-10 years

For the ABC Board, buildings, equipment and motor vehicles are stated at cost and are being depreciated
over their useful lives on a straight-line basis, and leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of
the applicable lease. Upon disposal, the cost of an asset and the related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the books. Any gain or loss on disposition is reflected in the change in net assets upon
disposal. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

Estimated useful lives for the ABC Board are as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Leasehold Improvements 5- 15 years
Equipment 3-10 years
Vehicles 4 years

Library capital assets include land, buildings and improvements, and furniture and equipment. Assets which
have an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year are
capitalized for government-wide reporting. Purchased or constructed assets are recorded at cost or
historical cost, while donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation. The Library capitalizes all library books with a useful life greater than one year. Certain books that
are considered historical treasures are not capitalized and are recorded as expenditures in the year of
acquisition. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.
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Library capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Buildings 40 years
Furniture and equipment 5-10 years
Books 3 years

Medic Agency’s capital assets including vehicles, furniture and other equipment, patient equipment,
computer equipment and buildings and improvements. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial,
individual, purchase of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of one year or more. Capital assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if the asset is purchased or constructed. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset’s life
are not capitalized.

Depreciation for Medic assets is provided over the following useful lives of each asset class using the
straight-line method:

Vehicles 4 years
Furniture and other equipment 3-10 years
Patient Equipment 3-10 years
Computer Equipment 3-5years
Buildings and improvements 10 years

Compensated Absences

For the County, Library and Medic Agency, the maximum amount of vacation that can be transferred to the
next calendar year is 240 hours. Accrued vacation beyond the maximum will be converted to sick leave as
of the last pay period ending on or before December 31 each year. Vacation leave is earned based on years
of service and is fully vested when earned. All unused accumulated vacation up to 240 hours will be paid
upon termination. The County, Library and Medic Agency sick leave policies allow regular employees to
accumulate an unlimited amount of sick leave. One-fourth of the unused accumulated sick leave, which is
fully vested when earned, is paid upon termination, with the balance in the case of retirement being used in
the determination of length of service for retirement benefits.

All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.
A liability for vacation/sick leave is reported in the governmental funds financial statements only if the benefit
has matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

ABC Board employees may accumulate a maximum of 48 days earned vacation based on years of service
and such leave is fully vested when earned. Employees can accumulate an unlimited amount of sick leave.
Sick leave may be used in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes or a portion
may be taken as a distribution at retirement.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental or business-type activities or the
proprietary fund Statement of Net Assets. Bond premiums are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premium.

Net Assets/Governmental Fund Equity

Net Assets

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints on

resources that are either a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments or b) imposed by law through state statute.
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Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications designed to
disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent:

The governmental fund types classify fund balance as follows:

e Nonspendable Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Inventories - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the
year-end balance of ending inventories, which are not spendable resources.

e Restricted Fund Balance —This classification includes revenue resources that are restricted to specific
purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Restricted for Stabilization of State Statute — portion of fund balance that is restricted by State
Statute [G.S. 159-8(a)].

Restricted for Land Use and Environmental Services — portion of fund balance that is restricted by
revenue sources to pay for construction bonds, storm water grants and Register of Deeds
document preservation and technology improvements.

Restricted for Capital Projects — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source and
can only be used for capital outlay in the County.

Restricted for Health & Human Services — portion of fund balance restricted by revenue source to
pay for Health, Mental Health and Social Services.

e Committed Fund Balance — portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purpose imposed
by majority vote of the Mecklenburg County Board of County Commissioners (highest level of decision —
making authority). Any changes or removal of specific purposes requires majority action by the
governing body.

Committed for Land Use and Environmental Services — portion of fund balance that can only be
used for storm water operations.

Committed for Public Safety — portion of fund balance that can only be used for law enforcement
operations.

Committed for Capital Projects — portion of fund balance that can only be used for capital outlay in
the County.

Committed for Detention & Court Support Services — portion of fund balance that can only be used
for jail and court operations.

Committed for Health & Human Services — portion of fund balance that can only be used for Health,
Mental Health, and Social Services.

Capital Reserve — portion of fund balance appropriated for renovations and improvements to
facilities.

Technology Reserve — portion of fund balance appropriated for computer and/or software
acquisitions or upgrades.

Committed for Administrative Services — portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the
Board of County Commissioners for support services to County Departments.

Committed for Debt Service — portion of fund balance committed to pay debt service on outstanding
debt.
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e Assigned Fund Balance — portion of fund balance that the Mecklenburg County Board of County
Commissioners or the Director of Financial Services has assigned.

Assigned for Land Use and Environmental Services — portion of fund balance that has been
budgeted by the Board of County Commissioners for revaluation and code enforcement activities.

Assigned for Detention and Court Support Services — portion of fund balance that has been
budgeted by the Board of County Commissioners for jail and court operations.

Assigned for Community Services — portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the Board
of County Commissioners for the operations of the Board of Elections.

e Unassigned Fund Balance — portion of fund balance that has been restricted, committed or assigned to
specific purpose or other funds.

The following table presents the restrictions, commitments and assignments of fund balance at June 30,
2012:

Nonmajor Funds

General Special Revenue Capital Projects
Fund Debt Service Fund Funds Funds
Fund Balance:
Non Spendable
Inventory $ 4,960 $ - $ - $ -
Restricted
Stabilization by State Statute 95,149,592 12,556,648 17,862,496 27,893,677
Land Use and Environmental Services 133,221 - 1,956,405
Capital Projects - - - 75,355,810
Health & Human Services 350,952
Committed
Land Use and Environmental Services - - 20,294,846
Public Safety - - 1,310,858
Capital Projects - - - 51,288,127
Detention and Court Support Services 7,622,171
Health & Human Services 11,000,000
Capital Reserve 7,500,000
Technology Reserve 6,500,000
Administrative Services 350,000
Debt Service - 18,823,041
Assigned
Land Use and Environmental Services 4,405,270
Detention and Court Support Services 1,250,125
Community Services 300,000
Unassigned 324,191,167 - (9,267,098) (321,675)
Total $ 458757458 § 31379689  § 32,157,507  $ 154,215,939
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The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders
and contracts that remain unperformed at year-end.

Encumbrances General Fund Non-Major Funds
$28,240,622 $22,372,525

Mecklenburg County has revenue spending guidelines that provide guidance for programs with multiple
revenue sources. The Director of Financial Services will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond
proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local funds, and County funds. For purposes of fund balance
classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by committed
fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Director of Financial
Services has the authority to deviate from this policy if it's in the best interest of the County.

Mecklenburg County has also adopted a fund balance policy for the General Fund which requires that total
fund balance be maintained at 28% of actual revenue. The general fund and debt service fund will be
combined in calculating the 28% revenue requirement. Fund balance in excess of 28% of actual revenue
may be appropriated to fund the capital, technology and fleet reserves. The amount appropriated for the
reserves will not exceed 1.75 cents on the property tax rate. If total fund balance falls below 28% of actual
revenue a two-year payback period will commence. Unassigned fund balance will be maintained at 8% of
the subsequent years’ general fund and debt service fund budgets. Fund balance will not be appropriated for
on-going operations of the County except in extreme emergencies and will be used to fund items non-
recurring in nature.

Restricted Assets

The unexpended bond proceeds of general obligation bonds issued for solid waste facilities are classified as
restricted assets for the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund because their use is restricted to that purpose.

North Carolina State Lottery

The North Carolina General Assembly adopted legislation allocating a portion of the net revenues from the
North Carolina State Lottery Fund to be used to pay for school construction projects or to retire
indebtedness for school construction. For the year ended June 30, 2012, the County received $9,517,100
from the North Carolina Lottery Fund that was used to reduce outstanding school debt.

Benefit Payments Issued by the State

The following amounts were paid by the State on behalf of the County directly to individual recipients. The
County personnel are involved with certain functions, primarily eligibility determinations that cause benefit
payments to be issued by the State. These amounts, which disclose additional aid to County recipients, do
not appear in the basic financial statements because they are not revenues and expenditures of the County:

Medicaid $ 827,379,554
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families 9,475,336
Domiciliary Care 6,546,881
Aid to the Blind 116,995
Supplemental Food Program 17,463,735
Low Income Energy Assistance 818,078
Refugee Assistance 258,434
Adoption Assistance 6,510,824
Foster Care 3,091,457

Total $ 871,661,294
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(n) Deferred Revenues
Revenues collected in advance of the fiscal year in which they are earned are recorded as deferred
revenues in the government-wide and governmental fund financial statements. Deferred revenue in the
governmental funds financial statements also includes revenues that are measurable but not available.

The balances in deferred revenue at June 30, 2012 are composed of the following:

Government-wide Statements Governmental Fund
Governmental Activities Statements
Taxes receivable (net) $ 34,414 $ 37,577,947
Prepaid taxes not yet earned 1,775,805 1,775,805
Grants 1,760,934 1,760,934
Total $ 3571153  § 41,114,686

(o) Statement of Cash Flows
All cash and investments of the proprietary fund are held in a County-wide cash and investment pool. Funds
are available on demand from the pool. Accordingly, all cash and investments are considered cash and
cash equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows.

2. Accounts Receivable

The following reflects the components of accounts receivable as reported in the government-wide Statement of
Net Assets (Deficit) at June 30, 2012:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Debt Service Nonmajor Solid Waste Total
General Fund Fund Funds Enterprise Fund MeckLink Fund Receivables
General $ 10,885,187 $ 876,571 $ 4,394,269 $ 80,818 $ - $ 16,236,845
State and Federal Government 54,635,073 1,612,100 9,267,098 - - 65,514,271
Taxes 58,939,652 10,028,362 1,044,881 - - 70,012,895
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (22,000,000) - (441,000) - - (22,441,000)
Clinic billings 969,550 - - - 969,550
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (838,251) - - - - (838,251)
Interest 1,257,411 39,615 199,216 405,929 - 1,902,171
Total Accounts Receivable $ 103,848,622 $ 12,556,648 $ 14,464,464 $ 486,747 $ - $ 131,356,481
3. Property Tax
The County's property tax levy effective for fiscal year 2012, was based on the assessed values listed as of
January 1, 2011, for real property, boats, trailers and income-producing personal property and vehicles as
described below in this Note. Such assessed values were based upon current estimated market values for
personal property and, for real property, estimated market values as of January 1, 2011. The property tax rate for
the 2012 fiscal year was $.8166 per $100 valuation. A revaluation of all real property is required to be performed
at least every eight years. The County’s last revaluation was completed in fiscal year 2011 effective for fiscal
year 2012. North Carolina General Statutes require that each County make annual appropriations to accumulate
the moneys estimated to be required for such purpose.
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In accordance with State law, the County levies ad valorem taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July
1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due September 1, the lien date; however, penalties and interest
do not accrue until the following January 6. The County considers all revenues available if they are collected
within 60 days after year-end, except for property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as revenue
because the amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are
not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year.

Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on
registered motor vehicles. Effective with this change, the County is responsible for billing and collecting property
taxes on all registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County. For
those motor vehicles registered under the staggered system and for vehicles newly-registered under the annual
system, property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes
are applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due. Therefore, taxes for vehicles registered from March
2011 through February 2012 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Uncollected taxes which were billed
during this period are shown as a receivable on these financial statements. For motor vehicles which are
renewed and billed under the annual system, taxes are due on May 1 of each year and the uncollected taxes are
reported as a receivable on the financial statements offset by deferred revenues because the due date and the
date upon which the interest begins to accrue passed prior to June 30. The taxes for renewal vehicles registered
annually that have already been collected as of year-end are also reflected as deferred revenues at June 30,
2012 because they are intended to finance the County’s operations during the 2013 fiscal year.

Taxes Collected for Municipalities

The County acts as agent for billing and collecting property tax levies for all municipalities in the County. Such
amounts are accounted for in the fiduciary Agency Funds. The County also collects room occupancy taxes, a
portion of which is distributed to the City of Charlotte and Towns of Cornelius, Davidson, Huntersville, Matthews
and Pineville, food and beverage taxes, which are distributed to the City of Charlotte, and vehicle rental taxes
which are distributed to the City of Charlotte and Towns of Cornelius, Matthews, Mint Hill and Pineville.
Additionally, the County collects vehicle taxes for the Town of Stallings and NC Department of Revenue. These
amounts are accounted for in the two Agency Funds, Municipalities’ Taxes and Food and Beverage Tax,
respectively.
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5. Capital Assets
Primary Government

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2012
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated :
Land $ 427419233 § 9421580 § - $ - $ 436,840,813
Construction in progress 56,100,202 15,626,451 (8,973,009) 62,753,644
Total capital assets not being depreciated 483,519,435 25,048,031 - (8,973,009) 499,594 457
Capital assets being depreciated :
Land improvements 59,503,284 958,090 60,461,374
Buildings and improvements 687,762,488 1,231,940 - 8,821,898 697,816,326
Vehicles and Heavy Equipment 25,267,965 666,685 (743,699) - 25,190,951
Furniture, Machinery and Equipment 25,726,596 942,761 (83,142) - 26,586,215
Intangibles-Software and Licenses 11,973,438 2,840,418 - 151,111 14,964,967
Total capital assets being depreciated 810,233,771 6,639,894 (826,841) 8,973,009 825,019,833
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (23,682,087) (2,506,845) - (26,188,933)
Buildings and improvements (247,618,351) (20,382,468) - (268,000,819)
Vehicles and Heavy Equipment (17,729,190) (1,298,562) 610,469 - (18,417,283)
Furniture, Machinery and Equipment (20,621,012) (1,387,487) 83,142 - (21,925,357)
Intangibles-Software and Licenses (4,268,611) (1,244,306) - (5,512,917)
Total accumulated depreciation (313,919,251) (26,819,668) 693,611 - (340,045,308)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 496,314,520 (20,179,774) (133,230) 8,973,009 484,974,525
Governmental activities capital assets, net § 979833955 § 4868257 §  (1332230) § - $ 984,568,982
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Primary Government continued

Business-type activities
Business-type activities

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2012
Capital assets not being depreciated :
Land $ 28687608 - $ - $ - $ 28,687,608
Construction in progress 1,160,362 3,145,565 4,305,927
Total capital assets not being depreciated 29,847,970 3,145,565 - - 32,993,535
Capital assets being depreciated :
Land improvements 10,484,779 29,838 - 10,514,617
Buildings and improvements 13,529,858 850,214 - - 14,380,072
Vehicles and Heavy Equipment 6,604,984 407,400 (1,543,311) (271,600) 5,197,473
Furniture, Machinery and Equipment 6,105,062 3,246,045 - 271,600 9,622,707
Total capital assets being depreciated 36,724,683 4,533,497 (1,543,311) - 39,714,869
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (2,772,371) (347,579) - (3,119,950)
Buildings and improvements (6,742,018) (593,362) - (7,335,380)
Vehicles and Heavy Equipment (4,776,600) (402,104) 1,275,044 (3,903,660)
Furniture, Machinery and Equipment (1,460,113) (1,434,817) - (2,894,930)
Total accumulated depreciation (15,751,102) (2,777,862) 1,275,044 - (17,253,920)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 20,973,581 1,755,635 (268,267) - 22,460,949
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 50,821,551 $ 4901200 $ (268267) § - $ 55,454,484

Depreciation expense was charged to the programs of the County as follows:
Governmental activities:

Customer Satisfaction and Management Services $ 13,098
Administrative Services 2,020,141
Financial Services 1,136,598
Land Use and Environmental Services 635,531
Community Services 6,388,243
Detention and Court Support Services 13,996,811
Health and Human Services 2,018,602
Business Partners 610,644

Total Governmental activities 26,819,668

Business-type activities:

Solid Waste Enterprise Fund 2,777,862

Total depreciation expense $ 29,597,530
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Amounts expended and estimated costs to complete the County's construction in progress are as follows:

Estimated
Project Expended to Costs to
Authorization June 30, 2012 Complete
Projects:
Governmental Funds:
Park and Recreational Facilities $ 96,460,205 § 56,678,101 $ 39,782,104
Law Enforcement/Court Facilities 22,165,000 5,895,397 16,269,603
County Facilities 18,317,217 180,146 18,137,071
Total Governmental Funds 136,942,422 62,753,644 74,188,778
Business-type activities
Solid Waste Enterprise Fund 9,700,000 4,305,926 5,394,074
Total $ 146,642,422 § 67,059,570 § 79,582,852

Activity in the Library’s Capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012
Capital assets not being depreciated :
Land $ 13,523,473 $ - $ - $ 13,523,473
Construction in progress 241,622 504,001 (541,616) 204,007
Total capital assets not being depreciated 13,765,095 504,001 (541,616) 13,727,480
Capital assets being depreciated :
Buildings and improvements 89,780,406 745,082 - 90,525,488
Books 18,981,147 1,602,534 (2,075,088) 18,508,593
Furniture and Equipment 7,113,739 119,198 (937,499) 6,295,438
Total capital assets being depreciated 115,875,292 2,466,814 (3,012,587) 115,329,519
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (22,801,164) (2,266,662) - (25,067,826)
Books (15,020,188) (1,733,958) 2,075,088 (14,679,058)
Furniture and Equipment (5,073,984) (608,752) 937,499 (4,745,237)
Total accumulated depreciation (42,895,336) (4,609,372) 3,012,587 (44,492,121)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 72,979,956 (2,142,558) - 70,837,398
Total Capital assets, net $ 86,745,051 $ (1,638557) §  (541,616) $§ 84,564,878
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Activity in the Medic Agency’s capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012
Capital assets being depreciated :
Vehicles $ 10,922,630 $ 693,142 $  (227350) § 11,388,422
Furniture and Equipment 2,409,805 885,258 - 3,295,063
Patient Equipment 1,825,219 272,351 - 2,097,570
Computer Equipment 4,009,427 268,226 - 4,277,653
Buildings and improvements 5,917,443 783,868 - 6,701,311
Total capital assets being depreciated 25,084,524 2,902,845 (227,350) 27,760,019
Less accumulated depreciation:
Vehicles (8,999,369) (948,724) 227,350 (9,720,743)
Furniture and Equipment (2,118,696) (218,093) - (2,336,789)
Patient Equipment (1,238,782) (252,510) - (1,491,292)
Computer Equipment (3,163,982) (371,894) - (3,535,876)
Buildings and improvements (3,625,909) (360,820) - (3,986,729)
Total accumulated depreciation (19,146,738) (2,152,041) 227,350 (21,071,429)
Total Capital assets, net $§ 593778 § 750804 § - $ 6688590
Activity in the ABC Board’s capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows:
Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012
Capital assets not being depreciated :
Land $ 4,901,873 $ 1,051,252 $ - $ 5,953,125
Construction in progress 1,132,656 122,031 (1,109,705) 144,982
Total capital assets not being depreciated 6,034,529 1,173,283 (1,109,705) 6,098,107
Capital assets being depreciated :
Buildings and improvements 25,902,341 2,287,530 28,189,871
Furniture, Machinery and Equipment 3,311,078 113,339 3,424,417
Motor vehicles 783,354 134,875 (133,284) 784,945
Total capital assets being depreciated 29,996,773 2,535,744 (133,284) 32,399,233
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements (6,849,960) (1,048,805) (7,898,765)
Furniture, Machinery and Equipment (2,539,723) (216,313) (2,756,036)
Motor vehicles (614,824) (118,142) 131,693 (601,273)
Total accumulated depreciation (10,004,507) (1,383,260) 131,693 (11,256,074)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 19,992,266 1,152,484 (1,591) 21,143,159

Total Capital assets, net $ 2602795 $ 2325767 $ (1,111,296) $ 27,241,266
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6. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

The components of accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2012 for the governmental activities and
the business-type activities as reported in the Statement of Net Assets (Deficit) are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

General Debt Service Nonmajor Solid Waste Total Accounts Payable

Fund Fund Funds Enterprise Fund ~ MeckLink Fund and Accrued Liabilities
General payables $ 58,897,237 $ - $ 20,713,188  § 2,166,790 $ 16,585  $ 81,793,800
Salaries & benefits payable 12,241,868 - 59,471 312,372 - 12,613,711
Reserve for self insurance 6,931,185 - - - - 6,931,185
Other accrued liabilities 6,338,758 - 8,782 - 8,312 6,355,852
Total $ 84,409,048 $ - $ 20,781,441 $ 2,479,162 $ 24,897 $ 107,694,548

7. Long Term Debt
General Obligation Bonds

The County issues general obligation bonds to provide for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities for the County, Public Library of Charlotte and Mecklenburg County, Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools
and Central Piedmont Community College. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full
faith and credit of the County. The County consolidates all debt issues, including schools, into the Public
Improvement category. Repayment of general obligation bonds is funded from general property tax revenues.
The general obligation bonded debt associated with the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund is reported in that fund and
will be repaid from revenues generated by solid waste fees and charges.
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General obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 2012:

Due Average
Serially Interest Original Balance
Issue Date To Rate % Issue June 30, 2012

Refunding Bonds 2001 - Series C May 1, 2001 2013 43714 $ 149,455,000 § 8,350,000
Public Improvement 2003 - Series A February 1, 2003 2020 4.0699 193,000,000 15,000,000
Variable Rate Demand Bonds 2003 - Series B February 1, 2003 2023 Variable 40,000,000 40,000,000
Public Improvement 2004 - Series A February 1, 2004 2020 3413 105,000,000 13,150,000
Variable Rate Demand Bonds 2004 — Series B February 1, 2004 2024 Variable 100,000,000 100,000,000
Refunding Bonds 2004 - Series C April 1, 2004 2013 3.0951 135,470,000 24,455,000
Public Improvement 2005 - Series A February 1, 2005 2026 3.9849 32,300,000 22,610,000
Refunding Bonds 2005 — Series C May 1, 2005 2016 3.4368 172,125,000 86,905,000
Public Improvement 2007 - Series A February 1, 2007 2027 4169 102,000,000 30,910,000
Parks and Recreation Bonds 2008 — Series A February 1, 2008 2028 3.6115 12,000,000 9,600,000
Public Improvement 2008 — Series B February 1, 2008 2028 3.7954 148,500,000 86,500,000
Refunding Bonds 2009 — Series A March 10, 2009 2020 22523 243,965,000 237,300,000
Public-Improvement 2009 — Series B September 1, 2009 2030 3.5372 100,000,000 90,000,000
Refunding Bonds - 2009 Series C September 1, 2009 2020 26227 130,390,000 130,390,000
Variable Rate Bonds 2009 — Series D September 1, 2009 2026 Variable 120,000,000 113,875,000
Refunding Bonds 2010 — Series A March 16, 2010 2026 3.1098 114,940,000 113,685,000
Public Improvement 2011 — Series A October 27, 2011 2020 1.4854 49,000,000 49,000,000
Qualified School Construction Bonds - Series B October 27, 2011 2031 0.0156 51,000,000 51,000,000
Refunding Bonds 2011 — Series C October 27, 2011 2026 2.9501 164,015,000 162,315,000
Total $  2,163,160,000 § 1,385,045,000

The bonds are recorded as follows:
Governmental Activities $ 1,385,016,984
Business-type Activities (Solid Waste Enterprise Fund) 28,016
Total $ 1,385,045,000

The County has advance refunded particular public improvement bonds. These refundings achieve significant
interest savings over the life of the bonds and decrease the principal amount outstanding of the refunded bonds.
The new proceeds were placed with an escrow agent in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt
requirements of the refunded debt. The refunded debt is considered defeased and the applicable liabilities have
been removed from the governmental activities.

In fiscal year 2009, the County issued $243,965,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds at a total interest cost
of 2.25%. The purpose was to defease $253,800,000 of the principal amounts outstanding of the Public
Improvement 2001 Series A and D; 2002 Series A and B; and 2003 Series A bonds. At June 30, 2012
$92,000,000 in outstanding bonds is considered defeased.

In fiscal year 2010, the County issued $114,940,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds at a total interest cost
of 3.11%. The purpose was to defease $111,090,000 of the principal amount outstanding of the Public
Improvements 2007 Series A bonds and 2008 Series B bonds. At June 30, 2012 $111,090,000 in outstanding
bonds is considered defeased.

In fiscal year 2012, the County issued $164,015,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds at a true interest cost
of 2.95%. The total amount refunded was $176,200,000 and it resulted in the net debt service savings of
approximately $2.62 million. The purpose was to defease $39,450,000 of the principal amount outstanding of
the Public Improvements 2004 Series A bonds and refund the 2000 Series C bonds, 2001 Series B bonds and
2006 Series A bonds. At June 30, 2012 $39,450,000 in outstanding bonds is considered defeased.
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General obligation bonds are due serially and mature during the fiscal years 2013 to 2031 at average interest
rates at date of issuance ranging from 2.25% to 4.95% for the fixed rate bonds. The effective rate of interest paid
on the average principal balance of outstanding bonds during the year was 4.9%.

The County has $253,875,000 outstanding in Variable Rate Demand Bonds. The County has Remarketing and
Standby Purchase Agreements for $100,000,000 of these bonds. Under these agreements, the banks will
remarket any bonds for which payment is demanded. If the bonds cannot be remarketed, the banks will purchase
the bonds. The County also has $113,875,000 in Variable Rate Refunding Bonds, Series 2009D, which are
remarketed and bear interest at the Windows Interest Rate, the SIFMA index plus the Windows spread of 0.10%
per annum. The County is the liquidity support for the 2009D bonds. The following schedule shows the
expiration date for the SPAs, fees paid in fiscal year 2012 pursuant to the standby and remarketing agreements,
and the interest rate at year-end for these issues. Interest rates may change pursuant to the terms of the debt
agreements based on market conditions and the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) and SIFMA. The
interest rates, per the Remarketing Agreements, cannot exceed 12%. The maximum interest required for these
bonds through maturity would be $288,603,750.

In addition in fiscal year 2012, Branch Banking and Trust Company purchased all of the $40,000,000 in Variable
Rate General Obligation Bonds, Series 2003B and the bonds were converted to a Bank—Bought interest rate that
resets monthly.

Balance Fees Paid Interest Rate

Issue June 30, 2012 Standby Purchase Fiscal Year 2012 June 30, 2012
2003B $ 40,000,000 None § 23,070 114
2004B 100,000,000 February 12, 2013 777,560 0.18
2009D 113,875,000 None 115,398 0.28

The following schedule shows annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt outstanding as of June 30, 2012.
Interest on the variable rate bonds has been estimated using the rate in effect at June 30, 2012.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 132,391,984  § 51,210,389  § 28,016 $ 2,342
2014 108,965,000 36,037,149
2015 119,315,000 40,434,013
2016 128,145,000 35,137,553
2017 112,700,000 29,415,801
2018 - 2022 463,160,000 84,691,189
2023 - 2027 241,740,000 34,835,378
2028 - 2031 78,600,000 9,517,565

Total $ 1385016984 § 321,279,037 § 28,016 $ 2,342

The County is subject to the Local Government Bond Act of North Carolina, which limits the amount of net
bonded debt (exclusive of funding and refunding bonds, bonds issued for water, gas, or electric power purposes,
and bonds issued for certain other specified purposes) the County may have outstanding to 8% of the appraised
value of property subject to taxation. At June 30, 2012, such statutory limit for the County was $9,335,348,737
providing a legal debt margin of $6,858,558,249.

As of June 30, 2012, $625,540,000 of general obligation bonds was authorized but unissued.
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Special Obligation Bonds

In fiscal year 2012, the County issued $12,220,000 of Special Obligation Bonds pursuant to the North Carolina
Solid Waste Management Loan Program and Local Government Special Obligation Bond Act. The true interest
cost of the bonds is 3.22% with an average life of 8.33 years. The final maturity date is January 1, 2026. The
bonds are used to acquire and construct certain additions and improvements to the County’s existing solid waste
management facilities, acquire equipment and pay certain costs related to the issuance of the Special Obligation
Bonds.

Special Obligation Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2012:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest
2013 $ 665,000 $ 518,600
2014 690,000 492,000
2015 720,000 464,400
2016 745,000 435,600
2017 775,000 405,800

2018-22 4,420,000 1,493,400
2023 - 26 4,205,000 517,200

$ 12,220,000 $ 4,327,000

Installment Financings

The Mecklenburg County Public Facilities Corporation (the Corporation) has issued certificates of participation
and limited obligation refunding bonds to provide funds which would include the constructing, renovating and
equipping of various County school facilities and improvements to certain County government facilities.

In addition, Mecklenburg County received a NC Clean Water State revolving loan agreement and entered into a
Guaranteed Energy Savings Contract.

Installment Financings outstanding at June 30, 2012:

Due Average
Serially Interest Original Balance
Issue Date To Rate % Issue June 30, 2012
2006 Certificates February 1, 2006 2026 variable $ 108,000,000 § 75,600,000
2008A Certificates February 1, 2008 2028 variable 124,960,000 93,020,000
2008B Certificates February 1, 2008 2028 4435 34,720,000 34,720,000
2009A Certificates February 1, 2009 2029 4.224 90,765,000 77,245,000
2009 Limited Obligation Bond September 3, 2009 2027 3.742 223,980,000 174,785,000
NC Clean Water State Revolving Loan April 11,2011 2030 2,493,625 944,207
Guaranteed Energy Savings Contract December 16, 2011 2025 6,291,281 6,291,281
Total $ 591,209,906  §$ 462,605,488

The installment financings are due serially and mature during the fiscal years 2013 to 2030 at average interest
rates at date of issuance ranging from 3.74% to 4.43% for the fixed rate obligations. The effective rate of interest
paid on the average principal balance outstanding during the year was 4.19%.
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The Corporation has outstanding $168,620,000 in variable rate certificates of participation. The County has
Remarketing and Standby Purchase Agreements with banks related to these certificates. Under these
agreements, the banks will remarket any certificates for which payment is demanded. If the certificates cannot be
remarketed, the banks will purchase the certificates. The following schedule shows the expiration dates for the
Standby Purchase Agreements, fees paid in fiscal year 2012 pursuant to the Standby and Remarketing
Agreements, and the interest rate at year-end for these issues. Interest rates may change pursuant to the terms
of the debt agreements based on market conditions and the LIBOR rate. The interest rates, per the Remarketing
Agreements, cannot exceed 12%. The maximum interest required for these certificates through maturity would
be $146,993,448.

Balance Fees Paid Interest Rate
|ssue June 30, 2012 Agreement Expiration Fiscal Year 2012 June 30, 2012

2006 $ 75,600,000 January 13,2013 § 542,525 0.19
2008A 93,020,000 February 21, 2013 132,627 0.23

The following table shows the annual debt service requirements to maturity. Interest on the variable rate
certificates has been estimated using the rate in effect at June 30, 2012.

Fiscal Year Principal Interest
2013 $ 33237456 § 14,036,424
2014 33,514,573 13,184,333
2015 31,855,346 12,235,816
2016 31,819,282 11,339,025
2017 31,747,388 10,385,983

2018 -22 155,659,878 37,448,673
2023 -27 127,569,215 14,258,456
2028 - 29 17,202,350 836,872

$ 462605488 § 113,725,582

Interest Rate Swaps

The County has entered into interest rate swap agreements that are intended to hedge the variable interest rate
cash flow exposure of certain variable debt obligations of the County. The County applied one or more of the
effectiveness testing methods described in GASB Statement No. 53 to evaluate effectiveness of the swaps for
financial reporting purposes. The results of effectiveness testing reflected that all the County’s swaps are
effective hedges and, as such, hedge accounting would be applicable. The changes in the fair values of the
swaps are reported as deferred outflow on the statement of net assets.

On October 12, 2011, the County elected to terminate a portion of the 2003 and 2006 swaps as part of the
refunding of a portion of the related variable rate debt issues.

2003 Swaps

The County entered into interest rate swap agreements for the Public Improvement Series 2000C, Series 2001B
and Series 2002C variable rate bonds effective September 17, 2003 with Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc.,
Bank of America N.A. and Wells Fargo. In 2009 the County refunded the Series 2002C issue with a portion of
the Variable Rate Refunding Bonds, Series 2009D. On October 12, 2011, the County elected to terminate a
portion of the 2003 swaps. The total notional amount terminated was $70,000,000. In connection with the partial
termination of the 2003 swaps, termination payments totaling $8,248,353 were paid to the swap counterparties.
The synthetic fixed rate swap effectively changes these variable rate bonds to the fixed rate of 3.312%.
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The bonds and the related swap agreements mature on February 1, 2022. The swap notional amount of
$25,000,000 corresponds with a portion of the total principal amount of the related variable rate bond issues.
Beginning in February 2011, the notional amount of the swaps and the principal amount of the associated debt
decline annually. Under the swap agreements the County pays the counterparties a fixed interest payment
monthly at 3.312% of the notional amount and receives a variable monthly interest payment computed at 64.7%
of one-month LIBOR.

At June 30, 2012 the swaps had a current negative fair value for the County of $5,021,279, an increase of
$4,489,116 from June 30, 2011. Valuations as of June 30, 2012 were obtained from the County’s independent
swap advisor and based on discounted forecasts of expected swap cash flows.

The swaps expose the County to basis risk should the relationship between one-month LIBOR and the rate the
County pays on its variable rate bonds diverge, thus in effect changing the synthetic rate on the bonds. The
effect of this risk can be shown by the intended synthetic rate of 3.312% and the synthetic rate as of June 30,
2012 of 3.437%. At June 30, 2012, the average rate on the County’s bonds was 0.28%, whereas 64.7% of one-
month LIBOR was 0.154%.

2005 Swaps

The County entered into interest rate swap agreements for the Public Improvement Series 2005B variable rate
bonds effective February 9, 2005 with Bank of America N.A. and Wells Fargo. In 2009 this bond issue was
refunded by a portion of the Variable Rate Refunding Bonds, Series 2009D. The synthetic fixed rate swap
effectively changes these variable rate bonds to the fixed rate of 3.413%.

The bonds and the related swap agreements mature on February 1, 2026. The swap notional amount of
$88,000,000 corresponds with the principal amount of the related variable rate bond issue. The notional amount
of the swap and the principal amount of the associated debt decline annually. Under the swap agreements the
County pays the counterparties a fixed interest payment monthly at 3.41336% of the notional amount and
receives a variable monthly interest payment computed at 67% of one-month LIBOR.

At June 30, 2012 the swaps had a negative fair value for the County of $16,609,474 an increase of $7,738,232
from June 30, 2011. Valuations as of June 30, 2012 were obtained from the County’s independent swap advisor
and based on discounted forecasts of expected swap cash flows.

The swaps expose the County to basis risk should the relationship between one-month LIBOR and the rate the
County pays on its variable rate bonds diverge, thus in effect changing the synthetic rate on the bonds. The
effect of this risk can be shown by the intended synthetic rate of 3.41336% and the synthetic rate as of June 30,
2012 of 3.533%. At June 30, 2012, the rate on the County’s bonds was 0.28%, whereas 67% of one-month
LIBOR was 0.160%.

2006 Swaps

The County entered into interest rate swap agreements for $67.8 million of the Public Improvement Series 2006A
variable rate bonds and $82.2 million of the 2006 variable rate Certificates of Participation effective February 9,
2006 with Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc., Natixis Financial Products, Bank of America N.A. and Wells Fargo.
On October 12, 2011, the County elected to terminate a portion of the 2006 swaps, the total notional amount
terminated was $66,750,000. In connection with the partial termination of the 2006 swaps, termination payments
totaling $7,686,174 were paid to the swap counterparties. The synthetic fixed rate swap effectively changes
these variable rate obligations to the fixed rate of 3.093%.

The obligations and the related swap agreements mature on February 1, 2026. The swap notional amount of
$42,700,000 corresponds with the principal amounts of the related variable rate bond issues. The notional
amount of the swap and the principal amount of the associated debt decline annually. Under the swap
agreements the County pays the counterparties a fixed interest payment monthly at 3.093% of the notional
amount and receives a variable monthly interest payment computed at 67% of one-month LIBOR.

At June 30, 2012 the swaps had a negative fair value for the County of $6,060,478 an increase of $3,735,938
from June 30, 2011. Valuations as of June 30, 2012 were obtained from the County’s independent swap advisor
and based on discounted forecasts of expected swap cash flows.
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The swaps expose the County to basis risk should the relationship between one-month LIBOR and the rate the
County pays on its variable rate bonds diverge, thus in effect changing the synthetic rate on the bonds. The
effect of this risk can be shown by the intended synthetic rate of 3.093% and the synthetic rate as of June 30,
2012 of 3.123%. At June 30, 2012, the weighted average rate on the County’s bonds was 0.19%, whereas 67%
of one-month LIBOR was 0.160%.

Counterparty Risk

As a part of corporate restructuring in 2008 and 2009, Wachovia Bank, N.A. became a division of Wells Fargo &
Company and Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc. became a division of Bank of America.

June 30, 2012 the County was exposed to counterparty risk for the 2003, 2005 and 2006 swaps. Counterparty
risk is the likelihood that the counterparty will not perform pursuant to the terms of the swap. Under the swap, if
any of the counterparties default, the County could be exposed to an unhedge variable rate bond position,
ultimately resulting in interest rate risk that it had shifted to the counterparty and potentially termination risk.

Credit risk is the risk of change in the credit quality or credit rating of the district and/or its counterparty. As of
June 30, 2012, the swap counterparties were rated as follows:

Counterparty Moody's S&P Fitch
Bank of America N.A. A3 A A
Natixis Financial Products A2 A A+
Wells Fargo Aa3 AA- AA-

To mitigate the potential for credit risk, if the counterparties’ credit falls to A1 by Moody’s Investors Service
(Moody’s), A+ by Fitch Ratings (Fitch), or A+ by Standard & Poor's (S&P) and their exposure exceeds
$5,000,000, the counterparty is obligated to post collateral consisting of U.S. government securities. Collateral
would be posted with a third party custodian. As of June 30, 2012, collateralization was not required. The
County is not required to collateralize its obligation under the swap agreements. As of June 30, 2012, the
Authority was not exposed to credit risk because the swaps had a negative fair value.

The swaps may be terminated by the County or the counterparties if the other party fails to make payments when
due, there is a material breach of representations and warranties, an event of illegality occurs, or failure to
comply with any other provisions of the agreement after a specified notice period. An additional termination
event occurs if the County’s or the counterparties’ ratings fall below Baa1 by Moody’s or BBB+ by S&P or Fitch.
The County has the option to terminate the swaps at any time. In the event a swap is terminated, a termination
payment may be owed by either party. The termination amount would be based on the swap’s fair value on the
termination date. Based on the current market conditions, the termination payment may be owed or received by
the County.

The notional amounts applicable to each swap by counterparty are as follows:

Counterparty 2003 Swap 2005 Swap 2006 Swap Total
Bank of America N.A. $ 18,750,000 $ 30,800,000 $ 17,080,000 $ 66,630,000
Wells Fargo 6,250,000 57,200,000 8,540,000 71,990,000
Natixis Financial Products - - 17,080,000 17,080,000
Total $ 25,000,000 $ 88,000,000 $ 42,700,000 $ 155,700,000
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Using rates at June 30, 2012 for the term of the bonds, debt service requirements of the variable rate debt and
net swap payments for the swaps are as follows:

Variable Rate Debt
Fiscal Year Interest Rate
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Swap Net Total

2013 $ 5,050,000 $ 387975 § 4764378  § 10,202,353
2014 5,050,000 376,580 4,609,852 10,036,432
2015 5,050,000 365,185 4,455,327 9,870,512
2016 5,050,000 353,790 4,300,801 9,704,591
2017 11,050,000 336,851 4,081,858 15,468,709
2018-2022 80,250,000 1,203,228 14,508,121 95,961,349
2023-2026 44,200,000 227,348 2,767,279 47,194,627
Total $ 155,700,000 $ 3250957 § 39487616 § 198,438,573

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The following presents the changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2011 Additions Reductions June 30, 2012 One Year
Governmental activities:
General obligation bonds § 1427,884,428 § 264015000 $ (306,882,445 $ 1,385016983  $ 132,392,000
Bond premium 99,506,210 30,994,281 (23,560,535) 106,939,956 14,311,840
Less: deferred charge - refundings (10,167,206) (10,204,859) 1,180,159 (19,191,906) (1,101,046)
Total bonds payable 1,517,223,432 284,804,422 (329,262,821) 1,472,765,033 145,602,794
Capital leases 435,858 650,000 (435,858) 650,000 130,520
Compensated absences 25,977,311 20,069,562 (20,114,797) 25,932,076 2,898,438
Installment financings 488,670,000 8,784,906 (34,849,418) 462,605,488 33,401,590
Interest rate swap 28,178,048 - (486,817) 27,691,231
Unfunded OPEB liability 26,780,606 22,991,427 - 49,772,033
Unfunded pension liability 3,800,626 217,262 - 4,017,888 -
Total Governmental Activities 2,091,065,881 337,517,579 (385,149,711) 2,043,433,749 182,033,342
Business-type activities:
General obligation bonds 605,572 - (577,556) 28,016 28,016
Less deferred charge - refundings (100,313) - 100,313 - -
Special Obligation Bonds - 12,220,000 - 12,220,000 665,000
Plus: Bond Premium - 1,024,528 (45,762) 978,766 68,302
Total bonds payable 505,259 13,244,528 (523,005) 13,226,782 761,318
Capital leases 930,543 - (450,223) 480,320 317,301
Compensated absences 524,938 366,761 (376,199) 515,500 67,972
Landfill development and
postclosure care costs 8,424,632 369,088 - 8,793,720 -
Total Business-type Activities 10,385,372 13,980,377 (1,349,427 23,016,322 1,146,591
Total Government-wide $ 2101451253 § 351497956 $ (386499,138) $ 2,066,450071 § 183,179,933
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For the governmental funds, the unfunded pension liability and compensated absences are liquidated by the
General fund.

The following presents the changes in long-term liabilities for the year end June 30, 2012 for the Library.

Balance Balance Due within
June 30, 2011 Additions Reductions June 30, 2012 One Year
Governmental activities:
Capital leases $ 1072949 § - $ (161234) § 911,715  § 166,662
Compensated Absences 1,985,869 902,186 (1,170,726) 1,717,329 1,200,000
OPEB Liability 10,322,784 3,023,920 (590,565) 12,756,139 -
Total Governmental activities $ 13381602 § 3926106 $§ (1,922,525) $ 15385183 § 1,366,662

The $1,700,719 of long-term liabilities due within one year for the Medic Agency represents compensated
absences at June 30, 2012. The $11,177,504 of long-term liabilities due in more than one year represents the
unfunded liability for future post employment healthcare benefits.

Leases

The County leases certain equipment, primarily computer and heavy equipment, under agreements classified as
capital leases according to provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 13 "Accounting
for Leases". Obligations of these lease agreements are accounted for in the governmental activities of the
government-wide statements and in the business-type activities Enterprise Fund. The net book value of
capitalized leases recorded in the governmental activities, capital assets — furniture, machinery, and equipment,
of the government-wide statements is $973,638 and the net book value of those assets recorded in the
Enterprise Fund, capital assets — vehicles and heavy equipment, is $934,322.

In addition, the County leases various types of office equipment under operating leases. Under terms of these
leases, the County's obligation to continue payments is contingent upon continued annual funding by the
Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners. At June 30, 2012, future minimum lease payments due under
capital leases and operating leases with initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year
are as follows:

Capital Leases

Governmental Solid Waste Operating
Year Ending June 30, Activities Enterprise Fund Leases
2013 $ 144625  § 332,005 $ 268,693
2014 141,792 166,002 55,469
2015 138,960 - 58,000
2016 136,128

2017 130,520 - -
692,025 498,007 382,162

Less: amount representing interest (42,025) (17,687) -
Total $ 650,000 $ 480,320 $ 382,162

The Library leases certain branch facilities under lease agreements having initial terms of two to fifty years.
These lease agreements include scheduled rent increases which management believes are intended to cover
economic factors related to the underlying property such as property value appreciation and inflation. Certain
lease agreements also provide for renewal option periods of five years. Two of the branch facility leases have
been classified as capital leases. Monthly lease payments of $1,500 are required on the first capital lease until
September 2045. The second capital lease requires monthly payments, which are changed annually (ranging
from $17,051 to $6,560), through June 2017. Beginning July 2017 through July 2051 the annual lease payment
is $1.
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The following is a summary of the Library’s future minimum lease payments under the capital lease together with
the present value of net minimum lease payments, and approximate future minimum rental commitments under
noncancelable operating leases with initial or remaining terms of one year or more as of June 30, 2012:

Capital Operating
Year Ending June 30, Leases Leases
2013 $ 214160 § 287,538
2014 205,957 183,655
2015 196,210 183,655
2016 172,696 183,655
2017 80,223 183,655
2018 - 2022 212,113 397,949
2023 - 2027 7,505 -
2028 - 2032 7,505 -
2033 - 2037 7,505 -
2038 - 2042 7,505 -
2043 - 2047 4,880 -
2048 - 2051 4 -
Total minimum payments 1,116,263 $ 1,420,107
Less: amount representing interest (204,548)
Present value of net minimum capital lease payments $ 911,715

Total interest costs for the year ended June 30, 2012 were $60,850 relating to the capital lease obligations.

The Medic Agency entered into a lease agreement on November 18, 1997 with Crescent Resources, Inc. and
Mecklenburg County to lease space for a Central Operations Center, which allowed the Medic Agency to
consolidate its operations into one location. The 10 year lease commenced September 2, 1998. On November
23, 2004; the first amendment to the lease was executed. The amended lease includes additional square
footage and expires August 31, 2015. The annual obligation for the amended lease is $497,254. The Agency
exercised the first option of renewal for four years. The lease now expires August 31, 2015.

The schedule of future minimum lease payments under the lease as of June 30, 2012 follows:

Year Ending June 30, Amount
2013 $ 660452
2014 664,608
2015 668,884
2016 110,600
$ 2,104,544
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The ABC Board's minimum annual rentals on store properties and equipment leased, with lease terms extending
to July 10, 2027, at June 30, 2012 are summarized as follows:

Operating

Year Ending June 30, Leases

2013 $ 1,444,000
2014 1,365,657
2015 1,310,842
2016 1,059,531
2017 -2019 2,067,127
2020 - 2024 1,801,817
2025 - 2027 605,002

Total m

For the year ended June 30, 2012 rent expense for operating leases for the County was $476,536, for the Library
was $719,000, for the Medic Agency was $589,342, and for the ABC Board was $1,486,151.

9. Transfers

The General Fund transferred $13,966,100 to the non-major Capital Reserve fund, $32,343,773 to the non-major
Pay-As-You-Go Capital Projects fund authorized by the Board of County Commissioners to fund capital projects
and $315,000 to the Technology Reserve fund. $116,234 was transferred from the County Historic Landmark
Commission to the General Fund. The General Fund transferred $1,700,000 to the MeckLink Fund to cover
operations.

10. Pension Plan Obligations
(a) North Carolina Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System

Mecklenburg County contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
(LGERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North
Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of
N.C.G.S. 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to
the Office of the State Controller, 3512 Bush Street, Raleigh, North Carolina 27609, or by calling (919) 981-
5454.

Plan members are required to contribute 6% of their annual covered salary. The County is required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The rate for fiscal year 2012 for employees not engaged in law
enforcement is 6.88%. The rate for law enforcement officers was 6.90% from July 1, 2011 through
September 30, 2012. The rate increased from 6.90% to 6.91% effective October 1, 2011. The rate is a
percentage of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of members and of Mecklenburg
County are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The County’s
contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $14,462,001, $12,835,918,
and $10,396,681, respectively. The contributions made by the County equaled the required contributions for
the year.

The Library, Medic Agency and ABC Board also participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental
Employees' Retirement System described above, which is the same plan in which the County participates.
The Library’s contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $879,948,
$841,898, and $854,824 respectively. The rate for fiscal year 2012 for employees is 6.96% of covered
payroll. The Medic Agency’s contributions to LGERS for the year ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010
were $1,696,964, $1,314,512, and $1,010,040 respectively, and the rate for fiscal year 2012 for employees
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is 6.92% of covered payroll. The ABC Board’s contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2012,
2011, and 2010 were $365,783, $342,463, and $265,501, respectively. The ABC Board's required
contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers are 7.0% and
7.05% of covered payroll, respectively. The contributions made by the Library, Medic Agency and ABC
Board equaled the required contributions for the year.

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

The County administers a public employee retirement system (“Separation Allowance”), an agent multiple
employer, defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to qualified sworn law enforcement
officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the monthly equivalent of the base rate of
compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement
benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the
General Assembly. Article 12D of N.C.G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

All full-time County law enforcement officers are covered by the Separation Allowance; however, benefit
eligibility is based on qualified and creditable service for unreduced retirement benefits. At December 31,
2011, the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of:

County
Retirees 34
Active plan members 310
Total 344

The County has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay-as-you-go basis. Pension expenditures
by the County, for which there is no separately issued financial report, of $626,883 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012, were made from the General Fund, which is maintained on a modified accrual basis of
accounting.

The County is required by Article 12D of N.C.G.S. 143 to provide these retirement benefits. The County
obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General
Assembly. There were no contributions made by employees. The County’s annual required contribution for
the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2010 actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions include (a) 5.00% investment rate of return and
(b) projected salary increases ranging from 4.25% to 7.85% per year, as well as an inflation component of
3.00%. The assumptions did not include postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was
market value. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a
closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2010, was 20 years. The County’s annual
pension cost and net pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year were as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 880,841
Interest on net pension obligation 190,031
Adjustment to annual required contribution (226,727)
Annual pension cost 844,145
Contributions made (626,883)
Increase in net pension obligation 217,262
Net pension obligation beginning of year 3,800,626
Net pension obligation end of year $ 4,017,888
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Three Year Trend Information:

Net Pension

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of Obligation
Ended Cost (APC) APC Contributed End of Year
2012 $ 844,145 74.26% $ 4,017,888
2011 942,365 50.91 3,800,626
2010 795,334 56.70 3,337,992

As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $9,430,333, and there was no actuarial value of assets, resulting in an
unfunded accrued liability (UAAL) of $9,430,333. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $17,098,231, and the ratio of UAAL to covered payroll was 55.15%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to
the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan

The County and ABC Board contribute to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined
contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The
Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the County and ABC Board and
to non-law enforcement full time employees of the ABC Board. Article 5 of N.C.G.S. Chapter 135 assigns
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

Article 12E of N.C.G.S. Chapter 143 requires the County and ABC Board to contribute each month an
amount equal to 5% of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. In
addition, the ABC Board voluntarily contributes an additional 4% of each officer's salary. Also, law
enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the Plan. For County officers, all contributions
were provided by the County and the total amount for the year ended June 30, 2012 was $880,170
compared to $866,453 for the year ended June 30, 2011. Contributions for the ABC Board for the year
ended June 30, 2012, were $98,356, which consisted of $65,011 from the ABC Board and $33,345 from the
law enforcement officers’ voluntary contributions and contributions for June 30, 2011 were $98,100, which
consisted of $69,246 from the ABC Board and $28,854 from law enforcement officers’ voluntary
contributions.

For non-law enforcement full-time employees, the ABC Board voluntarily contributes each month an amount
equal to 6% of each employee’s salary. Non-law enforcement employees, also, may make voluntary
contributions to the plan. Total contributions for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 were $421,452
and $442,106, respectively, which consisted of $250,876 and 2012 and $262,275 for 2011 from the ABC
Board and $170,576 for 2012 and $179,831 for 2011 from the non-law enforcement employee’s voluntary
contributions.

Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund

The County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund (Fund), a
noncontributory, defined contribution plan administered by the North Carolina Department of State
Treasurer. The Fund provides supplemental pension benefits to any eligible county register of deeds that is
retired under the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System or an equivalent locally sponsored
plan. Article 3 of N.C.G.S. Chapter 161 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to
the North Carolina General Assembly.

On a monthly basis, the County remits to the Department of State Treasurer an amount equal to 1.5% of the
monthly receipts collected pursuant to Article 1 of North Carolina General Statute 161. Immediately following
January 1 of each year, the Department of State Treasurer divides 93% of the amount in the Fund at the
end of the preceding calendar year into equal shares to be disbursed as monthly benefits. The remaining
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7% of the Fund’s assets may be used by the State Treasurer in administering the Fund. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012, the County’s required and actual contributions were $85,430.

Supplemental Retirement Plans

The County, Library and Medic Agency offer their employees a deferred compensation plan created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457 and a 401(k) supplemental retirement income plan through
the State of North Carolina that is also in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code. All regular, full-time and
part-time employees are eligible to participate in one or both of the two plans.

The deferred compensation plan permits participants to defer a portion of their salaries to future years. The
deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency. The County, Library and Medic Agency have complied with changes in the laws which govern
deferred compensation plans, requiring all assets of the plan to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the
participants and their beneficiaries. The 401(k) supplemental retirement income plan allows eligible participants
to contribute up to the maximum allowable under the law as a percentage of base salary.

In fiscal year 2012 the County and the Library matched 100% of the first 3% of each participant’s total annual
contribution. Total contributions to the plan by the County were $4,313,161. The Library total contributions were
$221,802. Contributions by the Medic Agency for June 30, 2012 and 2011 were $678,941, and $574,763,
respectively. Medic agency matches 100% of the first 5% of each participant’s total annual contribution.

Postemployment Healthcare Benefit Plans

The County pays the full cost of the health care insurance premiums for employees retiring with twenty or more
years of creditable service with the County. Employees retiring with 10 through 19 years of creditable service
with the County receive 50% of the costs of their health care insurance premium. To be eligible for this benefit
the retirees must be members of the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
(System) and must have been employed with the County on or before June 30, 2010. Also, retirees can
purchase coverage for their dependents at the County’s group rate. Claims are paid at 100% until the retiree
reaches Medicare eligibility. The County’s plan is a single-employer, defined benefit plan. Authorization to
amend the benefit program rests with the Board of County Commissioners. A separate report is not issued for
the benefit program.

Membership in the program as of January 1, 2012, the date of the latest actuarial valuation was:

Retired employees 1,087
Spouses/Domestic Partners of retired employees 161
Deferred Vested Members 654
Active employees 3,541

Total 5,443

Contributions to be paid by members are established by the Board of County Commissioners, which also has the
authority to amend the program. For 2012, retiree annual contribution rates are:

Pre-Medicare Pre-Medicare Medicare Eligible

Standard Enhanced Indemnity
20 or more years of service:
Retiree $ - $ 1220 § -
Spouse 3,027 4,464 3,942
10 to 19 years of service:
Retiree 3,801 5,247 2,994
Spouse 3,027 4,464 3,339
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The County contributed $15,663,056 of the actuarially calculated annual required contribution (ARC) of
$39,173,259 for fiscal year 2012. The ARC is an amount determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement 45 and represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to
exceed thirty years.

Annual required contribution $ 39,173,259
Interest on net OPEB obligation 937,321
Adjustment to annual required contribution (1,456,097)
Annual OPEB cost 38,654,483
Contributions made (15,663,056)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 22,991,427
Net OPEB obligation beginning of year 26,780,606
Net OPEB obligation end of year $ 49,772,033

The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation as of June 30, 2012, 2011, 2010, and 2009 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Annual Percentage of Annual Net OPEB
June 30 OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2012 $ 39,173,259 40.50% $ 22,991,427
2011 32,253,235 21.05 26,780,606
2010 16,715,993 95.73 1,316,182
2009 16,708,724 96.37 606,502

The County’s contribution was deposited in the North Carolina State Treasurer’s Local Government Other Post-
Employment Benefit Trust Fund, an irrevocable trust fund for Fiscal Year 2012. In 2011, the County did not
contribute to the irrevocable trust fund leading to the increase in the ARC and Net OPEB Obligation from 2010 to
2011.

Postemployment expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they
come due.

As of January 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was funded on the pay-as-you-go basis.
The actuarially accrued liability for benefits was $463,282,925 and the actuarial value of assets was $38,317,546
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $424,965,379. The annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plan was $210,482,384 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was
201.90%. The actuarially accrued liability for benefits increased from 2009 to 2010 due to changes in the
actuarial assumptions.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation
and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-
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term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

At January 1, 2012, the actuarial valuation used the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The
assumptions included a 4.91% investment rate of return, which is the expected long-term investment returns on
plan assets calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date. Healthcare cost trends varied
from 7.00% to 4.70% over eighty years and salary projections assumed a zero percent inflation rate. The
actuarial value of assets, if any, was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility
in the market of investment over a 5 year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a
closed basis. The remaining amortization period at January 1, 2012 was 29 years.

The Library pays the full cost of coverage for the healthcare benefits paid to qualified retirees under a plan
funded on the pay-as-you-go basis. Funding for these costs is included in budgeted appropriations in the
annual budget. The cost of these benefits recognized as expenditure for the year ended June 30, 2011 was
$441,216 for the ninety-one qualified retirees. The current ARC rate is 3.5% of annual covered payroll and the
Library contributed $590,565 or 4.7% of covered payroll which leaves a net OPEB obligation of $12,756,139
recorded to liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Complete information regarding the Library’s plan appears
in the separately issued June 30, 2012 Library financial statements.

Medic Agency provides the full cost of post employment healthcare benefits to qualified retirees with 30 years of
credited service and 50% of the cost of post employment healthcare benefits to qualified retirees with 20 - 30
years of credited service. Effective June 1, 2010 the plan was closed to new entrants. Medic Agency funded
$209,279 of the $3,033,376 ARC with the $11,177,504 remaining OPEB obligation recorded to liabilities in the
Statement of Net Assets. The ARC rate is 12% of annual covered payroll and the contribution is 1% of annual
covered payroll. Complete information regarding Medic Agency’s post employment healthcare benefits appears
in Medic Agency’s separately issued June 30, 2012 financial statements.

The ABC Board provides retiree health benefits under the ABC Board Retiree Benefit Plan. The Plan covers
major medical benefits for the fifteen covered members up to a lifetime maximum benefit of $1,000,000 per
covered individual not eligible for Medicare and $50,000 per covered individual who is Medicare eligible for those
who have already elected to participate; however, this $50,000 coverage plan is no longer open to those not
already enrolled in it. Medicare eligible retirees retiring after November 18, 2009 do not have the option of
remaining on the Board's retiree health plan, but instead are eligible to receive a reimbursement stipend for
private coverage. As of June 30, 2012, the most recent valuation date, the plan was not funded. The remaining
OPEB obligation of $1,676,379 recorded as a liability in the Statement of Net Assets.  Complete information
regarding the ABC Board’s post employment healthcare benefits appears in the ABC Board’s separately issued
June 30, 2012 financial statements.

Other Employment Benefits

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget and Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA), the County and Medic
Agency allow terminated employees to continue their enrollment in their health care insurance program for up to
18 months following termination. Continuation of coverage by the terminated employee is optional for the
employee who has up to 60 days following termination to decide. There is no cost to the County or Medic
Agency, and the terminated employee must pay the full premium amount plus a two percent administrative fee.

The County and the ABC Board have elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Trust
Plan for members of the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (Death Trust Plan), a multiple-
employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. Employees who die in
active service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after
retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership service in the System
at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal
to the employee's 12 highest month’s salary in a row during the 24 months prior to death, but the benefit may not
exceed $50,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Trust Plan. Neither the County nor the
ABC Board has liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. Contributions are determined as a
percentage of monthly payroll, based upon rates established annually by the State. Separate rates are set for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. Because the benefit payments are
made by the Death Trust Plan and not by the County, the County does not determine the number of eligible
participants. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the County made contributions to the State for death
benefits of $140,163. The County's required contributions for covered employees represented .14% of covered
payroll for law enforcement officers and .06% of covered payroll for employees not engaged in law enforcement.
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For the year ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the ABC Board made contributions to the State for death benefits of
$7,757 and $7,840, respectively.

Risk Management

The County's Risk Management Program is a self-funded, risk-financing program administered by the City of
Charlotte's Risk Management Division of the City Finance Department, as trustee for the County. As of June 30,
2012, the program covered the following areas of risk: Commercial Automobile Liability, Fidelity Bonds, Inland
Marine, Commercial General Liability, Public Official Liability, Law Enforcement, Medical Professional Liability,
Property, and Workers' Compensation. The fidelity bonds are maintained at the system levels for all applicable
employees. The County will finance its own loss exposures up to the first $1,500,000 per occurrence per year
with a separate reserve held in trust for the County and current appropriations in the County budget except for
property exposures and Workers' Compensation exposures as described below. Amounts in this reserve are
specifically designated by entity. The Risk Management Division accrues for claims incurred but not reported
based on prior historical data. This accrual reduces cash available in the separate trust. Property exposures over
$100,000 and Workers' Compensation exposures over $500,000 are insured. Law Enforcement exposures over
$1,500,000 are insured up to $4,000,000 and public official liability exposures over $250,000 are insured up to
$4,750,000. The County has purchased excess insurance to cover automobile and general liability exposures in
amounts up to $20,000,000 above the trust coverage amount. There have been no significant reductions in
insurance coverage from coverage levels in the prior year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any
of the past three fiscal years.

A summary of amounts relating to self-insurance in the General Fund is as follows:

2012 2011
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - beginning of fiscal year $ 8749376 $§ 9,529,456
Additions 9,355,800 3,985,148
Payments (5,826,878) (4,765,228)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - end of fiscal year $ 12,278298 $ 8,749,376

The Library acquires its risk management services through the City of Charlotte's Risk Management Division.
The Library has commercial general liability of $1 million per occurrence, workers' compensation employer's
liability coverage of $500,000 and public officers' coverage of $1 million per loss. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage from coverage levels in the prior year and settled claims have not exceeded
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The insurance coverage for the Medic Agency is provided through commercial carriers and the County.
Coverage includes a general insurance policy, commercial automobile policy, commercial umbrella policy and
coverage for workers compensation. The general insurance policy covers commercial property, general liability,
crime, portable equipment and management liability. The commercial property policy covers business and
personal property up to a limit of $5,667,121 and includes flood insurance for building and contents. The general
liability covers up to $1,000,000 per occurrence and up to $3,000,000 for general aggregate coverage. The
crime policy covers up to $250,000 for employee dishonesty, the portable equipment policy covers the
guaranteed replacement cost of the item and the management liability policy provides $3,000,000 of aggregate
coverage. The commercial automobile policy covers up to $1,000,000 per occurrence. The commercial
umbrella policy includes a limit of $5,000,000 for each occurrence and up to $10,000,000 for general aggregate
coverage. Workers compensation is provided by the County for claims over $500,000 for each occurrence.

The ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The ABC Board has commercial property,
general liability, auto liability, workers’ compensation, and employee health coverage. The ABC Board also has
liquor legal liability. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage levels in the
prior year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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Closure and Postclosure Care Costs — U.S.521 Landfill

State and federal laws require the County to place a final cover on its U.S.521 Landfill Facility when it stops
accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 25 years after
closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs will only be paid near or after the date the landfill stops
accepting waste, the County reports a portion of these costs as an operating expense each fiscal year based on
the landfill capacity used as of the balance sheet date. The accrued landfill development and postclosure care
costs totals $8,793,720 and has two components. The cumulative amount reported, based on the use of 80% of
the total estimated capacity of the landfill, for closure and postclosure care costs is $8,580,016. The County will
recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of $2.1 million as the remaining
estimated capacity is filled. This amount is based on the current costs to perform closure and postclosure care in
fiscal year 2012. The County expects to close the U.S.521 landfill in 2030. Actual costs may be higher due to
inflation, changes in technology or changes in regulations.

The County has met the requirements of a local government financial test that is one option under state and
federal laws and regulations that help determine if a unit is financially able to meet closure and postclosure care
requirements. However, the County has also elected to establish a reserve fund to accumulate the resources for
the payment of future use development costs. The cumulative amount reported in the future use reserve at June
30, 2012 is $213,704. The County will recognize the remaining estimated cost of future use development of
$1,699,587 as the remaining capacity is filled. These funds are held in investments with a cost of $213,704
(market value, $213,704) at year-end. The County expects that future inflation costs will be paid from the
interest earnings on these annual contributions. However, if interest earnings are inadequate or additional
postclosure care requirements are determined, these costs may need to be covered by charges to future landfill
users.

Commitments and Contingencies

The County participates in a number of Federal and State of North Carolina grant programs, principally Social
Services Administration, Temporary Assistance to Needy Families, Mental Health Area Matching Funds, and
Medical Assistance programs. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, these programs were audited in
accordance with the Single Audit Amendment of 1996 and the State Single Audit Act, N.C.G.S. 159-34, which
report is issued separately. Any expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be
determined at this time, although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Unexpended funds of $51,288,127 at June 30, 2012, are committed for various projects in accordance with
related Capital Projects Ordinances. These funds are included in Restricted Net Assets and are included in
committed fund balance of the appropriate capital projects funds.

The County is involved in various legal actions in the normal course of its business. In addition, the County has
charges pending with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission. The charges initiated by individuals
alleging discriminatory hiring, promotion or termination practices, are not in litigation and there have been no
class action threats. Although the outcome of the above claims and the ultimate amount of compensation or
penalties which might be awarded are not presently determinable, in the opinion of County management and the
County Attorney, the results of the claims and resolution of legal actions will not have a materially adverse impact
on the financial position of the County.

Jointly Governed Organization

The County, in conjunction with seven other counties and 50 municipalities, established the Centralina Council of
Governments (COG) (Region F). The participating governments established COG to coordinate funding received
from various federal and state agencies. Each participating government appoints one member to COG's 58-
member governing board. The County paid membership fees of $236,113 to COG during fiscal year 2012.

Joint Ventures

The County, along with the State of North Carolina, participates in a joint venture to operate Central Piedmont
Community College (CPCC). The County, State of North Carolina and the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Board of
Education make four appointments each to the 12-member board of trustees. CPCC is included as a component
unit of the State. The County has the basic responsibility for providing funding for the facilities of CPCC and also
provides some financial support for operations. In addition to providing annual appropriations for facilities, the
County periodically issues general obligation bonds and certificates of participation to provide financing for new
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and restructured facilities. The County contributed $26,150,000 for operations and $15,630,768 for capital
purposes during fiscal year 2012, and made debt service payments of $16,073,723 in fiscal year 2012 on
general obligation bonds and certificates of participation issued for CPCC. The participating governments do not
have any equity interest in the joint venture; therefore, no equity interest is reflected in the County's financial
statements. Complete financial statements for CPCC may be obtained from the following address:

Central Piedmont Community College
P.O. Box 35009
Charlotte, NC 28235

The Charlotte-Mecklenburg Public Broadcasting Authority (CMPBA) was established in 1981 by an interlocal
agreement between the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools and the County. The CMPBA holds the FCC license to
operating WTVI, a non-commercial TV station. The CMPBA exercises control over station operations and
programming. The County appoints ten of the 18 members of the CMPBA Board of Directors, but the County
has no authority to dictate ownership or management of the station. The County owns the land and building in
which WTVI is housed, but management and maintenance of the building is the responsibility of the CMPBA.
The County is paying the debt service on $12.5 million of debt issued for CMPBA to fund the purchase of
digital/HDTV equipment for WTVI. The County has entered into an interlocal agreement with the CMPBA to
provide an annual operating grant to WTVI, although no specific funding level is guaranteed. For the year ended
June 30, 2012, the County did not provide funding to WTVI. The County does not provide the majority of funding
to WTVI. The County can also enter into an annual Service Contract with WTVI whereby WTVI provides
production and/or programming airtime to the County in support of the County’s public awareness goals in return
for a specific level of funding to cover the cost of the productions. The CMPBA will no longer operate WTVI after
September 30, 2012 and this joint venture will cease to exist. The broadcast license will be operated by CPCC.
Complete financial statements of the CMPBA can be obtained from the following address:

Charlotte-Mecklenburg Public Broadcasting Authority
3232 Commonwealth Avenue
Charlotte, NC 28205

The County, in conjunction with Catawba, Iredell and Lincoln Counties participates in a joint venture to operate
the Lake Norman Marine Commission (the Commission). Each participating government appoints one board
member, except Catawba County which appoints two members. The Commission was established to make joint
regulations for the safe operation of vessels and for safe recreational use of the water. Each County is obligated
to contribute an equal amount appropriate to support the activities of the Commission. The County provided
$21,584 to the Commission in fiscal year 2012. None of the participating governments has an equity interest in
the Commission, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2012. Complete
financial statements for the Commission may be obtained from the following address:

Lake Norman Marine Commission
P.O. Box 35008
Charlotte, NC 28235

In addition, the County, in conjunction with Gaston County and York County, South Carolina, participates in a
joint venture to operate the Lake Wylie Marine Commission (the Commission). The County and York County
each appoint two board members, and Gaston County appoints three members. The Commission was
established to make joint regulations for preserving and protecting property and wildlife and promoting public
safety. Each County is obligated to contribute an equal amount appropriate to support the activities of the
Commission. The County provided $23,675 to the Commission in fiscal year 2012. None of the participating
governments has an equity interest in the Commission, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial
statements at June 30, 2012. Complete financial statements for the Commission may be obtained from the
following address:

Lake Wylie Marine Commission
P.O. Box 35008
Charlotte, NC 28235

In addition, the County, in conjunction with Gaston and Lincoln Counties, participates in a joint venture to operate
the Mountain Island Lake Marine Commission (the Commission). The County appoints three board members,
Gaston County appoints three members and Lincoln County appoints one member. The Commission was
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established to make joint regulations for preserving and protecting property and wildlife and promoting public
safety. Each County is obligated to contribute an amount based on its shoreline lying within each county to
support the activities of the Commission. The County provided $21,884 to the Commission in fiscal year 2012.
None of the participating governments has an equity interest in the Commission, so no equity interest has been
reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2012. Complete financial statements for the Commission may be
obtained from the following address:

Mountain Island Marine Commission
P.O. Box 35008
Charlotte, NC 28235

The Charlotte-Mecklenburg Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC) was established in 1973 by a resolution
adopted by the City of Charlotte and the County. The fundamental purpose of the Commission is to recommend
the designation of properties (real and personal) for historic landmark designation and to secure the preservation
of same through exercising design review and through buying and selling endangered historic landmarks. The
County appoints six of the 13 members of the HLC. The County provided $185,639 to the HLC in fiscal year
2012 for operations for historic site preservation.

Charlotte-Mecklenburg Historic Landmarks Commission
2100 Randolph Road
Charlotte, NC 28207

Conduit Debt Obligation

In December 2001, the County issued $16,480,000 Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds on behalf of Sycamore
Green, LLC for the acquisition, construction and equipping of a low and moderate income multifamily rental
housing development. These bonds are secured by rents from the property and a letter of credit. Neither the
County, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for the repayment of these
bonds. Accordingly, the outstanding bonds in the amount of $15,515,000 at June 30, 2012 are not reported as
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

In May 2003, the County issued $9,390,000 Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds on behalf of LR Charlotte
Limited Partnership for the acquisition, rehabilitation and equipping of a low and moderate income multifamily
rental housing development. These bonds are secured by rents from the property and a letter of credit. Neither
the County, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for the repayment of these
bonds. Accordingly, the outstanding bonds in the amount of $8,290,000 at June 30, 2012 are not reported as
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

In September 2003, the County issued $4,640,000 Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds on behalf of
BARRINGTON OAKS, LLC for the acquisition, rehabilitation and equipping of a low and moderate income
multifamily rental housing development. These bonds are secured by rents from the property and a letter of
credit. Neither the County, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for the
repayment of these bonds. Accordingly, the outstanding bonds in the amount of $4,165,000 at June 30, 2012 are
not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

Related Organization

The Mecklenburg County Industrial Facilities and Pollution Control Financing Authority (the Authority) was
created in 1976. The seven-member board is appointed by the Board of County Commissioners. The purpose of
the Authority is to assist corporations in financing industrial and manufacturing facilities for the purpose of
providing employment or increasing below-average manufacturing wages. Any financing that occurs is an
obligation of the corporation, not an obligation of either the County or this Authority. Companies pay application
fees which provide operating funds for the Authority.
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SEPARATION ALLOWANCE FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
ANALYSIS OF FUNDING PROGRESS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Actuarial
Accrued
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Year Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Ended Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Dec. 31, (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)lc)
2011 - $ 9,430,333 9,430,333 0.00 % $ 17,098,231 55.15 %
2010 - 8,527,458 8,527,458 0.00 16,258,376 52.45
2009 - 9,378,607 9,378,607 0.00 18,435,179 50.87
2008 - 7,055,897 7,055,897 0.00 18,091,372 39.00
2007 - 6,404,425 6,404,425 0.00 16,818,600 38.08
2006 - 5,512,805 5,512,805 0.00 15,391,588 35.82
2005 - 4,809,650 4,809,650 0.00 14,732,103 32.65
2004 - 5,024,704 5,024,704 0.00 14,288,288 35.17
2003 - 4,488,172 4,488,172 0.00 13,446,175 33.38
2002 - 4,218,231 4,218,231 0.00 13,353,602 31.59
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SEPARATION ALLOWANCE FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Fiscal Year Annual

Ended Required Percentage

June 30, Contribution Contributed
2012 $ 880,841 7117 %
2011 954,170 50.27
2010 766,885 58.80
2009 685,347 67.20
2008 605,848 66.70
2007 548,936 66.15
2006 576,425 42.05
2005 517,795 46.71
2004 488,383 46.16
2003 448,383 46.81

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as
part of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the
latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date 12/31/2010
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level percent of pay closed
Remaining amortization period 20 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return* 5.00%
Projected salary increases™ 4.25% - 7.85%
Cost-of-living adjustments None

* Includes inflation at 3.00%.
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT HEALTHCARE PLAN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
ANALYSIS OF FUNDING PROGRESS
LAST FIVE YEARS

Actuarial
Accrued
Actuarial Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Date Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
January 1 (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
2012 $ 38,317,546 $ 463,282,925 $ 424,965,379 8.27 % $ 210,482,384 201.90 %
2011 32,792,954 387,947,405 355,154,451 8.45 214,550,188 165.53
2010 30,403,865 383,025,283 352,621,418 7.94 214,800,000 164.16
2009 20,453,803 181,646,055 161,192,252 11.26 223,100,000 72.25
2008 8,770,000 176,699,985 167,929,985 4.96 204,000,000 82.32

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuations
at the dates indicated. Complete information regarding the County's plan is located in the notes to the financial statements.
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT HEALTHCARE PLAN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Fiscal Year Annual Required Actual Percentage
Ended June 30, Contribution Contribution Contribution
2012 $ 39,173,259 $ 15,663,056 39.98 %
2011 32,253,235 6,788,811 21.05
2010 16,715,993 16,002,628 95.73
2009 16,708,724 16,102,222 96.37
2008 14,696,388 14,700,000 100.00

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as
part of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the
latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date 01/01/2012
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level Dollar Amount
Remaining amortization period 29 years
Asset valuation method 5-Year Smooth Market
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return* 4.91%

Projected salary increases* 0.00%

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate* 7.0% graded

4.7% over 80 years
Cost-of-living adjustments None

* Includes an inflation assumption of 0.0%

Complete information regarding the County's plan is located in the notes to the
financial statements.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds account for proceeds of revenue sources that are restricted to expenditures for specific
purposes. These funds are established under the provisions of the North Carolina General Statutes:

Storm Water Management: Accounts for fees and expenditures designated for flood control, drainage, and
storm water management.

Law Enforcement Service District: Accounts for the ad valorem taxes for the law enforcement service district
which are levied in the unincorporated areas of the County.

Transit One-Half Cent Sales Tax: Accounts for revenue from a one-half cent sales tax levied to fund transit
projects which are part of the 2025 Integrated Transit/Land Use Plan for Charlotte-Mecklenburg.

Scrap Tire Disposal: Accounts for funds designated for the disposal of scrap tires.

Discarded White Goods: Accounts for funds designated for the management of discarded white goods.

Register of Deeds: Accounts for the 10% of collected fees required which are required by law to be expended
for computer and imaging technology for the Register of Deeds office.

Emergency Telephone Service: Accounts for the County’s share of the 911 surcharge allocated by the State
to be used for the lease, purchase or maintenance of emergency telephone equipment, including necessary
computer hardware, software and database provisions.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds account for proceeds of bond issues and all other resources used for the purpose of

constructing, reconstructing or acquiring permanent or semi-permanent capital improvements. These funds are used
to provide a formal mechanism to ensure that designated revenues are applied only for the purposes intended.

2000A Public Improvement Fund: This fund is used to account for the construction of and renovations to
Parks, Government, and Law Enforcement Facilities.

2006A Public Improvement Fund: This fund accounts for the renovations at the Community College along
with Land Acquisition, Law Enforcement Facilities, School Facilities, Park and Government Facilities.

2007A Public Improvement Fund: Accounts for the construction, renovations and development of Community
College, Law Enforcement facilities along with the construction of Sports facilities and Recreation Centers, Park
Development and Improvement.

2008A Park and Recreation: This fund is for the construction of Greenways.

2008B Public Improvement Fund: Accounts for the financing and construction of various capital assets and
improvements throughout the county which includes, School facilities, Law Enforcement Facility, Park
Development, Park Improvements, Land Acquisition and Greenways

2011A Public Improvement Fund: This fund is for the construction and renovation of School facilities, Land
acquisition along with Parks and Greenways.

2011B Qualified School Construction Bonds: Accounts for the financing and construction of School facilities.

Certificates of Participation Fund: This fund is for the construction and renovation of Community College,
School, County, Law Enforcement, Courthouse facilities and Parks.

Capital Reserve Fund: Accounts for the renovation and improvement of County facilities, Community College
facilities, Library facilities and Park improvements.

Other Capital Funding: Accounts for acquisition and renovation of various historic facilities, Grants and Pay-
As-You-Go funding.
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Less allowance for uncollectible taxes
Advance to other governments
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Restricted
Stabilization by State Statute
Land Use and Environmental Services
Capital Projects
Committed
Land Use and Environmental Services
Capital Projects
Public Safety
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Special Total Nonmajor

Revenue Capital Projects Governmental
Funds Funds Funds

$ 28,577,521 $ 164,690,388 $ 193,267,909

57,866 141,350 199,216

13,661,367 - 13,661,367

1,044,881 - 1,044,881

(441,000) - (441,000)

- 60,809 60,809

$ 42,900,635 $ 164,892,547 $ 207,793,182

$ 10,104,833 $ 10,676,608 $ 20,781,441

638,295 - 638,295

10,743,128 10,676,608 21,419,736

17,862,496 27,893,677 45,756,173

1,956,405 - 1,956,405

- 75,355,810 75,355,810

20,294,846 - 20,294,846

- 51,288,127 51,288,127

1,310,858 - 1,310,858

(9,267,098) (321,675) (9,588,773)

32,157,507 154,215,939 186,373,446

$ 42,900,635 $ 164,892,547 $ 207,793,182
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Special Total Nonmajor
Revenue Capital Projects Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
REVENUES
Law Enforcement Service District taxes $ 12,188,234 $ - 12,188,234
Transit one-half cent sales tax 35,529,884 - 35,529,884
Intergovernmental 2,855,489 2,363,939 5,219,428
Charges for services 15,061,115 - 15,061,115
Interest earned on investments 170,782 92,155 262,937
Other 732,156 2,338,873 3,071,029
Total Revenues 66,537,660 4,794,967 71,332,627
EXPENDITURES
Land Use and Environmental Services 12,676,625 - 12,676,625
Business Partners 46,997,867 - 46,997,867
Debt Service
Principal 2,307,584 - 2,307,584
Interest 116,438 - 116,438
Capital Outlay 1,923,649 74,847,057 76,770,706
Total Expenditures 64,022,163 74,847,057 138,869,220
REVENUES OVER / (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 2,515,497 (70,052,090) (67,536,593)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of Bonds - 100,000,000 100,000,000
Premium on Financing - 6,349,420 6,349,420
Installment Financing / Capital Lease 2,493,625 6,941,281 9,434,906
Transfers to other funds - (116,234) (116,234)
Transfers from other funds - 46,624,873 46,624,873
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,493,625 159,799,340 162,292,965
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5,009,122 89,747,250 94,756,372
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 27,148,385 64,468,689 91,617,074
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR $ 32,157,507 $ 154,215,939 186,373,446

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
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C-6

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

2000A
Public
Improvement

2006A 2007A 2008A
Variable Public Park and

Rate Improvement Recreation

Project Authorization $ 34,000,000 $
Prior Years' Revenues 34,000,000
Prior Years' Expenditures 33,981,992

89,000,000 $ 102,000,000 $ 12,000,000
89,000,000 102,000,000 12,000,000
88,994,459 101,913,989 11,413,610

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 18,008

5,541 86,011 586,390

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Federal -
State -
Other -
Interest earned on investments -

Total Revenues -

EXPENDITURES
Management Services
County Buildings -
Land -
Land Use and Environmental Services
Community Development -
Scattered Site -
Historic Preservation -
Community Services
Park and Recreational Facilities -
Library Facilities -
Detention and Court Support Services
Energy Conservation Contract -
Court Facilities -
Jail/Detention Facilities -
Business Partners
Community College Facilities -
School Facilities -

Total Expenditures -

- - 575,440

REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of Bonds -
Premium on Financing -
Installment Financing / Capital Lease -
Transfer to Other Funds -
Transfer from Other Funds -

; - (575,440)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR $ 18,008 $

5,541 $ 86,011 $ 10,950

(Continued)
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

2008B 2011A 2011B
Public Public Quality School
Improvement Improvement Construction Bonds
Project Authorization $ 148,500,000 $ 49,000,000 $ 51,000,000
Prior Years' Revenues 148,500,000 - -
Prior Years' Expenditures 147,464,599 - -
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 1,035,401 - -
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Federal - - -
State - - -
Other - - -
Interest earned on investments 44,342 47,813
Total Revenues - 44,342 47,813
EXPENDITURES

Management Services
County Buildings - - -
Land - 6,599,598 -
Land Use and Environmental Services
Community Development - - -
Scattered Site - - -
Historic Preservation - - -
Community Services
Park and Recreational Facilities 959,844 3,222,012 -
Library Facilities - - -
Detention and Court Support Services
Energy Conservation Contract - - -
Court Facilities - - -
Jail/Detention Facilities - - -
Business Partners
Community College Facilities - - -

School Facilities - 6,817,427 6,083,764
Total Expenditures 959,844 16,639,037 6,083,764
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (959,844) (16,594,695) (6,035,951)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of Bonds - 49,000,000 51,000,000
Premium on Financing - 6,349,420 -
Installment Financing / Capital Lease - - -
Transfer to Other Funds - - -
Transfer from Other Funds - - -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 55,349,420 51,000,000
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR $ 75,557 $ 38,754,725  $ 44,964,049
(Continued)
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(CONCLUDED)
Other Total
Certificates of Capital Capital Capital
Participation Reserve Funding Projects
Project Authorization $ 672,520,000 $ 79,433,744 $ 343,355,105 $ 1,580,808,849
Prior Years' Revenues 670,078,982 76,485,846 330,207,693 1,462,272,521
Prior Years' Expenditures 662,981,232 52,159,192 298,894,759 1,397,803,832
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 7,097,750 24,326,654 31,312,934 64,468,689
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Federal - 1,885,852 478,087 2,363,939
Other - 2,205,986 132,887 2,338,873
Interest earned on investments - - - 92,155
Total Revenues - 4,091,838 610,974 4,794,967
EXPENDITURES
Management Services
County Buildings 3,370,952 6,611,700 153,300 10,135,952
Land - - - 6,599,598
Land Use and Environmental Services
Community Development - - 411,836 411,836
Scattered Site - - 19,526 19,526
Historic Preservation - - 89,218 89,218
Community Services
Park and Recreational Facilities - 4,490,656 4,864,569 14,112,521
Library Facilities - 542,841 277,659 820,500
Detention and Court Support Services
Energy Conservation Contract - - 4,385,540 4,385,540
Court Facilities - 253,837 4,034,806 4,288,643
Jail/Detention Facilities 461,196 803,255 1,143,838 2,408,289
Business Partners
Community College Facilities - 458,578 15,172,189 15,630,767
School Facilities - - 3,043,476 15,944,667
Total Expenditures 3,832,148 13,160,867 33,595,957 74,847,057
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (3,832,148) (9,069,029) (32,984,983) (70,052,090)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sales of Bonds - - - 100,000,000
Premium on Financing - - - 6,349,420
Installment Financing / Capital Lease - 650,000 6,291,281 6,941,281
Transfer to Other Funds - - (116,234) (116,234)
Transfer from Other Funds - 14,281,100 32,343,773 46,624,873
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 14,931,100 38,518,820 159,799,340
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR $ 3,265,602 $ 30,188,725 $ 36,846,771 $ 154,215,939

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest earned on investments
Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Charlotte Mecklenburg Schools
Debt Service
Principal payments
Interest

Central Piedmont Community College
Debt Service
Principal payments
Interest

General Debt Service
Principal payments
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Refunding Bond Proceeds
Premium on Financing
Payment to Refunding Escrow Agent
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE-BEGINNING
FUND BALANCE-ENDING

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

224,195,000 224,195,000 -
32,515,000 38,164,234 5,649,234
12,261,000 12,329,692 68,692
- 153,129 153,129
- 1,801,111 1,801,111
268,971,000 276,643,166 7,672,166
96,000,000 95,020,377 (979,623)
68,072,000 57,816,774 (10,255,226)
13,000,000 12,054,659 (945,341)
5,828,000 4,019,064 (1,808,936)
56,000,000 55,899,096 (100,904)
30,071,000 29,300,325 (770,675)
268,971,000 254,110,295 (14,860,705)
- 22,532,871 22,532,871

164,015,000 164,015,000 -
15,798,043 24,644,861 8,846,818

(179,813,043) (179,813,043) -
- 8,846,818 8,846,818
- 31,379,689 31,379,689
- 31,379,689 31,379,689
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D-2
MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deductions June 30, 2012
Municipalities' Taxes
Assets
Cash and investments $ 2,735,834 $ 1,163,379,393 $ 1,164,266,804 $ 1,848,423
Accounts Receivables 197,834 - 197,834 -
Due from other governmental agencies 8,392 - - 8,392
Total assets $ 2,942,060 $ 1,163,379,393 $ 1,164,464,638 $ 1,856,815
Liabilities
Due to other governmental agencies $ 2,942,060 $ 612,423,951 $ 613,509,196 $ 1,856,815
Employees' Insurance
Assets
Cash and investments $ 23,798,204 $ 142,153,740 $ 132,048,938 $ 33,903,006
Accounts receivable 13,098 379,853 141,094 251,857
Total assets $ 23,811,302 $ 142,533,593 $ 132,190,032 $ 34,154,863
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 23,811,302 $ 186,304,987 $ 175,961,426 $ 34,154,863
Fee Collection for State
Assets
Cash and investments $ 3,298,777 $ 9,044,358 $ 8,412,784 $ 3,930,351
Liabilities
Due to other governmental agencies $ 3,195,761 $ 19,691,256 $ 19,034,862 $ 3,852,155
Due to NC Department of Motor Vehicles 103,016 874,293 899,113 78,196
Total liabilities $ 3,298,777 $ 20,565,549 $ 19,933,975 $ 3,930,351
Food and Beverage Tax
Assets
Cash and investments $ - $ 22,359,192 $ 22,194,274 $ 164,918
Due from other governmental agencies - 24,098,307 22,166,055 1,932,252
Total assets $ - $ 46,457,499 $ 44,360,329 $ 2,097,170
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ - $ 24,296,932 $ 22,199,762 $ 2,097,170
Other
Assets
Cash and investments $ 1,081,259 $ 844,718 $ 778,656 $ 1,147,321
Accounts receivable - 8,446 - 8,446
Total assets $ 1,081,259 $ 853,164 $ 778,656 $ 1,155,767
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,081,259 $ 1,308,897 $ 1,234,389 $ 1,155,767
Totals - All Agency Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 30,914,074 $ 1,337,781,401 $ 1,327,701,456 $ 40,994,019
Accounts receivable 210,932 388,299 338,928 260,303
Due from other governmental agencies 8,392 24,098,307 22,166,055 1,940,644
Total assets $ 31,133,398 $ 1,362,268,008 $ 1,350,206,439 $ 43,194,966
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 24,892,561 $ 211,910,816 $ 199,395,577 $ 37,407,800
Due to other governmental agencies 6,137,821 632,115,207 632,544,058 5,708,970
Due to NC Department of Motor Vehicles 103,016 874,293 899,113 78,196
Total liabilities $ 31,133,398 $ 844,900,316 $ 832,838,748 $ 43,194,966

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GRANTS PROJECT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Project
Project Actual Authorization
Authorization Prior Year Current Year Total to Date Balance
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Development Block Grant
Block Grant # B-10-UC-37003
REVENUES
Grant Proceeds $ 820,077 $ 49,421 $ 411,837 $ 461,258 $ 358,819
EXPENDITURES
Rehabilitation 684,024 - 337,493 337,493 346,532
Administration 136,053 49,421 74,345 123,766 12,288
Total Expenditures 820,077 49,421 411,837 461,258 358,819
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ - - - - $ -
North Carolina Clean Water Management Trust
Little Sugar Creek - Phase 9 (Midtown)
Project 2007-404
REVENUES
Grant Proceeds $ 615,000 445,760 17,414 463,174 $ 151,827
Mecklenburg County 662,000 466,387 195,613 662,000 -
Total revenues 1,277,000 912,147 213,027 1,125,174 151,827
EXPENDITURES
Construction 1,277,000 912,147 213,027 1,125,174 151,827
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ - - - - $ -

(Continued)
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GRANTS PROJECT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(CONTINUED)
Project
Project Actual Authorization
Authorization Prior Year Current Year Total to Date Balance
North Carolina Clean Water Management Trust
Little Sugar Creek - Phase VIII
Project 2006-404
REVENUES
Grant Proceeds $ 1,000,000 $ 430,015 $ 207,482 $ 637,497 $ 362,503
Mecklenburg County 300,000 207,102 66,283 273,385 26,615
Total revenues 1,300,000 637,117 273,765 910,882 389,118
EXPENDITURES
Construction 1,300,000 637,117 273,765 910,882 389,118
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ - - - - $ -
McAlpine Creek
Project 2006A-405
REVENUES
Grant Proceeds $ 845,000 614,297 230,703 845,000 $ -
City of Charlotte 1,350,000 577,324 176,125 753,449 596,551
Mecklenburg County 345,000 41,597 41,089 82,686 262,314
Total revenues 2,540,000 1,233,218 447,917 1,681,135 858,865
EXPENDITURES
Construction 2,540,000 1,233,218 447,917 1,681,135 858,865
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ - - - - $ -

(Continued)
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GRANTS PROJECT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
(CONTINUED)

Project
Project Actual Authorization
Authorization Prior Year Current Year Total to Date Balance
U.S. Department of Environmental Protection
Passed through N.C. Department of Environment
and Natural Resources
McDowell Creek Watershed Ange Property
Project EW8021
REVENUES
Grant Proceeds $ 381,661 $ 343,495 $ 11,763 $ 355,258 $ 26,403
City of Charlotte 90,000 85,031 - 85,031 4,969
Mecklenburg County 223,406 162,423 13,893 176,316 47,090
Total revenues 695,067 590,949 25,656 616,605 78,462
EXPENDITURES
Construction 695,067 590,949 25,656 616,605 78,462
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ - - - - $ -
ARRA Torrence Creek
Project 2W-370863-01
REVENUES
Grant Proceeds- ARRA $ 2,576,000 2,509,980 (16,345) 2,493,635 $ 82,365
Grant Proceeds- STATE 370,000 - 250,149 250,149 119,851
Mecklenburg County 1,996,813 - 1,246,813 1,246,813 750,000
Total revenues 4,942,813 2,509,980 1,480,617 3,990,597 952,216
EXPENDITURES
Construction 4,942,813 2,509,980 1,480,617 3,990,597 952,216
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ - - - - $ -

(Continued)
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GRANTS PROJECT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(CONCLUDED)
Project
Project Actual Authorization
Authorization Prior Year Current Year Total to Date Balance
US Department of Transportation
Toby Creek Greenway Phase Il
Project C-5525
REVENUES
Grant Proceeds $ 1,448,000 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,448,000
Mecklenburg County 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 -
City of Charlotte 262,000 - - - 262,000
Total revenues 1,810,000 - 100,000 100,000 1,710,000
EXPENDITURES
Construction 1,810,000 - 100,000 100,000 1,710,000
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ - - - - $ -
Little Sugar Creek Phase IV
Project EB-47150D
REVENUES
Grant Proceeds $ 5,328,000 495,890 1,856,052 2,351,942 $ 2,976,058
Total revenues 5,328,000 495,890 1,856,052 2,351,942 2,976,058
EXPENDITURES
Construction 5,328,000 495,890 1,856,052 2,351,942 2,976,058
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ - - - - $ -
North Carolina Department of Environment
and Natural Resources
ARRA West Branch Rocky River Greenway
Project EB-5118JB
REVENUES
Grant Proceeds $ 457,454 326,026 131,428 457,454 $ -
Total revenues 457,454 326,026 131,428 457,454 -
EXPENDITURES
Construction 457,454 326,026 131,428 457,454 -
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ - - - - $ -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ - $ - $ -
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budget Actual
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Federal $ 1,297,491 $ 1,870,585
State 1,246,813 (637,282)
Local - 185,478
Charges for services 14,430,891 14,473,558
Interest earned on investments - 162,855
Other 228,046 470,493
Total Revenues 17,203,241 16,525,687
EXPENDITURES
Land Use and Environmental Services
Storm Water Services 12,233,020 10,997,318
Debt Service
Principal retirement - bonds 2,310,490 2,307,584
Interest 116,464 116,438
Capital Outlay 4,543,267 1,844,730
Total Expenditures 19,203,241 15,266,070
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Appropriated fund balance 2,000,000 -
Installment Financing - 2,493,625
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCNG SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ - 3,753,242
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 23,292,170
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 27,045,412
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICE DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budget Actual
REVENUES
Law Enforcement Service District taxes $ 11,467,170 $ 12,188,234
Interest earned on investments - 6,350
Total Revenues 11,467,170 12,194,584
EXPENDITURES
Business Partners:
Law Enforcement Services 11,467,170 11,467,170
Total Expenditures 11,467,170 11,467,170
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ - 727,414
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 586,518
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 1,313,932
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - TRANSIT ONE-HALF CENT SALES TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budget Actual
REVENUES
Transit one-half cent sales tax $ 40,057,732 $ 35,529,884

EXPENDITURES
Business Partners 40,057,732 35,529,884

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ - -

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ -
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - SCRAP TIRE DISPOSAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES
Intergovernmental - State
Interest earned on investments
Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Land Use and Environmental Services

REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCNG SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Budget

$ 1,061,937

138,063

1,200,000

1,200,000

$

Actual

1,156,339
1,576
138,063

1,295,978

1,185,501

110,477

110,477

171,643
282,120
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - DISCARDED WHITE GOODS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES
Intergovernmental - State
Other

EXPENDITURES
Land Use and Environmental Services

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

Budget Actual
$ 290,495 $ 280,369
145,462 123,600
435,957 403,969
435,957 243,117
$ - 160,852
1,822,645
$ 1,983,497
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - REGISTER OF DEEDS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 913,740 $ 587,557
EXPENDITURES
Land Use and Environmental Services - 250,689
Capital outlay 913,740 78,919
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ - 257,949
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,274,597
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 1,532,546
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budget Actual
REVENUES
Interest $ - $ 1
Total Revenue - 1
EXPENDITURES
Business Partners - 813
Total Expenditures - 813
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES $ - (812)
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 812
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ -
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SOLID WASTE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budget Actual
Revenues
Residential Solid Waste Fees $ 5,800,000 $ 6,013,797
Recycling sales 5,748,516 6,380,203
Other 5,800,000 4,461,711
Total Revenues 17,348,516 16,855,711
Expenditures
Personnel services and employee benefits 4,405,857 4,403,728
Utilities 206,490 205,353
Supplies 1,204,275 1,204,275
Maintenance and repairs 569,613 569,613
Rental and occupancy charges 1,094,280 543,976
Contractual services 5,204,592 3,871,592
Postclosure reserve contribution 369,088 369,088
Total Expenditures 13,054,195 11,167,625
Excess Revenues over Expenditures 4,294,321 5,688,086
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Grant revenue 118,749 108,818
Interest Income 35,000 242,917
Interest expense (36,545) (188,275)
Capital outlay (1,454,916) -
Transfer from other funds 5,000 805,000
Transfer to other funds (805,000) (805,000)
Excess Revenues and Other Financing $ 2,156,609 5,851,546
Sources (Uses)
Reconciliation to full accrual basis
Depreciation (2,777,862)
Loss on sale of capital assets (58,662)
Amortization of refunding amount (100,313)
Discounts and fees (10,062)
Net Income - Full Accrual Basis $ 2,904,647
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE RESERVE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Actual
Project Prior Current Total to
Authorization Years' Year Date
REVENUES
Fees and charges $ 3,100,000 $ 3,100,000 $ - $ 3,100,000
EXPENDITURES
Landfill construction 2,223,684 1,232,145 - 1,232,145
Land improvements 2,286,511 2,407,397 1,356,637 3,764,034
Final development and postclosure costs 10,669,587 6,995,430 - 6,995,430
Total Expenditures 15,179,782 10,634,972 1,356,637 11,991,609
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (12,079,782) (7,534,972) (1,356,637) (8,891,609)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Interest earned on investments 583,910 2,521,305 52,063 2,573,368
Miscellaneous Other - Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets - - 179,602 179,602
Operating transfer from Solid Waste
Enterprise Fund 11,495,872 11,985,872 800,000 12,785,872
Total Other Financing Sources 12,079,782 14,507,177 1,031,665 15,538,842
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES $ - $ 6,972,205 $ (324,972) $ 6,647,233
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BOND FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Actual
Project Prior Current Total to
Authorization Years' Year Date
REVENUES $ - $ - $ - $ -
EXPENDITURES
Land improvements 9,700,000 - 2,645,316 2,645,316
Landfill equipment 3,300,000 - 2,855,771 2,855,771
Total Expenditures 13,000,000 - 5,501,087 5,501,087
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (13,000,000) - (5,501,087) (5,501,087)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Special obligation bonds issued 13,000,000 - 12,220,000 12,220,000
Premium on bonds issued - - 1,024,527 1,024,527
Bond discounts and fees - - (225,278) (225,278)
Total Other Financing Sources 13,000,000 - 13,019,249 11,994,722
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ - $ - $ 7,518,162 $ 6,493,635
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MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS) AND ACTUAL
MECKLINK FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budget Actual
Revenues
Charges for Services $ - $ -
Other - -
Total Revenues - -

Expenditures
Personnel services and employee benefits - 75,393
Supplies - 129,953
Contractual services - 103,918
Total Expenditures - 309,264

Excess Revenues Over Expenditures - (309,264)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Grant revenue - -
Interest income - -
Interest expense - -
Capital outlay - -
Transfer from General Fund 1,700,000 1,700,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,700,000 1,700,000

Excess Revenues and Other Financing
Sources (Uses) Over Expenditures $ 1,700,000 1,390,736

Reconciliation to full accrual basis
Depreciation -

Loss on sale of capital assets -

Net Income - Full Accrual Basis $ 1,390,736
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The tables in this section provide additional information regarding the
County’s financial performance and position over time.
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Statistical Section

The Statistical Section presents detailed information for the primary government in the following areas, as a
context for understanding what the information in the Financial Section presents about the County’s overall
financial health:

FINANCIAL TRENDS - Tables 1 through 5: Information to help the reader understand how the
County’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

REVENUE CAPACITY — Tables 6 through 10: Information to help the reader assess the
County’s most significant local revenue sources.

DEBT CAPACITY - Tables 11 through 16: Information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the County’s current levels of outstanding debt and the County’s ability to issue additional debt in
the future.

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC DATA - Tables 17 and 18: Indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the County’s financial activities take place.

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION - Tables 19 through 21: Service and infrastructure data to help
the reader understand how the information in the County’s financial report relates to the services
the County provides and the activities it performs.

Where possible, the tables cover ten years of data, and any data presented that is taken from outside the
County’s financial records notes the source of that data.

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT



(S0z'zez'0l9) $  (€91°'225'¥99)$  (815°060'G89) $  (800°G¥8'26S) $ (280°'v19'6€S) §  (G99'L8€'SL9)§  (L62'cez'eSL) ¢  (LS2'8Gv'889)$  (STL'soz'ser) $§  (vvS'zve'lze) $ Juswuieno9 Atewd |ejoL
(r28'v99'962)  (L1¥'662'966)  (zov'svyL'GZLL) (6Le'898°0€L'L)  (96€'GG8'9LL°L)  (256°168°262°L) (689°2L9'2erL) (00t'228°20€'L)  (9g€°19L'26L'L)  (982°7E6°080°L) pajoLysaiun
265'618'28 v€8'962°2L1L 291'819'L¥T Gly'GLE'881 oLg'olegee 12612 SEE 0€2°0L0°004 0S6'7¥1'90} zee'0v8 LY 8£G°098'L¥T pajoLisey
120°€95'€0} 0ZY'LTr'6S 1 22L9ev'8YC 9€8°269'67¢ #05°0£6'86€ G9E'8ET LYE 299'82Y'v.LS €61°692°€LG 618'G50°6¥S Y0ZLEL'G09  gep pajejel JO Jau ‘sjesse [ended ul pajseau|
JUBWUIBA0S) Atewid
189'986'L€ LEE'SY.L 0 8CE'8YL'SY 895°000'1S 0%2'606°95 G12'686'29 75698299 G09'66.'29 V21 126} L ¥05°222'9. saIARY adA}-ssauisng |ejoL
69Y°LTL'8 G¥9'80G'S 9€.'€LE'9 120'290°9 20.'681'L 99€°110°2L LEL'GLG YL 686',67'6 8.¥'Z€8'EL 209°980'6 pajoLseiun
12021l 111'€€9'e €62'€€9'Y 9v8'9€1'9 289'€0L°L €6€°/88'L Gov'819'8 062'v.£'8 2€9'ver'e 1€2°109'9L pajoLsey
161€6Y'9C GLG'€09°LE 6€€°108'vE 169°108'8€ 9s8'GLE‘eY 96v°980'cY 8G/°25L e 92€'€26'67 110°0L9'6Y G91vEG'0S qap psjejal Jo Jau ‘sjesse [ejided ul pajseny|
S 1oy adAj-ssauisng
(988'89z'8¥9)  (00S'zee'sos)  (ove'ses’oes)  (9.5'sve'ey9)  (zze'ees'oes)  (088°99€'829)  (162°026'vz8)  (z98'tsz'oss)  (9vz'zel'l9s)  (80°G9L'10€) SONIAIOY [EJUSWUIBAOD) [BJOL
(£62'98€'508) (290'v92'200°'L)  (8cL'6S¥'L8L L)  (06£'026°'9€L‘L) (860°'GvE'v8L'L) (€2e'c06'60€'L) (0zZ¥'88L'Lvv'L) (68€'0.8°2LEL) (v18'€66'G02'L) (888°020°060°L) pajouisaiun
11G2%0'08 159°€TL'691 606'786'9€C 629'8L1°281 8z1'L0Z'1€C v.G'v8€'L2E G9/°16E'L6 099'022°L6 00L'GLY'6EL 108'85Z°L€C pajoLisey
9€8'690°'LL $  S06'LL8°/ZL $  €8€'GE9'€lz §  G8L'9B80LE $  8YO'VLO'9GE $  698°LGL'VOE §  YO6'GLZLES $  L98'GHE'COF $  898'G8E'66Y §  BE0'L6GYSS $ UOP Pajejas Jo jou ‘sjesse [e)ided ul pajsaAul
SOI}IAIJOY [BJUSWIUIDAOD)
€002 7002 5002 9002 1002 8002 6002 0102

(Bununoooy jo siseg |entooy)
210z ‘0€ ANNI d3AN3 Jv3aA vOSId
ININOJNOD A9 SLISSY L3N
VNITOHVD HLHON ‘ALNNOD 94NENIIHOIAN

L 31avl

L10C

[4%04

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

100



2002 o). sieak 1oy pajeulwi|s aiam sjuswasinquial ajels (g)

(S08'z0Z'LLL)$  (8S6'46C°+G) §  (GSE'€LG'0Z) §  0LG'Sve'z6 §  926'0£T'es § 8G/'GoL'9L ¢ (6LL'16S'69L) §  L€0'TLZZ9 §  TEL'EBL'EBL S 18G6'22€'292 §
2€1°558°L 959'8G.°C 916'6Y0'S 0¥2'25C'S 219'806'S G/6°G/0'9 6EL7L0E'E 1G9'80G°L 91S'LELY €8€'G6C ¥
(L£6°2G0°€LL) (#19'€50°26) (L22'€95°G2) 0£2'€66'98 vSz'zee' Ly €8.'680°0} (898'268°2LL) 98€'€9.°09 919190'681 861°220°€9Z
816°0€6'65. 22E'6v.LTL8 006'GEZ 798 80125786 1£2°186'9€0°L 8L1'6LL°160°L 055'619990°} 962’087 ¥S0°L  8L0°1L8L°090°L  €82°1GG'S9L’L
€87'€LT 8068V 658CLE G5v'269 GLEZ90'L 609'G/L°L 819'809°€ OVELLET 195686 996'GYE'9

- - - - - - - - - 000°00Z°L

- - - - - €96'LE L02'62L°T 61€'220C 290°26L'y 6Y0'€0V'y
esr'ele 806'8¥L 658'CLE GSY'269 GLE'290°L 969'/€L°L 111’628 120'50€ §0§°2€2 L16'2rT
GEV'LLL6SL 71°009°C18 170'€26°€98 £59°65.'€86 9L'716'GE0"L 608'€6'680°L 2€6°0L0°€90°} 068201 2S0°L LS7°16L'GG0°L  918'S0Z°6SL'L

- - - - - - - - - (000°002°1)
8Z9'0LG°} 6LE'6TL L 0ve'Ly0°L 695°260'C 699'758 8Z€'80L°} 99¥'68.°} 188'S5S L9e'eze -
099'¥50°2 08L°LEE'S 208'60L°LL 0L1'€88°LL 28799792 151'615'62 205°000'84 166290y 716°LG0°E 89€'8/8'C
0G€'€CS'y £80'258'S GZE'1L5°9 162'608'L 816'CEL'8 619'602°6 809'686'8 88€'6.£'6 gLL'ege’ol 126'122° 1L
86.'80€'8G L 606°1£9'081 11€'689'102 8v8'961 ‘8L 6SL' LT vre ¥Z1'188'Lve 100°282'661 20.2'692'981 G92'90L'8. 1 610298702
9v€'06E° L1 86€'8Y6°Z1 0LO'LYY'EL 196°152°Ch 268'G85°Th 151'8v€°TL 816'099°€L 862'L€0°}L 6.€'9zv'Ch ¥ET'LE6°LL
£99'626°9.S 525°101°909 2¥2'890°0€9 71€°0€5°62.L 9€.L°2SY Y. ¥28°0G1°06. 10v°282°028 ¥20°L62°0v8 91+°00€°058 892°900°0€6
(€2.°€€1°128) (08Z'770°298) (552672 '788) (865'90Z'268) (508°052°€86) (099°¢56'720°L)  (699°'0L2°9¢2L) (661 °80Z°266) (988'/86'998) (102'622'868)
69°'LY9'L 81.'609'C 1S0°L€L'Y GB/'6SS'Y 1G€'L¥8'Y 99€'006' (628'90¢€) (569'898) (150'898) (€85'050°2)

(z2€'G22'218)

(820'759'698)

(z1€'987'688)

(€8€'992'968)

(z91'265'886)

(920'v58'620°L)  (062'€06°'S€TL)  (FOS'6EE L66)

(5€8'621'998)

(819'821°968)

¥72'€50°082 968'Gv8°L.Z 990°158°162 652°CrE'€0E G.0'667°02€ LEV'ELYOVE 08€'LEEBLE S10°L¥Z70€ 888°€E6'60€ 026'69Z 762
6£8'026°L | €86'0v.L'C) €89'656' 7| 89.'00¥'9} 605'2E€" L) SSY'Y0v'8L €0L'CLE'EL 1G8'10L°C) rLYLr'TL 818'205°C}
8G1°G8L - 000°0% - - - - 000°GL LIy %9 818'801
189'GEL LY €86'0V.L'Ch €89'616'7} 89.°00%'9L 605'2EE L) SSY'vOv'8L €0L'2LE'EL 168'980°Ch Lee‘ose'ch 000'v6E°Ch
S0v'Z€1L'89C €/8'860'G92 €8€'168'9.2 L6Y'L16'98C 995'991 ‘€0 286'800'8Z€ 119'856'G0€ 861Gyl ‘62 9¥1'615'26C 204'29.°182
801'0€€’L 8LE°L9€°L 062251 G/6°GZ9 ¥28'665°C 112'72€T 1¥2°295 €88'GG.°L 1S2°915°C 6E6'€9€°T
901'¥00°0LL §12'208'L61 168'959'€91L 919'0G0°L94 L8y'oLe'8LL ¥.8'810'20C 061'6¥2'602 129'219'261 €62'118'v02 660'SEL'Z8L
89€'0L6°C v9Z'L¥5'e 19€'168'G 9LE'BYS'Y 128'TvS'y ¥20°'L6%'9 696'529°¢ 72€'686°¢ 9rz'sse'e vZL'0L6'y
819'009'CZ 8.1'820'6Z ¥6.'280'€Z €51'90€'0€ 9v9'26E VL 120°268°LL 0z5'€ey 9l €8.'959'8} 8.v'0ze el v12'060°LL
0LL'2L5'02 709'€99°12 1T1'285'92 €16°107'LE LEL'EVY Ve 8L€£'759'v€ ¥82'628'92 G8Y'LY8'ET 16L'¥8L'€Z G8Y'0vL'ST
8L1'629'c Gz8'L.8'c 606760t 2oL'9ze'y 12z'ves'y 192'80L°G €8€'1€0'G v.€128'y 0L0'065'Y 60Y'SYL'Y
268'285 Y z.5'0€T'8Y 199'88.°0§ 209°€€€'CS 196'685°29 8G1'€LG LS L00°L¥ETY 816'996'8€ 182'95€" 0% G69'209°9
L02'2LS zeL'108 £v9'22e ¥8L'GZ 9€5'6 G6.'L ovL'z8y 1€5'18Y 004228 029'8
G8L'6LZ'} §9.'98.°C 6Gt'15€°T 0/6'8L¥'C vL6'ZEY'L 87.'686°L LES'ELY'L L16°210°T 0€2°209'% 898'70L'y
6EY'9Y9 - 882'c 000‘¢ gev'y - (o[04 0sZ'L - 6vL's

196'981°15L°L

9€1°068'vvL L

12€'009'9.L°}

1G8'8¥S'S6L L

088'6¥Z'¥0E" |

160'29€'L2Y'L 610'2¥S'GSS | ¥12'SS1'962 |

¥21°126'921 )

121'661'26L L

0616220} Gez'LeL 0L 929'zzz 0l €86°08°L L Z51LI16YTh 680'705°€} 785'6L9°€) 265°0L6°Ch €6LTLT'EL L0V'€SS ¥ L
111°106°0%L°L 106'ZSL¥EL'L G69'L/E99LL  ¥/8°10L°€8L°L 8C.L'8S.°16T'L 800°€98°207'| 19v'298°L 1S L 299'78Y'€8Z" L 186'8¥9'€9L "} 02L'Gy6°LLL°L
sov'eLe’Le ¥€0'VEL'6E 882°08L"LY YLy YLy £YS'vee'cS G/€'02€'LS 0S2'8LS'SY 166'02€'9Y Y¥2'c95'ee 28¢€'08¥'29
elevgerienol 612'7S5°LE 68€'29L°L2 €SY'E6EVE ¥6E'GE9VE 196'/TL°GE 8€7'195'8€ 719'vr6°6€ €10°20r'6Y 992'299°L€
0¥2'0€5°295 8¥2'18€'GES 208' Ve vYS €22'889'52S 9€5'226°L19 G9Z'6.€°L99 €6€'8€8°29. 0€8'0€9'655 069'952' Ly 600'v88°€LY
90€'¥8Y'TLT G80'G.S'¥8Z 688'997'G6C GE0'T620E 816'10L'€62 ¥S6'vrL9LE 698'cZEELE Yy ¥SL'G0E £16'790'06C 90t'61L°192
982'6v€'88 YLY'€9L 06 8L1'0L0°L6 89.'0v¥'00L G99'9LY'801 L6€'1Ze'12) 2ee'sz6 6zl 916'0/8'8Z) 1SY'¥19'22) 260'198'6EL
61611999 1G6'081°GS 9¥1'1+0°09 215'886'69 0%2'660°CL 051'92L°18 615'282'88 000°9¥¥°18 ¥89'859'vL ves'ery'co
¥99'1L00'cy 691 'V96 vy 904'694°LY 860°26€'8Y 090'999°CS €11'010°LS 11€'TEL'8S GLE'8YL'0S 2.0'815'0S ¥9/°28€'05
gol'osz'e 622'008°¢ €6€'08L°G 989°295'S €11'92€'9 8el'0zL L €€0'091°62 872'659°9} G97'G98'vL goe'L8r'el
v.1'GZL'8E 086'6.2'6€ 168'0SL'eY 890'¥18'0Y 000'€L2'VY 029'6.2°19 80€'GLEY9 zes'sLL'ey 615°2.8'99 800'0%9'89
€0L'0€0'Y 90S'ELL'Y  $ €/1°120'6  $  /8G'9¢0'8 $  665'98€6 ¢ 6ov'zey's  $  8sZ'ovi'oL $  90.'06€'0L $  +98'8Z8'vL $  pOV'GBE'EL $
€002 ¥002 G002 9002 2002 8002 6002 0102 1102 210z

(Bununoooy jo siseq [ENIODY)
210z '0€ ANNF 3AN3T ¥Y3IA IHL HO4
S13SSV L3N NI IONVHO
VNITOHYO HLHYON ‘ALNNOD D¥NENITHOIAN
¢3navl

d:.:mm_o wio}s 89| wouy enuaAal YNNI A<v ‘S3I1ON

sjassy 1oN ul abuey) juswuianos Alewid [ejo]
saNIAloy adA)-ssauisng
SBNIAIOY [EJUSWILIDA0D)
sjassy JoN ul abueyd
SONUBASY [EIBUSD) JUSWIUISAOD) AJewlld [BJ0]
SaNUBASY |eIBUSD) SaNIAIY adAl-ssauisng ejo)
siajsuel|
Snoaue|jaosI
sBuluies Juswysanu
saNIAlOY adA}-ssa
SONUBASY [BIBUSD SOIIANOY [EJUSWILISAOD) [BJ0]
slajsuel]
SNOaUE|[99SIN
sBujuies yuswysau|
SoXe) Jayl0
soxe} soleg
10L)SIJ 991AIS JUBWaDIoJUT MET ‘saxe) Apadoid
asodind |esauab ‘saxe) Auadold
SONIAIOY [EJUSIUISA0D)
SONUaAaY [eIausD)
asuadx3 JoN JuswiuIan0 Atewlid [ejo|
saljAnoe adA)-ssauisng
SOI)IAIOE [E)UBIUIDA0D)
asuadx3 JaN
sanuanay welbold JuswuianoD) Alewlld [e10]
sanuaAay weiboid sanianoe adAy-ssauisng [ejo]
suolnNguiuoo pue sjuelb Buesado
$92I1AI8S U0} sabiey)
saNIAIOY adA}-ssauisng
sanuanay welibold SaNIANOY [eJUSLULIBAOS) [ejo )
suonnquuod pue syuelb [epded
suonnqujuod pue sjuelb bunessdo
siaupied ssauisng
S90IAI8S UBWNH PUE Y)eaH
IAJ9S Hoddng uno) pue uopusiaqg
$92IA18S AJUnwiwo)
S92|AISS [BJUSWILOIIAUT PUE 3S() PUeT]
SOOIAJISG [elouBuUlq
S92IAISS SAIEASIUIPY
901AI9G Juswabeue|y pue UolOB)SIES JBWOo}SND
sa0IAI8s Joj sebieyn
:SOI)IAIJOY [BJUSWIUISA0S)
:senuanay welboid
sasuadx3 Juswulanos Alewld [ejo)
suoneladQ aJSe) PIOS
:salIAIOY adA)-ssauisng
sasuadx3 SaNIAIOY [EJUSILISAOD) [ej0 L
sjooyos 2ygqnd
asodind |esauab :3qep wua) Buoj uo jsalsiu|
siaupled ssauisng
$90IAJ9S UBWNH PUE Y)|eaH
$921M19g poddng pno) pue uonusleq
$99IAI19S Ajunwiwo)
S92|AISS [BJUSWIUOIIAUT PUE BS() pueT]
S90IAJ9S [EloUEUl4
S90IAISS SAlASIUILPY
$92IAI9S JusWwabeue|y PUe UoRoBJSES Jawolsn)
:SON)IAIOY [BJUSWUISA0S)
:sesuadxy

ng

S9!

101

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT



1L 1L0Z ‘0€ dunp papus Jeak sy} Joj pajuswajdwi sem
‘seoueleg pun4 pajejsal bunuasaid ‘4G Juswaelels gsyo

*sj09/oud |eydeo Jo dn-HEe)}s S}09)481 SOUBIJUINJUS U0} SAISSAI Ul 8sealou] (YY) :STLON
88€°2SZ'6EY €¥0°09¥'€LC  1.8'688°90C 2€5°998°'0C 820°€66'GC 90901261 SET6.L'G91 882°280'v6 L0V LEL'BS 059'8.6°LL €002
€16°€65°19Y 125'GeS°LSC L19'c9s°zeL 8159L¥'9 zLS'ver'LL (v) 988'LEL'LOL 9¥¥'850°01LC L€2°11G°90L ¥€8°961°06 188'6vECL 002
LYG'vE€9 €Y ze0'6ee’'eSe  Zhl'026'89L S0.'9¥0°'61 120°8¥S0L ¥61°vZ8'vS 605'S62°0¥C 66980671 065'8L€G. 022'898'GL G002
988982915 Z8l°zeL'vee  18G'191°2SL LgL'reg’Le G€6°0S0°6 6€6°GLLCE ¥0.'¥SS° 162 129°2€T'¥61 898°L2.L. 602'v65°GC 9002
622°0€t'1L09 116°196°26C  GEO'L099LL 88E' L 've 98€°€80°L L 891°€EL'9E 252'89v'eve 162°28€v¥e 220°6SY°'LL €€6'929°LC 1002
v.6'v29'ev. 1G6°08%¥'18€  09€'650°GET 100°10€°82 9/¥'869°91L ozL‘zer'Lol L10'v¥L29¢ 0€€£°682°'G9¢ L€6'06.L°€L 96/°/90°€e 8002
1G9'€SL Oy 66.70Z'L8 195°G.G'¢ 91.°0S6'C€ 820'6v.L L 881'626'Cy 268'815'65¢€ G82°0¥8°09¢ 6890826, z88'/2v'6L 6002
G81°8/2°0¢¥$ 09Z'608°06% 6152906k $ L6296 $  L€6'L.¥0L $ 668°G66'LE $ GZ6'89¥'62E$  LSP086'0CC$  89€°0G6°/8%  00L'8ES0C $ 0l0¢
|ejoL [EjoL panasalun panIasalun SINIEIS BjeIS Se0UBIqUINOUT |EjoL panIasalun SINJE}S S)BIS  seduelquinoul Qg aunp
spun4 spun4 spung Aq pantesay 10} panIasay Aq panlesay o) panIasay
[EJUBWILIBAOD) sjoslold [eyde]  enuanay [eroadg
12 Spun4 [E}UBWUIBA0D JaO IV pun [eiausg
g8L'gLez'ocy 9/9'9€€'68 (9zs'L1e'e) - 08.°€08'cy cey'yyL'es - 60S°L¥6'0€€ ¥22'9€0°20} 0LO'v8Z 2L 196'v0¥'L yGeLLZ'oLL  096'Y 010z
€LL YT Y9V ¥20°219°L6 (199'698'91) - 061°208°29 SYS'v89'0y - 669°0€9'CLE €8€'810°L42 G6.'€06°L 901'2L6 GGL'LEL'86 096t Loz
€65'0L6'9/9¢  GeL'esL'zLzs  (€12'885'6)$ - $ z/8'9L2'16$  9£0'GeoGEL § - $ 8Sv'lSL'8Sv ¢ L9L°16L'pZE S  GBE'SS6'S §  LLL'TL6'TE § S9L'te9's6 § 096'% $ cLoe
1elol |ejol paubisseun paubissy papiwwo) pajolIsay a|gepuadsuoN 1ejol paubisseun paubissy pPajIWWo) pajolsay a|gepuadsuoN Qg aunp
_ﬁcwmﬂﬁ_m_ﬁoo 'Spun4 [E}USWUIBA0D Jay)0 IV FIEENED)
v

(Bununoooy jo sisegq [eniooy palipo)
SHVYIA TvOSId NIL LSV

SANN4 TVLINIWNYIAOD ‘STONVIVE ANN4
VNITO¥VO HLYON ‘ALNNOD DYNENITHOIN

€374avl

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

102



%Lyl

%S191

%LV

%90°G1

%009}

%¥veSl

%0L v

%961

%9661

%1102

LPS'PEQ'C6Y $

v.6'%29'€r. $

169'eSL'9py §

S81'8/2°02y §

€LLLVC YOy §

€65°0169/9 §

88€'25Z'6EY §

€L6'€65° LY §

988'982°91G §

622°0ev°L09 §

- ¥60°286°01 €69V.LL°LL - - -

G6E°GLE 95T 88€°26Z 65V €16°€65°19¥ LG vE9'c6Y 988°98Z°91S 622°0S¥°1.09 v16'v29'ey. 196G ‘b 681°8/2°02Y €L0'1v2' VoY
£66°9£6'Z8) G85°LYE'TT 895°0¥0°Z¢ §¥£°259'22 £re'erl'ss 169212 LEL (9L0'9v9'vLe)  (991°SL¥'92) 885°696'CH 028°29z°2ie
182°GeE /1Y €65°0L.2°€EC 915 vLI'9ve 000°000°26 ¥6S LY 1EC 0vy'29r°€Ee 676'€15'66 86£9/8°60 0%9°62¢ v¥L1€622)
(859°026°2) (662°086°€2) (216'22L2) (108'z66°8€) (z69°¢85°62) (80%°'580°9%) (€19729v°29) (g8¥'28€29) (6¥$55°9¢) (201°L¥v'8Y)
660°890°C 662°086'¢2 1€8°692°L 108°266'S€E 269°€85'62 801°580°9% £0€°665 LS G8Y°28€'29 6.0%82'9¢ L0129
09Z%01 £26'92'L - - - - 000°005°Z - - 906776
000°028°9LY 000551 €22 000°G99°6tZ 000°000°26 000°G€1 622 000°081°0Z€ 000°0£L¥EE 000°000°00} - 000°000°00}
(6EE'SPLEL) (980°c92'8¥L)  (9Lv'zEL'881) - - - (€0G°1¥8'922)  (156°L¥1'8€9) - (e¥0°€18'6.L1)
£26'8Y2°L 96/°126'12 1000L0°ZL - ¥65°90€'9 orv'zezel 29.°66'SE GGE°80.'8G - 18Z'v66°0€
00009124 000°0L¥'SEL 000°6Z1°2LL - - - - 000°0L£'68S - 000°GL0'¥9L
(g8z'g6e'vez)  (800'698'0L2)  (8¥6'€L0'viz)  (GS9°Lve'vsL)  (1Gz'86Z'9vl)  (68L°6%¥2°202) (G96'65LvLY)  (¥98°LGE9EL) 8¥6'6ELCY 9/9°1££'68

€69°90€°292°L

G05'282°88C°1L

828°/96°GSE"L

GL0'8Y8'ESY'L

16V'9ES v8Y'L

1£8'602°529'}

€15°€08°G8/2°L

GBZ'/E8'E8Y'L

ZLS'YIZ LLE L

¥82°L09VSE L

G€8'892°09¢
098'816°L9
78€'€E6'G8

6vY'6¥6'29¢
§€9'zL2'CLT
Zy0°'L18'6L
91L€°G66'vS
oLL'evLvy
809°LLL'S
S¥8°'€L2'GE
G09'9G6°€

8.6'€€8'6EC
€1£'889'92
8€1'821°C6

192'v2. 19€
9G1'965°€82
LLe'gesLe
€LL'€ES €S
S8E'YOY 9y
S69'EYE’S
voL‘LLE°L€
166629V

126°L55Y9C
6€€°'G51°9.L
6.2'¥81°L0L

812'666'€.LE
0€0°€25°€62
G9€'9€9°Z8
ZEL'v62'8S
268'62¢ Ly
18.'828'S
196°L9S LY
0G€'966't

119'819°1/2
198°/€8°18
8Y9'6L5 V2L

6/0'G88°20Y
115685 L0E
GGG'ESY' L6
600'899°29
0L0°G¥8°0S
6€1L°2GL'9
ZLy'v89°oy
TLL'EE6'L

TLL8YL'VET
G98'ery'L8
056'869°9¢€)

122 &4 444
9GG°€2Y'€E6C
SYG'ZYS'66
22C°L6L°LL
G9/'61€°GS
88Y'26€°L
8€G'188'GY
22E'SYE'6

§/€'0,6'0LC
Zre'8yy o8
066'68¢ 811

180'662°8LY
169°90€°GLE
¥0Z°18€'801
€Ly'ese’s.
895°88/°6S
Zve'a8e’e
9/9'169°09
LEL'GEE'D

9/0°0€L°9LY
LEV'TEE VB
€21'88C'v9L

€12'609°89%
616'2/60L€
LLLOYL'OLL
69278528
82.'G02°29
8ZY'¥60'6
09.°€€2°09
69¢°070°04

G/0'8€L'GOL
€19'692'98
0669L5°C/L

6/G'898° L2y
665ty L v0E
098°¢8Y'GLL
LL0°182°2.
9/2°28¥'€S
€88'v82'6
662°9€6°L9
860°9EY'0L

§80°099'LY
1GZ'796°28
985°00€v.L

82.LTEBELY
€16'G95°/8¢2
6¥0°CLSELL
29£'62L'€9
106°£80°2S
1€6'795°6
066°9S2°LS
0L'06.LVL

90.°04L°9.
€09°2SZ°L6
vLLL82'G9L

0zZ1'29L' L2y
696'82.'65C
L€5'GLL'GTL
621°022'95
100°065°2S
Lr8'GzL LL
0/8'6.189
86L'€LEEL

S0%°806'2E0°L

16Y'EL6°'LL0°)

088°€68'LyLL

09€°005'6.2°L

9¥Z'8ET'8EE’L

Zv0'096°22Y'|

8YS'Ey9'LLE L

L2y'S8Y'LYE’L

09%'¥00°'GSE'L

096°CE6 €V 'L

LEV'898°LL
€19°'/28'¢
0S59°vS0°L
ZY9'€sy'S.
16L°9E1'891
L€T'c02'8L
891212’ L2
ove'06e’ L1
€Lv'20v'60L $

89G°'GE0'8
26¥'898°C
081°LE€'S
vZy'yS8 08
1G9°088°65 L
SZ1°018°0C
119'GET'6C
86E°8Y6'CL
286°C16°LGL $

8G8°679'8
€.G'6LL'C
£08°60L°L1
GGG'/68°98
€16°916'€9L
¥98°052'2¢C
186'760°C¢
0Lo‘LyY'el
€GzeLy'L08 $

019°c05°el
GG9'€00°C
0LL'€88°LL
119'06.°96
9618851
96G'GEV'GT
999°01L¥'GE
195°L52°CL
6v.L°LyY'9L6 §

220'TS0°LL
668°C18'C
Z81'99%°92
€20'926'6
L11G'6LL°LLL
0v9°299'92
2€6°/91°8¢
268'G86°CL
618'6..876 $

€1G°16.'GL
798201y
16161562
€29'758°€6
8G/'€9.20C
11G'69.°€C
1GE°129'8¢E
GL'eveel
78€°C€L'200°L §

8L.'a8Lzl
0ee'98L'y
20S°000°81L
106°cZE'8.
€81°892'80¢
251'968'vL
8€2'99.'¢¢
8¥6°099°¢l
9/2'GGE'886 $

S¥8'8,9°0L
182'vv1C
165290V
G86'0GL°LL
125225861
L80‘orv'cL
1€€'8G9°€E
zeT'66E L
Zv5'cZ8'966 $

Te9'T8L LL
182'vvy'C
rL6°LS0'e
€1€°20v°0L
0G6G°110802
1GY'EET YL
LET'SYLILE
6€£2°008°C1
117°721°100°L $

919'GG0°CI
L¥9°62SC
89¢'8/8'C
0L1°906°LL
¥91°196'981
Y06°'ELY"LL
¥88'625°GE
¥€2'88LCL
6€0VLY'20L'LS

€00C

002

§00¢

900C

1002

800C

600C

010C

(Bununoooy Jo siseq [ENJ00Y PBLIPOIA)

SHVIA TVOSId N3L 1SV

SANNS TVINIWNYIAOD ‘SIONVIVE ANNA NI SIONVHO
VNITOHVYO HLHON ‘ALNNOD DHNENIIMOIN

¥ 37avl

Loc

[4214

sainyipuadxa |ejides-uou
0 Jusolad e se 991AI8S 1gaQ

dV3IA 40 AN3I-S3IONVIvVE aNNd
NOILVYOIdISSVY103d
dVY3IA 40 ONINNIOIE-SIONVIVE ANNS
S3ONVIVE ANNd NI 3ONVHO 13N
$801n0g Bujoueul4 JayYiQ [ejoL
N0 sIsuel |
Ul siajsuel |
ases| [e)de) / Buioueuyy Juswijelsul
spuoq Jo aes
juabe molosa Buipunyal o} JuswAed
Buroueuly uo wnjwaid
spaaooud puoq Buipunjey
(83SN) S30HUNOS ONIONVYNIH ¥IHLO
S3UNLIANIdXT (¥3ANN) ¥3A0
S3NNIATY 40 (AONIIDI43A) SS30X3
sainyipuadx3 |ejo |
Aepno |ended
sebJeyo [eoasyy pue jsaisiu)
syuawAed [ediould
201088 1920
slauped ssauisng
S80IAI8S UBWNH pue yjeaH
$801AI8G Moddng LNoY pue uonusleg
$901AI9G AjUNWWOD
S80IAISG [BJUSWIUOIIAUT pUB 8S() pue]
S80IAISS [eloueUlq
S80IAI8S SAlRLSIUIWLPY
juswabeue|y pue uonoejsleS Jawoisn)
weun)
sainjipuadx3y
senuanay [e}o|
EELITe)
sabieyo aAnessiuIWpY
SJUBWISBAU] UO PauIed }salaju|
$90IAI8G Joy sabieyn
|leluswiuianoBisiu|
spwiad pue asusol
Xe| So|eg Jua) JleH-auQ isued |
soxe] JOUISIg 90IAI9S JUSWS2IoUT MeT]
soxe]
senuanay

103

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT



‘pun4 921AI8S 199 9y} Ul SnuaAal xe) sajes pue xe} Apadoid sepnpoul (Q)

'pajoeIU0D AWOU0Dd [BJausb

U} PUE XE] SBIES Z/| € JO UOHNQUISIP Sy} paonpai 8jels ayL (D)

"polIAs| Xe} s8les Judd g/| [euolippy (g)
‘uonenieasy (v)

‘S310N
0€€°28€°269 $ 086°1.G'9G.$ 82C'€89°008$ 6¥VLLVVOL6$ 6186LL87V6% 28€°CELCT00°) $ 9/2'GG€'886 $§  ¢vS'€e8'966 $  L2.'/2¢L'1L00°L $ 6€0'VL¥'20L L $
€6v'le 10L'Gy 11€'1¢2 822'6¢C 669C¢ 898'GYy £68'6€1 261°€0¢ LL'y8y 1122l Bylo
vLL'6EL )L 281°108°L 950'6.6°L 667°0L5°C 168'vC.L'C 619'€98°C 2€9°92G°C 9998112 508°9¥8°C GE0'9V8‘C [EJUSY SIOIYSA
G9L'V/L )L 980°0€2'L 221’29l 90.°'95¢€‘1L 8/£'€66 9/1'699 1G1°/26 268°206 ove'1¥8°L 6622l Kouednoo(Q wooy
187120611 (@ zez'9ee'LslL 0€€°065°69) 281981281 128°€52°90¢ €11°626'80C (0) £92'020'991 GOE /0L ESL 7€0°19G Ly (@) seLzee's9lL s9les
LLY'0EY'G.S S (V) €12'860'209%  6¥E'V26°L29$  ¥EL'G9L'6CL$  ¥20'SLL'8€L$  98G'€C9'68L S 1/8'0¥2'818$  L9¥LECOV8 S  G8P'vE6'8v8 ¢ (A/V) €5£°168'826 $  AWedoid |essusn
SONUBADY Xe|
€00¢ 00¢C G002 900¢ 1,002 800¢ 600¢C 0L0c L10c cLoc

JOHNOS A9 INNIATH XVL TVINIANSIAOO

SYV3IA TvOSId NIL 1SV

VNITOHVYD HLHON ‘O¥NENIIMOIN

S 3navl

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

104



TABLE 6

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Total Levy
Property
Excluding
Countywide Registered Registered
Property Amount Motor Motor
Valuation Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles
Original Levy:
Property taxed at current
year's rate $107,978,090,411 $0.8166 $ 881,749,086 $ 881,749,086 $ -
Motor vehicles taxed at
current year's rate 5,260,621,403 0.8166 42,958,234 - 42,958,234
Motor vehicles taxed at
prior year's rate 1,774,594,498 0.8387 14,883,524 - 14,883,524
Total 115,013,306,312 939,590,845 881,749,086 57,841,758
Discoveries:
Prior year taxes 731,941,581 Various 6,303,154 6,303,154 -
Penalties - 1,170,891 1,170,891 -
Total 731,941,581 7,474,045 7,474,045 -
Total property valuation $115,745,247,893
Net levy 947,064,890 889,223,131 57,841,758
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2012 (19,186,309) (11,341,596) (7,844,713)
Current year's taxes collected $§ 927,878,581 $§ 877,881,535 $§ 49,997,045
Current net levy collection percentage 97.97% 98.72% 86.44%

Note: The tax levy is net of rebates.
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TABLE 7

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(IN MILLIONS)

Fiscal Year Less Total Direct

Ended Real Personal State Elderly Assessed Tax
June 30, Property Property Certifications ~ Exemption Valuation(2) Rate
2012 $ 96,421.2 $ 16,001.8 $ 3,322.2 - (4) $ 115,745.2 $0.8166
2011 82,522.5 14,501.7 3,213.7 - (3) 100,237.9 0.8387
2010 81,628.2 14,990.3 3,273.2 - (3) 99,891.8 0.8387
2009 78,995.3 15,461.7 3,356.6 - (3) 97,813.6 0.8387
2008 76,671.4 15,312.1 3,287.1 (170.9) 95,099.7 0.8387
2007 72,755.0 14,454 .9 3,676.1 (167.3) 90,718.7 0.8189
2006 71,019.8 13,965.6 3,560.0 (185.7) 88,359.7 0.8368
2005 67,762.8 13,111.9 3,5695.3 (167.7) 84,302.3 0.7567
2004 67,121.9 12,880.2 3,642.7 (157.2) (4) 83,487.6 0.7364
2003 53,292.3 12,890.8 3,434.3 (1,123.3) 68,494 .1 0.8397

Notes:
(1) Assessed valuations are established by the Board of County Commissioners
at 100% of estimated market value for real property and 100% of actual value
for all other property. A revaluation of real property is required by North Carolina General Statutes
at least every eight years. Revaluations were completed for fiscal years 2004 and 1999.
(2) Assessed valuation equals estimated actual value, which approximates market value.
(3) Elderly Exemption is net of Real Property beginning FY 2009

(4) Revaluation
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TABLE 15

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

Pro Rata
Percent of Share of Total
Assessed Countywide Governmental Municipalities' Overlapping

Mecklenburg County: Valuation (1) Total Activities Debt Debt (2) Debt
Charlotte $ 90,210,666,762 7731 % $ 1,616,776,972 $ 788,565,000 $ 2,405,341,972
Cornelius 4,939,193,726 4.23 88,461,604 1,875,000 90,336,604
Davidson 1,607,209,991 1.38 28,859,814 - 28,859,814
Huntersville 5,935,762,093 5.09 106,446,705 14,905,000 121,351,705
Matthews 3,452,247,592 2.96 61,902,210 2,215,000 64,117,210
Mint Hill 2,273,610,802 1.95 40,780,172 3,225,000 44,005,172
Pineville 1,712,135,820 1.47 30,741,976 6,363,750 37,105,726

Unincorporated

Areas 6,561,032,423 5.62 117,530,547 - 117,530,547
Countywide Totals $116,691,859,209 100.00 % $ 2,091,500,000 $ 817,148,750 $ 2,908,648,750

Notes:

(1) Provided by N.C. Department of Revenue, Tax Research Division. Includes valuations of classified
registered motor vehicles for which tax notices were issued in accordance with G.S. 105-330.5(a) during
calendar year 2010, net of releases made by that date.

(2) Provided by Department of State Treasurer.
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TABLE 17

MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN YEARS

PeTthoar!naI Per Capita Median School Unemployment
Year Population Income Income Age Enrollment Rate
2012 966,160 22,605,735,000 $ 23,398 N/A 138,012 9.9 %
2011 938,020 23,109,445,000 24,636 35.2 135,638 11.1
2010 919,628 23,046,007,500 25,060 35.2 133,664 11.2
2009 893,892 22,365,015,000 25,020 35.1 134,060 11.5
2008 869,954 21,920,959,643 25,198 35.1 132,281 6.1
2007 842,674 21,657,699,496 25,701 35.1 129,011 45
2006 815,218 20,933,932,894 25,679 34.4 126,903 4.3
2005 791,473 20,127,796,478 25,431 34.7 121,640 5.0
2004 768,421 18,684,117,114 24,315 33.4 115,517 5.2
2003 746,040 17,941,310,099 24,049 33.4 109,605 5.8

N/A: Data not available.

Data provided by the Charlotte Chamber of Commerce, the North Carolina Office of
State Planning, and the Charlotte-Mecklenburg School System.
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